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PRESS:
Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay. We shall bring this meeting to order. First and
foremost, everyone shall either turn off or put silent anything that makes noise in this
Chambers, including the Members. Okay. We are on, close to the deadlines to make
final decisions on the proposal, Members. Before we take testimony this morning to
hear further comments from community and different organizations, I’m going to ask
Mr. Victorino who represented our interests in Oahu yesterday at the State Legislature
to give us an update on a big component of this Budget’s revenue source. So with
that, Mr. Victorino, would you care to give us an update please on the efforts at the
Capitol?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yesterday the conferees came to a
decision which amounts to this. First and foremost, they kept the cap of $103 million
to the counties. Secondly, there was no change in the percentages for which each
county will be receiving for the upcoming fiscal year. They did remove the working
group, the option of having a working group which the Senate had brought forward
but the House vehemently opposed, so that was taken off the table. Also this
agreement is for one year, just for the upcoming fiscal year. They are still open for
more discussion with the counties, and I believe HSAC will be making this a priority.
Right after this, I will be setting up a group to work on this so that we’ll be better
prepared next year when we walk in the door. The pleasantries, the overall comments
I got from our Legislators and the Legislature leadership--excuse me, a little tongue
tied this morning--was very positive. Although we did not get what we really should
have and deserve and had hoped for, I still believe they did not at least kill the bill
reverting back to the former 93 million that we were receiving. So with that being
said, Mr. Chair, although I don’t have what I call the greatest news and this makes our
budgetary situation a little more difficult to work with, I hope the public understands
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that the Transient Accommodation Tax is very important for the counties and we need
to get a better or what I call a fairer share. And we need and I would recommend
everyone look at it next year being a part of. It cannot be just HSAC, it cannot be just
the counties, it must be our people. It must be the groups that are adversely affected,
because the cuts we have to make are directly made because of that $13 million we’re
not going to receive, Mr. Chair. So with that being said I want to thank everyone,
Ms. Baisa, yourself, Mr. White, all the other Councilmembers throughout the counties
and here in the Chamber that have helped. I think the united front was something
that they had never seen, when HSAC and the chairs all walked in in unison asking
for the removal of the cap, but unfortunately the message wasn’t driven home right
now. But I believe they know we’re united and that we’re going to keep working on
this issue and that we are not letting it go. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that update, Mr. Victorino. That’s good and bad
news. The good news is we know what number we are to work with, Members. The
bad news is it’s not anything higher than the previous years. So we’ll get into
testimony shortly. But I will tell you that in your Chair’s proposal, you will already see
part of my revenue adjustments was to delete the $13.6 million that was anticipated
from the TAT pot that we, the Mayor had optimistically had hoped for. In your Chair’s
proposal, I have already deleted that 13.6 million, or this morning your Chair was
going to direct you to start cutting $13.6 million from the Budget. What you have
before you is a budget that as your Chair has proposed has made those $13.6 million
reductions already. So if you’re going to add anything from this point on, Members,
you must find a way to pay for it. If you are looking at another district, I would
request you have a courtesy discussion with the Member whose district you’re looking
at for those funds. Okay, with that I’m going to announce presence, Vice-Chairman
White is present this morning.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Committee Members Carroll -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Baisa -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Cochran -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Crivello --
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning. Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We excuse Mr. Guzman. We shall take public testimony at this time,
Members. The rules of this Committee is that you have three minutes, three minutes
only to speak on the item. When your name is called, please come forward, state your
name for the record. If you’re representing an organization, a group, association, we
request that you share that with us. We shall assist you with your time. At the
2-minute 30-second mark the yellow will go on at the podium. At the 3-minute mark
the red light goes on which means that please stop your comments. Also by rules of
our Committee, once your name is called, if you are not present, we move forward and
we do not recall those that are not present. Stating that and we shall also go to our
District Offices for…if anyone is at the District Offices. This morning we’re going to
start off and ask Mr. Greg Blue if he would come forward and share his comments
with the Committee. Following Mr. Blue would be Christine Sabado.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
MR. BLUE: Good morning, Councilmembers. My name is Greg -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BLUE: --Blue, a 30-year resident in Haiku, and I’m here to testify on the ill-conceived
proposal to raise our taxes 40 percent. I’m speaking for myself so I’m going to give you
a quick example of what it’s like for my expenses to run my vacation rental which is
my ohana, it’s not in my house. I’m running about 75 percent occupancy rate. I keep
my prices down, it’s about $1,000 a week for my cottage for families. So I’m making
about $3,000 a month. Here’s the rundown. Electric $100, cable $100, advertising
$200, cleaning $300, supply $100, taxes 450, Maui County insurance $100 a month.
So by the time the smoke clears and I get my $3,000, I got $1,500 left. Okay. That’s a
lot of work for a little bit of money. I can rent my cottage for more than that a month,
but I keep it free so my family can come. Now we are playing a big part since A&B
closed its operations. We are almost completely dependent on visitors. And folks like
myself who have spent the time and money to get these permits are now like captives
to this proposed tax increase. We lost our $200,000 exemption already, that’s another
$100 a month. You know we meet these tourists, we greet these tourists, we tell them
where to eat locally, where to spend their money on Maui. They leave in the morning,
they come back at night. If they have any questions, if they need any help, we are
there for them. We have repeat visitors. And so to target this group of I believe
120 people to give them a 40 percent tax increase is absolutely outrageous and
discriminatory to say the least. No other class is, you know, targeted for any kind of
tax increases, and on top of the 40 percent, we got another 8 percent in property

-4-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

valuations going up which is going to raise our taxes anyway. So now I’m looking at
50 percent tax increase. So I don’t know what world Mr. Hokama lives in to propose a
40 percent tax increase, but I’ve been here 30 years and I’ve never heard of anything
like this. He may need the money for something I’m not aware of, but to burden us
who are trying to accommodate the tourists on a different level than the hotels for a
much more personal experience, I just find it’s outrageous and I hope that at least five
of you can vote against this bill. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Any questions for Mr. Blue? Having none,
thank you for your testimony. Christine Sabado, and she will be followed by Stacey
Moniz.
MS. SABADO: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. SABADO: Good morning. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. SABADO: Aloha. I am Christine Sabado. My husband is Phillip Sabado, the artist. You
may know of him. And I am proud to be here today. He would be here but I’m here.
The Maui Filipino Chamber of Commerce humbly requests your consideration in
reinstating the funding for the Culture and Arts Program under the Office of Economic
Development back to 80,000. There are many cultural programs and events in Maui
County that enrich both the residents’ and visitors’ experiences, and the funding is
necessary to support and develop such programs, including the Maui Fil-Am Heritage
Festival. Act 15, 2008 designates October as Filipino-American History Month
throughout the State of Hawaii to commemorate the contributions of Filipino
Americans to the history and heritage of Hawaii and the United States. In addition,
the 2010 Census shows Filipinos representing the largest Asian group in Hawaii. The
festival draws more than 10,000 and is coordinated by the Chamber’s nonprofit arm,
the Maui Filipino Chamber of Commerce Foundation on an annual basis. Now in its
sixth year, the Maui, the Fil-Am Heritage Festival is a family event that promotes and
perpetuates the Filipino culture. We humbly urge your providing the Office of
Economic Development with the necessary funding to support programs that make
our islands the best in the world. Clearly I’m not Filipino, my husband is, and we
have been participating in this event for the six years that it’s been ongoing. I am a
board member of the Maui Filipino Chamber and proud to be, and also a co-chair on
the event. So, you know, I speak from personal experience because what my husband
and I do in the event is we have an art program that we have had every year, and it’s
free. And this has been really a passionate act of love that we approach this with.
And any of you that have been to our event, you know, the best time is when the door
is open and the children walk in with their parents and their grandparents and they
stand before their art and suddenly their whole posture changes and they’re standing
up straight. And this is one of the excitement things. We have a theme every year for
the art program, and I’m only speaking of what we do personally. I mean there’s
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dancing and there’s the food obviously, and there’s all the people that come. The
County and the Filipino Chamber have partnered together and we have an
immigration table. So when all the people gather, there is really an important part of
this festival that serves the community with the immigration services. So we feel this
is an opportunity that they know will be available to them to meet with representatives
that help them with their details and their paperwork.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Couch?

That’s…thank you for your testimony.

Any questions for the lady?

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Sabado, for being
here. What, where did you say it was taken out of? What item did you want to
increase?
MS. SABADO: The Act 15?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, you said -MS. SABADO: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --increase something to 85, put it back to 85.
MS. SABADO: Yes. Let me repeat that, reinstating the funding for the Culture and Arts
Program under the Office of Economic Development back to 80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
morning.

Any other questions?

Thank you very much for your testimony this

MS. SABADO: Thank you so much. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Moniz, followed by Rick Pounds.
MS. MONIZ: Sorry, I’m much shorter. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. MONIZ: I’m Stacey Moniz. I’m the Executive Director at Women Helping Women. And
typically I’m, even working in domestic violence I tend to be a little more upbeat but
I’m really kind of surprised and dismayed at the cut to our funding and actually to the
sweeping cuts for all the nonprofits. I understand you have a budget to balance, but
this came one week after a horrible murder on our island. And so for, especially for
Women Helping Women, it feels, it doesn’t make sense. And so when you make
sweeping cuts like that, that’s what it doesn’t make sense sometimes, you have to pull
out different things. I mean each and every one of the Members here, I can name
names of women who have been killed on Lanai. We’ve got Kim Batoon who was
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killed, shot to kill and killed. In Makawao we’ve Karolyn Alford. We got Molokai, you
know, Malia Kahalewai. We…I have been doing this for 30 years. I can name names
in every single district I’m sad to say but it’s true. Bridget Kawamoto in Wailuku. So
I, you know, I get that you have to balance your budget, but I feel like you have to be
paying attention ‘cause I also feel that when you strengthen the safety net, when you
strengthen one, you strengthen all, when you weaken one, you weaken all. It’s not
just Women Helping Women that’s going to struggle. We’re…I’m heading into a…God,
what’s it called, like an intervention thing. We’re coming together, all the first
responders, the domestic violence advocates, we’re all concerned. This tragedy
affected everyone. It’s not, you know, you drop a stone in a pond, the ripple effects are
huge. When you have a horrific murder in the middle of the store in Wailuku, it’s not
just Women Helping Women or parents and children together or Child and Family
Service or all the people that are closely associated with domestic violence, it’s that
ripple effect that everybody’s going to be affected. Our phones are ringing off the hook.
People are asking for help. Employees at Foodland, you know, we’ve got…so we’re
meeting today to talk about how do we help the first responders, how do we…and
we’ve been talking about this. So we’re talking about helping Fire, helping Police,
helping the medics. That’s what we do. We’re not asking for money for that, but it’s
all part of the same safety net. And personally I think if you can leave the taxes where
they were, people I believe would pay the taxes to know that their safety net was
intact. I also want to send out an invitation to everyone, we’re having a vigil this
afternoon at 4:30 in front of UH Maui College to honor Kehau Farias, the most most
recent victim of this horrific murder, and I invite you all to join us. And we’re having a
vigil at 5:15, a moment of silence. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Moniz? Thank you for your thoughts
this morning. Rick Pounds, and following Mr. Pounds will be Mike Ottman.
MR. POUNDS: Well here we are again. How are we doing? Many, many years, it’s been
20 years that I’ve had my bed and breakfast operation. I was one of the first to have a
legal permit in 1997. In 2009 I was able to reapply under the same system, and I
can’t thank you enough for all the help you’ve given me. You’ve seen me for 20 years.
This tax is absolutely crazy. We’re in a position right now in the County where we’re
good citizens, we all came forward, we all wanted to get permitted. I wanted to start a
permitting process which we did, and it’s successful because of you. This tax
implication where every inch of my property is taxed, the part that I live on, the…I live
in, the 500 square feet. You saw the presentation from Tom Croly and Denise last
night about how much that’s going to cost us compared to the hotels. This is
something that it’s going to tie everybody’s hands and it’s going to open up and bring
people back underground, and you remember those years. Riki, you remember those.
And I don’t want that, I want more people to apply. I want people to be in their
neighborhoods legally. The people that disturb people are not us. We have had no
complaints, none in 20 years, not one. And as far as all the permitted bed and
breakfasts, they have not either. So all those implications in the beginning, all those
false truths about we were disturbing neighborhoods, we’re the best people they have.
I want to thank you for your consideration of not allowing this to go through, because
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this will kill our small, tiny 118 people in Maui County. Thank you so much for your
support in the past years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for Mr. Pounds? Thank you for being here this morning.
Mike Ottman, followed by Amy Hanaialii Gilliom.
MR. OTTMAN: Good morning -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. OTTMAN: --Council. My name is Mike Ottman. I’m here on behalf of Surfrider Maui.
I’m a resident here. I’m also a member of Upcountry Rotary. I have a family here. I
have a business here. Love the island, love the community, and I know there are a lot
of wonderful causes. I’m here to talk on behalf of the Kuiaha lots in the Hamakua
costal land to protect those lots. We know what’s happening right now, those lots are
for sale.
Ultimately, you know, if sold, that land could be fenced off, made
inaccessible to citizens. I was just in touch with the president of Upcountry Rotary,
talked about as a child going down on that land with his family, fishing, farming. It’s
been a rich part of our history on Maui. We all know Uncle Al, rest his soul, you
know, he’s been down there for years involved with Haiku School with my kids going
there, going down to that land. To see it sold privately and then fenced off probably,
but just don’t want to see that happen. Surfrider really has an interest in preserving
this land as well. We have a commitment each year to raise money to pay for the
management of the land. We have an event coming up this summer. So we’re hoping
that the County would set aside the funds for acquisition of this land to preserve for
future generations. So we ask that you really consider this matter. I know with the
A&B land coming up there’s going to be a lot of talks about that, a lot of conversations
about that, but we want to start with this because we feel it’s very important. So
please do the right thing, provide the funds for the purchase of this land. Thank you
for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank
you for your comments -MR. OTTMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this morning. Ms. Gilliom. Following her will be Anela Gutierrez.
MS. GILLIOM: Aloha. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha. Good morning.
MS. GILLIOM: Aloha to you. I’m Amy Hanaialii Gilliom, Vice President of Hui O Wa`a
Kaulua, Maui’s double-hull voyaging canoe society. I’m here today to humbly ask for
your support for our voyaging and education programs. Hui O Wa`a Kaulua is a
nonprofit organization formed in 1975 to practice, preserve, and educate the
community on traditional Hawaiian canoe building, way finding, celestial navigation,
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and voyaging arts. Our vision is to cultivate and support future generations of
voyagers to perpetuate our culture. Our mission is to inspire all generations
improving knowledge of sustainability, Hawaiian culture and health through canoe
voyaging and ancient teachings.
Mo`okiha O Piilani, Maui’s first traditional
transoceanic voyaging canoe is, in more than 600 years was built and launched by our
organization in 2014. Named after Kihawahine the mo`o deity who was the beloved
daughter of Maui’s ruling chief Piilani, our voyaging canoe Mo`okiha O Piilani is truly a
cultural treasure. At just over 62 feet long, Mo`okiha O Piilani took over 19 years and
a million volunteer hours to build. Just last month, we finally secured our permanent
home for the canoe in Maalaea Harbor where people can see, touch, and come
onboard on a daily basis. She is ready to be shared as a floating classroom with the
people of Hawaii, but we need your help to make this happen. Over the past several
years, we have provided educational programs for schools across Maui. Schools like
Princess Nahienaena Elementary, University of Hawaii Upward Bound, Hana High
School, Sacred Hearts School, Maui High School, Tutu and Me Preschool,
Kamehameha Schools Maui, Punana Leo O Maui, and more. We have done outreach
to the community groups such as Kaunoa Center for the kupuna, Hawaiian Islands
National Marine Humpback Whale Sanctuary, Boys and Girls Clubs, and others. Our
education programs are increasingly in demand. Our goal is in expand our education
programs to reach every school and even more community organizations across the
entire Maui County. Our canoe as a floating classroom has the potential to inspire
and challenge greater numbers of students, community members . . .(podium lighting
system beeps). . . Oh, sorry, I thought it told me to get off. We are seeking 160,000 in
funding from the Mayor’s Office of Economic Development, Arts and Cultural Program
Grant as proposed by Councilmember Don Couch. Mahalo for that. Maui County
funding at this critical time in our development will allow us to expand our voyaging
and education programs and make available our floating classroom to every school
across Maui County. Mahalo nui so much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Oh and, Amy, you can also submit that so we’re happy to
take your written comments also.
MS. GILLIOM: I thought you wanted me to sing but okay. Do you want me to give it to you
now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, give it to the Staff please, Amy. Thank you, yeah. I was going to
ask you to sing but I never like share with everybody. So any questions for the lady on
her testimony, Members? Having none, mahalo for being here.
MS. GILLIOM: Mahalo. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anela Gutierrez, please. And following Anela will be Bridget Burger.
MS. GUTIERREZ: Aloha. Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
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MS. GUTIERREZ: My name is Anela Gutierrez. I’ve been with Hui O Wa`a Kaulua since
2007 as a crew member, former executive director, and I’m currently a board member.
I humbly ask for your support for funding for our educational programs. Throughout
my years with Hui O Wa`a Kaulua, I have watched many volunteers, youth, and
visitors come by and participate with the canoes. It has always amazed me the way
the canoes have touched many people when they come, especially for our youth. I
formerly ran a youth group with many children. About 20 of them stayed regularly for
many years. I watched these kids grow from intermediate school age throughout high
school, and many of these children came from broken homes and troubled homes.
These same group of kids came every week for many years to restore Mo`olele. They
helped build Mo`okiha. They learned about the canoes and we taught them about
navigating. They planted the bananas, ti-leaves, and canoe plants in Kamehameha Iki
Park. We taught them chants, protocols. They got to sail Mo`olele to Lanai, to Club
Lanai, and they even traveled and represented Hawaii doing cultural exchange with
other cultures in the Pacific Northwest, Canada, with the Maoris. It was a really
amazing experience. In this program, these children learned about sustainability,
navigating without relying on modern technology, protocols, and most of all they
learned about, they learned to take care of one another and to work together. He waa
he moku, he moku he waa. The canoe is our island and our island is our canoe, and
this is what we’re teaching the children. I proudly say that I still keep in touch with
the same group of kids. The last of the group of these kids are graduating this year.
Two of these kids went to the Coast Guard, one is in the National Guard right now,
three are majoring in Hawaiian Studies at UH Maui Campus and one in Hilo. Many of
these kids are in college or off, and are off to universities this fall. They are all
productive adults in their communities. It is programs like Hui O Wa`a Kaulua that
give our youth their confidence, self-worth, self-respect, and respect for others. Now
that Mo`okiha O Piilani has a home in Maalaea Harbor, it is our goal to make sure
that every child on Maui come to learn about the canoe. We are seeking $160,000 in
funding from the Mayor’s Office of Economic Development, Art and Cultural Program
Grant as proposed by Couch, Councilmember Don Couch. These values that we teach
our kids, you know, is really amazing. We want all the kids here on Maui to learn
those same values. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, questions for the lady? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you for being here this morning. What is your
current level of funding?
MS. GUTIERREZ: Our current level of funding, we have got $30,000 and but, you know,
what we need for the kids, in order to bring the kids from all, you know, our goal is to
get every intermediate school to get their kids to come and learn about the canoe.
Come to Maalaea, get on the canoe, learn about it, do the programs that we do with
them. They learn about the navigating, they learn about the sustainability, about
what we learn on the canoe as far as taking care of one another, rationing, being
sustainable. These are things that we want to offer to other organizations, youth
especially.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The, so you’re currently receiving 30,000?
MS. GUTIERREZ: We have received $30,000 and I believe that was for the Pasifika, Moana.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MS. GUTIERREZ: Not specifically for our educational program.
program, we have not been funded for.

So for our educational

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Maybe you want the next person, she’s the Treasurer.
MS. GUTIERREZ: Yeah, exactly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Gutierrez. We’ll ask for Bridget Burger and she’ll be
speaking, and she’s the Treasurer of the organization.
MS. BURGER: Aloha. Good morning, everybody.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. BURGER: Thank you so much for your time and attention today. I have prepared a
little statement and I’ll try and be on time. My name is Bridget Burger. I’m a resident
of Lahaina. I’m a math teacher at Kihei Charter School, and I’m also the Treasurer of
Hui O Wa`a Kaulua. So it is my duty in that regard to humbly ask for your support
for our programs today. We are asking the Council to please fund the proposal for
$160,000 from the Mayor’s Office of Economic Development, on behalf of our voyaging
and education programs. Our canoe Mo`okiha O Piilani is now in Maalaea and she is
just waiting to be used. She is ready to be utilized as a floating classroom as Amy
talked about for all of Maui County. That is our goal. Our education programs as
Anela told you, are different than what students experience inside a brick and mortar
classroom. Our programs offer an authentic cultural experience passed down through
the generations to us today to share with the students. The voyaging traditions are
ancient, and they are still being taught by us today. Our programs grow children in
the sense of developing their hearts and minds. The values and traditions of voyaging
and wayfinding are rooted in awareness, awareness of ourselves, awareness of the
world around us, and in the sense they give rise to greater connections, greater
meaning, greater sense of place, and a greater sense of being. Celestial navigation,
chants, and the star compass are all ancient technologies that allow students to know
who they are, where they have come from, where they are, and where they are going.
And that is what we do in our education programs at Hui O Wa`a Kaulua. They give
children the chance to discover who they are in a fun way and in a real way. Through
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our education programs, students practice building relationships, working together as
a crew, following direction, taking leadership roles, and testing themselves. They build
confidence as they do this, as they learn new skills; knot tying, sailing, Hawaiian star
lines, history of voyaging, plants and medicines, reading the swells, and celestial
navigation. The teachings of the canoe give rise to a sense of wonder, awe, and
respect for the world around us. I’ve experienced this myself through our voyaging
programs. I’ve seen it develop firsthand in my students at Kihei Charter and in the
participants in our programs. Please help us give everyone from keiki to kupuna in
Maui County, on Molokai and Lanai included the opportunity to experience our
floating classroom for the benefit of the future generations. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony.
MS. BURGER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any questions for the lady? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Ms. Burger, for being
here. So the 160 you’re looking for, is that only for the program, or are you looking for
120 for the program and then still 40 for the Pasifika program?
MS. BURGER: Yes, that would be correct. What we originally had submitted was the 120 to
fully fund our education programs. Moana Pasifika will add to that, so for a total of
160 it will -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. BURGER: --enable us to do both.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
MS. BURGER: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you get any support from OHA, State Department of Education?
MS. BURGER: No, not yet, but that’s my goal for next year is that when that OHA funding
cycle opens that we would apply for that. We do not…we do request from the
Department of Education that they pay for education programs, but if they cannot, we
still provide the program. So this grant would enable us to fully meet our costs of
providing the education programs. What we charge for a fieldtrip doesn’t cover the
actual cost. So this will enable us to meet our costs whether or not the DOE can pay.
But we haven’t gotten for any formal funding from DOE yet. Does that…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, what is your anticipated outreach to the number of students
or young people -MS. BURGER: Well what…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --that you’re trying to…I mean with the money you’re requesting, what is
your target?
MS. BURGER: Yeah, the…
CHAIR HOKAMA: A thousand young people, 6…500 young people?
MS. BURGER: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re trying to get a sense.
MS. BURGER: Yeah. What we would anticipate is that we could service at least 2 classes of
85 per week, so it would be…let’s say 150 students per week throughout the school
year, this would be…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty weeks.
MS. BURGER: Excuse me?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty weeks.
MS. BURGER: Yeah, for 40 weeks. So, you know, so that would put us…I would say plus
doing community outreach, 6,500 people across the County per year I’m thinking.
Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is any of this money to help pay for the staff?
MS. BURGER: It is. Because we are an all-volunteer organization right now, so that would
enable us to pay for an education coordinator.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So how much of this is for staff versus operations or programs?
MS. BURGER: Well, they would be the ones implementing the program, but the staff portion
of the 160 would be for I believe it’s…without the budget, I didn’t bring the budget
with me, but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Just give me a round number.
MS. BURGER: --75, I think 65,000-75,000 of that 160 would fund the staff positions to
implement that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your responses. Any other questions, Members, you
may have?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. So am I to assume that this is only open to
public schools, not to our private schools?
MS. BURGER: No, it is open to private schools. It’s open…we do service all schools who are
interested, but our goal with this would be to service the public schools that don’t
always have the funding to be able to take our program. So that’s, you know, the goal
would be that with each elementary, middle, and high school that we could offer them
at least one program a year and whether or not they could pay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, very good. And does the Kamehameha Schools
contribute anything beyond sending students to you?
MS. BURGER: No. We are in the works, we’re in negotiations with hopefully developing a
semester-long program with them, but that is currently kind of tied up in the legal
department and the insurances department, so no, not yet. We do not have a contract
with them.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It’s kind of sad because I would think they would be one of
the leaders in that respect, but, you know…
MS. BURGER: We are working toward that, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. BURGER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the lady? Thank you for your testimony.
MS. BURGER: Thank you all very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Don Gerry, please, and following Mr. Gerry will be Joseph Francisco.
MR. GERRY: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. GERRY: I want to thank the Councilmembers for letting me share my testimony and
very similar to some of these other testimonies this morning. As a B&B owner on
Maui, we’re the only homeowners who cannot have the $200,000 homeowner
exemption. Even though the B&B use of our homes is for a small portion of the
property, it’s being taxed for the entire land and the entire home. Our existing B&B
permit is being taxed more than double that amount of the Homeowner tax, and if this
proposed amount goes through, it will triple our tax on the entire land and the
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property. The Council cannot take their personal prejudices about a business that
they may not like and penalize them and reward the home businesses that they
approve of. Home business in home is home business period. The entire world
embraces mom and pop rentals. You can travel as far as Mongolia and rent a room in
someone’s home, farm, or yurt. For an island like Maui which is rated in the top ten
year after year, to penalize those who offer the same service is ridiculous. I feel the
Council continually tries to put the B&B owners out of business financially, and when
the Council should be trying to make it easier to apply for a permit and allow the
illegal rentals to become legal, they’re continually trying to put an undue burden on
this one home-based business. The State loses thousands of dollars by blocking
people from coming forward. We need people representing us and not those losing our
County and State from much needed revenue. With our GE Tax bill, permit fees of
$300, and a renewal fee of $200 for each additional year, just add this to the owners
paying a commercial rate of liability including the County of Maui as an additional
insured, I believe B&B owners are being taxed enough now. Home businesses,
daycare, one-station beauty salons, contractors, home offices, and yards for storage
that they’re using, who are using as much as 40 percent of their homes for
commercial use do not lose their homeowners exemption and do not pay a high rate
than homeowners do. Please consider lowering the Commercial [sic] Residential to
2 percent, that’s 426 on the 1,000, making it adjacent to all other category rate
adjustments of home businesses and not alienate the B&B owners. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the gentlemen on his
testimony? Mr. Gerry, thank you for your comments. Joseph Francisco, followed by
Roy Katsuda.
MR. FRANCISCO: Hello, my name is Joseph Francisco. I’m here supporting the Upcountry
Skateboard Alliance. I grew up Upcountry, a lifelong resident, and when I went to
Kalama School, there was an Upcountry Skate Park and that’s where I got the love of
skateboarding. And then sixth grade, they made the park, eighth grade, took it down,
so then all I had to go to was Kahului. You know you can imagine my mom. Mom,
please, please, please, Kahului, please, please, every day, every day, every day. You
know no chance. So like 13-14, I started hitchhiking, obviously getting into trouble
like on my way to Kahului Skate Park. And, you know, just remembering back to
Kalama days, like in between soccer practice or like, you know, just it was such a good
alternative to keep me out of trouble. Like crazy, and like, just like the, my friend
Nalu said at the last testimony, like the kids deserve it. You know Lahaina, Kihei,
Hana, Kahului, Paia, everybody’s got one.
Upcountry has one of the biggest
communities of skateboarders, like you’ve seen the, like we get a lot of kids out there.
Those are all Upcountry residents. Nobody coming from anywhere else, and we always
go to support Lahaina Skate Park, we always, you know, like I think these kids really
deserve it. I’m here supporting the kids, you know, like they can’t be here. We just
found this out last night that it got taken off the Budget and, you know, like they
really deserve it. Thank you so much. And, you know, like just alternatives to video
games, alternatives to, you know, going to the store, stealing candy, like just I don’t
know. I just really think there’s already a skate community in Pukalani. At any given
day, you go down to Pukalani Pool, 10 to 20 kids skateboarding illegally. You know
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I’ve had my skateboard taken away by police, you know, like four times I think
because it’s illegal. We’re skating on your sidewalks that you guys work hard for to
make nice and we go up and mess ‘em up. So, you know, I understand why it’s illegal,
but I’m just asking, you know, like we need a place. Like the kids are going to skate
no matter what, so if it’s…if you don’t give them a place to skate, you’re going to go
make brand new stairs and they’re going to go wax it up and skate it. Like so please,
like it’s just…yeah, thank you so much. And please reconsider.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank
you for your presence.
MR. FRANCISCO: Thank you, guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Roy Katsuda, followed by Sunny Jordan.
MR. KATSUDA: Good morning. Thank you, Chair. My name is Roy Katsuda. I’m the
Executive Director for Hale Mahaolu. Over a year, ago the Council approved a 201H
for our Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Upcountry Senior Housing Project. The Department of
Housing and Human Concerns submitted their list of recommendations, Hale
Mahaolu Ewalu was one of them. I’m asking this body to approve that selection by the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns for the Hale Mahaolu Ewalu Senior
Housing. We have been working on this project for a while. We have about 99 percent
ready on our permits and DCAB approvals. We are shovel-ready, but the funding from
the Affordable Housing Fund of 2½ million is critical, so I humbly ask for your
support.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. White?

Thank you, Mr. Katsuda.

Members, questions for Mr. Katsuda?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. What is the status of the State funding?
MR. KATSUDA: The State funding, the applications are due in the middle of June of this
year. Our opportunity for receiving those funds are looking much, much better. We
are confident that if we get this funding for, from the Affordable Housing Fund that,
that would be a tremendous help to obtaining the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit
funding and Rental Housing Trust Fund or Revolving Fund now. Without this piece, it
would make it much more difficult.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And can you provide us the split between State funding and County
funding for this project?
MR. KATSUDA: Okay. Well, there are other fundings, but the State funding would be
from…well, it’s really not State funding, except the one from the Legislature and the
Rental Housing Trust Fund. Legislature has approved $4 million for this project. We
are anticipating 3 million from the Rental Housing Trust Fund…Rental Housing
Revolving Fund. We believe we would receive about 8.5 million from the Low-Income
Housing Tax Credit program. Hale Mahaolu has already expended about $2 million
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for this project. County funds, County has purchased the land, 3½ million from the
County to purchase the land. That was about 3½-4 years ago.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. KATSUDA: And Hale Mahaolu 2 million. And we have other funding sources. The
Weinberg Foundation has pledged some funding at the tail end for the senior center
and adult daycare center. This is Phase I of our project. We won’t be doing adult
daycare center for this phase, we’re hoping to do that in the second phase. This phase
would include 39 units of residential units and the senior center.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Katsuda? Okay, thank you for your
testimony this morning.
MR. KATSUDA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sunny Jordan, please, and following Ms. Jordan will be Randy Pye.
MS. JORDAN: Good morning, Chairman -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. JORDAN: --Hokama. Good morning, Councilmembers. My name is Sunny Jordan. I
have a permitted B&B in Makawao. I’m here today because I heard that you,
Mr. Hokama, are proposing an almost 40 percent property tax increase for residents
with B&B operations. I couldn’t believe that was true so I went to the Maui County
website and found the press release, Hokama’s budget proposal cuts real property tax
rates; invest in infrastructure. I read the article and I did find the part that you would
cut real property tax rates but did not see one word about raising the property tax for
B&Bs by almost 40 percent. I would think that is a pretty bold proposal and
wondered why it wasn’t in the press release. Maybe it was thought to be too
controversial which I believe it is. There is a small group of legal B&B operators on
Maui. We are the ones that followed every single lengthy, detailed requirement of the
County to become legal. We paid large fees for the application, the permit, and the
renewal. We made sure our properties conformed in every way, that our neighbors
would not be impacted, that there was a designated parking place for each guest. We
installed a window in our bedroom of our unit large enough so a fireman could climb
through with full gear. We were required to indemnify the County with a million dollar
insurance policy. We lost our homeowners exemption of 200,000, and our tax
classification was changed to Commercialized Residential. Our tax rate more than
doubled at that time from $2 to $4.85. None of these are required or imposed upon a
homeowner with a long-term rental. The definition of Commercialized Residential:
one, applying commercial principles to something; two, a use for profit. I don’t
understand how your governing body can in good conscious decide that a B&B home
business be singled out when homes across the County are bursting with home
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businesses operating with no regulations, no permits, no Commercialized Residential
tax rate even though they are renting ohanas, bedrooms, fixing cars, sewing clothes,
printing t-shirts, or conducting one of a thousand other businesses. I propose that
you consider what is fair and just, and that leveling the Commercialized tax rate for
only that part of the B&B property that is used for business. The B&B on our
2½…2.25 acre occupies 5 percent of our property yet it is billed for 100 percent. I
reiterate that I am against raising the Commercialized Residential rate. Thank you for
your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Jordan. Members, any questions for
the lady? Again, thank you for being here. Randy Pye, followed by Rodney Kilborn.
MR. PYE: Aloha. My name is Randy Pye. I am a 55-year-old skateboarder. I do have a
skateboard company, and part of the reason I started my company at the beginning of
this year is I thought we were getting a park Upcountry. I believe it was advertised in
the paper that we might have gotten the funding, I’m not 100 percent of that. I’ve
been to a couple of the meetings, the skateboarders are usually the last ones there.
We need a park Upcountry, we don’t have one. I have to drive from Keokea to Paia. I
don’t know if you guys know about Yancey Meyer’s skate school, I’ve watched in the
past year 6 kids come in, now there’s 40 plus every week there that come.
Skateboarding is here to stay, it’s not going anywhere. Mr. White, you said you used
to be a skateboarder. Mr. Victorino, your son if he didn’t have the infrastructure of
baseball, would he be the baseball player he is? And, Mr. Carroll, you told me last
year if we got you the land, you would get us the money. We have the land, the
infrastructure is there. It’s not gonna get any cheaper next year or the year after or
the year after. Okay. So if you put it off now, we’re never going to get it. Upcountry
will never have one. And Mr. Victorino told me we need to lower this cost by getting
some private funding. If we need private funding, let us know. We will rally and get
you the money. What do you need? You tell us, we’ll go out and get it. There is
money on this island. I watch the kids come up to Paia in Teslas. You don’t think
there’s any money here? I just need to know what do I gotta do. I was told by the
County that you guys have spent $100,000 already on trying to get this park done, to
get everything. You’ve brought California skate parks over here. They’ve been here
twice. They’ve gone around and looked at all the infrastructure. Okay. They’ve told
us we can’t have private entity come into this, but then Mr. Victorino told me the other
day to my face, we need to lower it, you need to get some private funding. Hey, Oprah,
you’re my next door neighbor, I need $100 million, I need $1 million, whatever, I don’t
care. I need to know where to go to find this money to get this skate park built. We
have professionals in every board sport in Hawaii. We have world champions of every
board sport. We have Olympic gold medalists, snowboarders from this island. We
don’t have one skateboarder. Okay. You tell me how much money you need and how
much time, I’ve got to find it. I will rally. I will get everybody together. I’ll go knock on
doors of people I know that have money and I’ll say give me money. I’m not gonna ask
you, give me money. I need a skateboard park Upcountry for the children. I don’t
know where you find any more determination in a sport. Kids hook themselves off of
ten-foot stairs onto the ground, onto the ground, onto the ground and get up and do it
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over and over and over again. That’s determination. They will be the leaders of our
future. Our keiki, everybody here talks about the keiki. This is for them. Questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Pye. Any questions -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for the gentleman?
MR. PYE: Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here this…oh, you do have a question, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, he didn’t have a question, Mr. Pye, but thank you for your -MR. PYE: All right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --passionate testimony this morning. Rodney Kilborn, please. Following
him will be Teya Penniman.
MR. KILBORN: Aloha, Councilmember.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. KILBORN: Aloha mai kakou, you guys. Rodney Kilborn. I’m here to represent…one
local boy, you know, from Haiku side. Love the ocean, love the aina, love people, love
kids. I’m here for two things. One is your guys’ coqui frogs that came all the way from
Puerto Rico. I live in Haiku. Actually I live in Haiku Hill. I just one of the broke local
guys over there, I’m under well-to-do guys, paid the price. But Maliko Gulch is right
across from me and then you get the Punawai Gulch which is Hana side of Haiku Hill,
and it started off like two years ago with the coqui frogs in Maliko. You could hear ‘em
far away like three-five, about two-three years ago. Today, last night millions, millions
of coqui frogs in Maliko Gulch. Now the Punawai side of Hana side of that Maliko
Gulch, if you look Haiku Hill, if you’re looking at the mauka side on your left, they get
one small little gulch there goes through that side. Now they’re in that area. Last
night, I went spray to about 11 o’clock, guys, and I’ve been spraying, taking care by
myself, but only my property and the neighbors, they scared of the dark some of the
guys over there, plus plenty makule, sorry, yeah I’m one of those. But hard to see at
night, so I was there. On spring I do, did get rid of my side but still get millions. We
gotta get the funds for the coqui, guys. If not, going be coqui out all the way to Hana if
you guys not going to stop ‘em. Two, I’m here because of Hamakualoa. That’s one
special place. I spent over 30 years over there. I watched that thing grow from
not…from two guys to three guys, now to hundreds of people coming into that place at
the Hamakualoa. Thanks to Mr. Bode was the other guy besides myself that was
there. The guy went put so much mana, so much aloha into the aina and the kids,
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and I am shame to say, to see this place get lost and go into somebody’s hands that
shouldn’t be but the people. Bode, yeah. Lot 3, 4, and 5, mahalo, Mr. Guzman, for
that 6.5 mil. I think we should get 20 mil. Why just go 3, 4, 5? Why not go all the
way up to 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 and Oili? That whole place is so flat, so nice, before
Hana, you get into the Hana turn . . .(podium lighting system beeps). . . beeping. But
before you get to the Hana turn, everything is cliffs over there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You need to conclude, Mr. Kilborn.
MR. KILBORN: I’m conclude. Get money for the skateboarders too, let’s help these guys out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on.
MR. KILBORN: But I’m done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on.
MR. KILBORN: Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on, Mr. Kilborn. Is there any questions -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on, for Mr. Kilborn on -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the three parts he covered? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I know he get three parts, I was going cover just two
of the three. Got you on the skate park. And, Rodney, I agree with you, what
Mr. Bode did really was and that’s one of the reasons why I can support getting this
land. Because he put sweat equity like you into that and has made it really palatable
to be used again. So my question is, like I had told the other guys, the skateboard,
are we willing to go out there and try look for some private funding also? And I’ve
already talked with the State, I’m looking to help like we did at Lipoa Point, get State
to help us with that also. So are you guys willing to help me with the State?
MR. KILBORN: Surfrider Foundation is involved with this too, and we do have some other
organization. I cannot answer that yet until I speak with someone. Maybe you can
ask somebody from the Hamakualoa that here today that can answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, we’ll ask that question later, Chair. I just wanted to
know -MR. KILBORN: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --would you help us with that project?
MR. KILBORN: Oh, definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that’s all I need to know, Rod.
MR. KILBORN: Definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. KILBORN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for Mr. Kilborn?
MR. KILBORN: Last chance, guys.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here. Teya Penniman, please.
MS. PENNIMAN: Good morning, Chair Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. PENNIMAN: --and Councilmembers. Teya Penniman with the Maui Invasive Species
Committee. First I want to thank you for adding $300,000 to the Budget for the coqui
frog Maliko project to help cover that gap that we talked about. We appreciate that
addition and the recognition that it’s going to take quite a few years to address this
problem. I also am requesting that you revisit the $400,000 cut to the Office of
Economic Development’s environmental funds line item. Environmental protection
requires a coordinated and concerted action among a variety of partners. While the
watershed partnerships and MISC work on things like feral ungulates and Miconia,
fire ants, coqui frogs, our other partners take on other challenges that are covered
under this funding. A lot of those are, address the marine environment such as the
Maui Nui Resource Council and Maui Nui Seabird Recovery Project. And some
address issues such as preserving and protecting our rare Hawaiian plants while
providing opportunities for visitors to learn about our natural and cultural resources
such as the D.T. Fleming Arboretum and the Maui Nui Botanical Garden. As you
know, our marine and terrestrial resources are a major reason that Maui remains
such a popular tourist destination. The proposed cut would have major impacts on all
of these projects. For MISC as I’ve also looked at how our priorities have shifted over
the last several years in terms of where we have to put our resources, in Fiscal
Year 2012, we spent approximately $17,000 on fire ants. By the last fiscal year that
had increased to over $250,000. Additional OED funding helped us cover only a
portion of those costs. So at this point if there is a major decrease in funding for that,
for the Environmental Fund portion, I would expect that we would also see a decrease
in our funding. I also want to note that OED, I know you had questions, Chair
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Hokama, about not wanting to write a blank check to this funding source. The Office
of Economic Development I think has developed a very robust and professional
approach to allocating these funds where it’s done by a proposal process.
Additionally, having flexibility of some funds for an emergency environmental response
fund allows them to respond to either unexpected opportunities or threats. That’s an
approach that the State has long talked about doing, but once again Maui County is
out there doing it. Thank you for your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Penniman.
Ms. Cochran?

Any questions for the lady, Members?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Ms. Penniman, for all the
work you do and the importance of invasive species. And hearing some testimony a
bit ago though, are you…we are supporting your efforts definitely as you can see, and
almost feels like or seems like from residents that it’s not a losing battle but it’s not
being contained by any means either. And so just wanting to make sure that any
additional funding being added that this is going to start regressing back and not
spreading out as handsome buggah Mr. Rodney Kilborn just testified. So I don’t
know, there’s a question in there.
MS. PENNIMAN: If your question is are we doing enough, will we have enough, I think that’s
the implied question. We will certainly know more over the course of this next year
where we are. We do know that by…what we’re looking at is tripling our current
staffing level. That’s going to make a difference, but I also know that it’s, it is a huge
problem. The scale of it is it’s hard to convey. The fact that our residents are coming
saying it’s crazy around our houses, our homes means that they’re not, they can’t
even see, they have no idea how many frogs are actually there. And some of it as I
expressed before or tried to explain before, we don’t know the full extent of the
infestation because there are places we haven’t gotten to yet. We will have a much
better handle on that over the course of the next year, and I would be happy to come
update you throughout that process.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much for your work.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the lady? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Going off from Councilmember Cochran, help
me to understand why the invasive or invasiveness of the coqui frog has not been
under control, what I’m hearing testimonies from people here as well as when we go
out to the districts. You were awarded what is it, couple million? Was it because you
weren’t able to draw that down yet, or what is the problem with trying to address it?
Or is it a cause that you, we don’t know how to address it or rid of the problem that we
have?
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MS. PENNIMAN: I think there are a couple of questions in there. One is why haven’t we
done it yet and in terms of the funding that we received this fiscal year. We’re only
just getting that funding for a couple of reasons. One, there was a delay on our side in
being ready to ramp up for it, but the other is that in addition to that, it’s been tied up
in, it was tied up for quite a while between the County and the State in terms of the
County saying we need you to indemnify us and the State saying we can’t. So it was a
back and forth with the lawyers on it. So we have that funding now. We had already
moved forward with hiring positions with the expectation we were going to have that
funding. So it’s multiple factors that have led to that. Do we have the ability to
control? We have the tools and the techniques, we know how to do it. If we have the
resources, we know how to do it, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I have another question for you.
MS. PENNIMAN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So is your conduit for the financial RCUH? Is that…and
what’s their percentage they take off this monies that we give you or disburse to
your…
MS. PENNIMAN: Yes, we go through the University of Hawaii and there are two components
to that. One is RCUH, the Research Corporation University of Hawaii, and then the
other is the Pacific Cooperative Studies Unit. And the administrative cost for that is
10 percent for RCUH and 5 percent for the Pacific Cooperative Studies Unit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you.
MS. PENNIMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for paying attention to that, Members. We’re going to go and
ask our District Offices if there’s anyone there that would like to share testimony with
the Members. Hana Office, Ms. Lono, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Lanai, Ms. Fernandez, anyone wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Molokai, Ms. Alcon, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, ladies. We shall return to you at the end of the
Chambers. Rob Parsons, if you would please come down, share your thoughts with
us. And then Tiare Lawrence will be next.
MR. PARSONS: Aloha, Chair and Members. My name is Rob Parsons, I serve as Maui
County Environmental Coordinator, part of the team in the Office of Economic
Development. Through our Environmental Protection index code, we provide support
to many of our conservation partners who are working on the frontlines to protect,
preserve, and restore the natural resources and ecosystems that help define who we
are in Hawaii. Thank you all for the support you have provided over the years to our
amazing partners and their dedicated efforts. I answered some of your direct
questions last week but felt it is important to testify today to underscore how vitally
important these funds are. When you revisit the proposed cut from 1.4 million to
1 million of the Environmental Protection Program, it’s my hope that you will restore
the original level of funding which is the same as it’s been in Fiscal Year ’14 and ’15.
Last week, we heard inspiring testimony from our many partners: Maui Nui Marine
Resource Council, Maui Nui Seabird Recovery Project, Maui Huliau Foundation, Hui O
Wa`a Kaulua, Koieie Fishpond, Maui Invasive Species Committee, and others. It’s
clear that they are doing amazing work, maximizing their organizational capacity,
continually improving and greatly leveraging these funds with volunteer efforts. A few
grantees in this fiscal year’s Budget are there only on a one-time basis with the unique
circumstance of a global conservation event coming to Hawaii this year. There are
many other worthwhile eco-organizations and efforts who will be seeking in FY ’17,
and our office carefully evaluates each proposal that comes our way. Out of the
1.4 million Environmental Protection funding, MISC receives $895,000, core funding
for all their activities and target species. A cut of 400,000 would mean a mere
105,000 available for all our other environmental efforts. I can’t bear to see that
outcome which is why I’m here before you today, just me on behalf of our partners to
save time and effort of asking them all to come and appear again. Together with the
$2 million that Department of Water Supply provides to our watershed partnerships,
$3.3 million overall for environmental stewardship represents just half a percent of the
overall Maui County Budget. Maui County environmental efforts are a way of building
our green economy by supporting conservation jobs and opportunities. Environmental
protection goes hand in hand with our support for the visitor industry. We can’t have
one without the other. It’s essential that we don’t backslide on our efforts, and thus I
encourage you to restore the funding to the full level of 1.4 million in Line 911 in the
document before you. Yes, 911. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. White?

Thank you, Mr. Parsons.

Members, questions for Mr. Parsons?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. You know this body has always fully supported the
Environmental Protection allocations, but I think the reason the Chair’s made some
adjustments is that when I look at the amount that has actually been encumbered so
far, this is a report as of April 30th and so far only…well, I’ll use, there’s a remaining
balance of 80 percent. So we have 1 point…1,095,000 out of a total budgeted amount
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of 1,365,000. So part of the problem that we have with this line is the same challenge
we’ve had with the coqui frog issue where RCUH and others that are, that the various
organizations end up going through are gumming up the works. And so I’m concerned
that this is the same kind of challenge that we have had with the coqui frogs where we
allocate the money because there’s a need and an emergency that we want to address,
but somehow the money turns into…well for lack of a better word, glue because it just,
it doesn’t move. And so I don’t know how we can address this. I wasn’t aware that
this line item had the same challenge that we have with the coqui frogs, but we’re
going to need to address that because it’s much easier to budget if the money is
allocated each year instead of being rolled over. And so we have 300,000 allocated for
coqui frogs this year and that’s largely because the $1.2 million has not even, you
know, has hardly been spent. So I don’t know if you have any clarification for us, but
that’s I believe the challenge that the Chair was addressing with his adjustment.
MR. PARSONS: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Parsons?
MR. PARSONS: That’s, I share your frustration, and maybe collectively we can brainstorm a
way that we can really tighten this up. Because it’s frustrating for us to have our
partners ready to go, and there’s a couple things that contribute to it. Our own
system of checks and balances, I understand why it’s in place, but it can take 60 to 90
days from the point where a full grant proposal is provided to our office before we get it
back. And, you know, it…we have good people in our office that are checking and
tracking, but maybe we just need to be much tougher on our deadline so that we’re
not in a last-minute situation saying hey, if you want your money, you know, we’re
already into the next budget cycle. So that’s, that is frustrating, and I’d be happy to
work with you to tighten that up.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions for Mr. Parsons? Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Parsons. One of
the things that the Chair noticed our, some of our reactions to is when we grant these
money to these folks, they go through some entity and it appears that RCUH is taking
10 percent and then the other…
MR. PARSONS: PCSU.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, is taking 5 percent. Is there…I mean and yet we still
fund some of UH’s stuff in other areas. So it just gnaws at us a little bit that, you
know, they’re…we’re trying to give funds to these folks to do things and an amount is
being skimmed off the top for administration, and I’m…10 percent is awfully high. My
question to you is, is there any organization or is there any way the County can deal
directly with these organizations so they don’t lose that much in administrative fees?
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MR. PARSONS: Yeah, I think so. I mean actually some of the partners have shopped around
to try to get the most favorable rate for administrating their grants. Tri-Isle is familiar
to all of you and is the fiscal agent for a lot of our partners. They have recently raised
their admin fees from 10 to 12 percent which has been a cause of concern for some of
our environmental partners. And it actually helped them make the choice to go to the
State in the case of MISC.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, if I can follow up on that, please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what I prefer, I prefer we maybe call Mr. Parsons back when
we -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --review this, OED’s, we go to the OED Budget lines.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would like to allow those that are waiting to testify to be able to share
their comments with us. So we can ask Mr. Parsons back to assist us later when we
hit the program area. Is that all right, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Parsons, thank you.
MR. PARSONS: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll touch base with you. Okay. Tiare Lawrence, please.
MS. LAWRENCE: Aloha mai kakou, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. LAWRENCE: My name is Tiare Lawrence, I’m a resident of Upcountry, Maui. I’m here in
strong support and asking you folks to please support the skate park Upcountry. I’ve
attended many of the meetings, and Pukalani Community Association came out also
in support of this skate park. I myself have two keiki I know would utilize that park. I
don’t think that we should have to look for private funding. I think this is something
that the County should pay for, so I please humbly ask that you commit to getting the
skate park built. Also, I’m also here for, to ask you for your support in Hui Wa`a
Kaulua [sic], because I am one of the many young people from Lahaina that grew up
going to the Hui. I didn’t…I came from a troubled house, and the Hui was kind of the
safe place for me. I’ve been on many sailing trips on Mo`olele so please support Hui
Wa`a’s efforts. I’m also a big advocate for Women Helping Women. I have a lot of
friends that came from domestic abusive situations that utilize their services and are
now out of that, those relationships. And also I am a graduate of Ka Ipu Kukui in
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2010, please continue to support that program. It’s important that we give a place, a
venue, education, resource for people like myself who are passionate about being
involved in community issues. And Ka Ipu Kukui really helped me to learn how to sit
in a room and agree to disagree with others. So please support Ka Ipu Kukui because
it’s beneficial to people who really want to be engaged in the community. Also the
Hawaii Farmers Union United apprenticeship program, we know what’s happening on
Maui as far as agriculture is concerned, and that program is very beneficial to those
who want to pursue farming in the future. And also I’m wearing the Hamakualoa
shirt. And please kakoo Hamakualoa. I agree with Uncle Rodney, we should go for
Lot 1. Those other lots they’re golden and I think if you guys support saving
Hamakualoa, when you drive by or when your grandchildren drive by later on that
they can look back and say my tutu or my grandma or my mom helped save this land
for future generations. So please, please fund the purchase of Hamakualoa. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony, Ms. Lawrence. Any questions for the lady?
Thank you for being here this morning.
MS. LAWRENCE: Okay. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tova Callender. Following her will be Albert Perez.
MS. CALLENDER: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. CALLENDER: Thank you very much for this opportunity to come and speak with you.
My name is Tova Callender and I work as the West Maui Watershed Coordinator,
supporting the goals of the West Maui Ridge to Reef Initiative. I’m here in support of
the Department of Public Works’ MS4 Program. I appreciate that some of the funding
and one of the engineer positions has come through for that and that’s fantastic. But
I would like to share our perspective on why it would be great if the additional
engineering position and the balance of the budget was restored for the MS4 Program.
So our group is coming from the perspective of water quality concerns. We love it
when Maui is number one in something, but right now Maui is number one in the
number of impaired water bodies in the State. This is according to the Department of
Health Integrated Report. It’s based on some old data but the findings aren’t good.
Through our project, we’ve compelled the Department of Health to increase the
frequency of sampling so we actually have much better granularity of data for West
Maui for water quality for the past year and the news is not any better then. You can’t
see this but let me tell you, one is where the State standard is right at the bottom.
Every bar above it is showing a parameter that’s exceeding. So in some cases here,
the top graph is turbidity, we’re almost 60 or more than 60 times over the State
standard. So that’s the clarity of water that we’re measuring. So across every
parameter we’re looking at, we’re having trouble. Through the Ridge to Reef Initiative
we’ve had a few contaminant-oriented studies and every study--although the sample
sizes have been small to date--have come back with serious concerns about the
concentrations of lots of frightening things across a number of classes that are
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showing up in our coastal waters. The community is really getting behind this issue.
Last week we had our first community volunteer meeting for our Hui O Ka Wai Ola
which is a volunteer program to sample water. The phone was ringing off the
week…the phone all week people calling interested in this program wanting to get
involved and personally going out and getting water quality samples so we have the
information we need to make decisions about what we’re doing on land to improve
water quality. So it’s not just us, there’s a clean water committee from Maui Nui
Marine Resource Council that’s behind it, that’s behind the MS4 process as well.
What is great about the elements of that MS4 Program is it’s a very broad approach to
try and make the tweaks that are needed. It’s looking at the construction stuff, the
post-construction, the outreach and education, a lot of the same things that we do
through our programs. But we’re seeing that compelling need and it’s driven by the
science that’s saying we have a problem. The beauty of the MS4 Program is it’s a way
that the County can take a leadership role in actually beginning to address those
problems Countywide. We know the geography of that program is likely to change and
expand, and we need the County to get onboard on top and get rolling a program
that’s going to help protect our coastal waters. Last bit. Okay. As I’m walking away,
as a board member of Malama Maui Nui Community Workday, it would be wonderful
if you could restore the Line Items 131 and 132 related to the IT needs to support
them progressing forward in time in a much more of a modern way. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Callender. Any questions for the lady?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Tova. Thanks for being
here and the work that you do. West Maui Kumuwai, are we…are you getting County
funding in any way?
MS. CALLENDER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I…and you’re doing a lot of water quality monitoring as
you just stated.
MS. CALLENDER: Yes, we’re getting grants. It’s a combination of Department of Health
ramping up and getting private grants to fund the community initiative.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. I believe through DEM, Chair, I think
there’s 50,000 for water quality monitoring grants of sorts, and it is open for an RFP
via nonprofits and whatever entity that may do such work. Sounds like something
that would fit in for you folks.
MS. CALLENDER: That is fantastic news.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so I, that is very alarming, the graphs that you did
show. And understanding that it’s kind of the end result, there is a source and cause
of why the water is this way. And so where, how are you folks addressing that? The
root of it is mauka which is now ending makai.
MS. CALLENDER: Exactly, and that’s a very good question. That is the entire focus of the
Ridge to Reef Initiative, to do the study of the landscape, to characterize where those
hotspot sources are, and then develop the projects and push forward with the science
that’s needed to informed decision making of where we intervene within that
landscape in order to make a difference for coastal water quality and coastal
ecosystems. And of course coastal users, it’s all wrapped into the same thing, water
quality is for everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you for the work you do. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions? Thank you for being here. Albert Perez, followed by
Martin Herling.
MR. PEREZ: Aloha, Chair, Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. PEREZ: Albert Perez, Maui Tomorrow Foundation. I’m testifying in support of several
different Budget items. First off, $6½ million from the existing Open Space Fund to
purchase the Kuiaha Lots 3, 4, and 5. Thinking forward 50 years from now, people
are going to look back on this as a wise investment. We’ll be glad that we had some
foresight. I would also like to urge the Council and/or the Administration to put
together an open space acquisition plan so that lands can be acquired before their
value skyrockets. And speaking of skyrocketing agricultural land values, I really
would like to support some funding for agricultural zoning inspectors so that we can
give farmers a fighting chance to succeed by keeping agricultural land prices low. Also
I’d like to support $3.2 million from the Affordable Housing Fund to purchase 238
acres in Waiehu which can be used for affordable farming and some housing for true
farmers, not gentleman farmers. I’d like to support a $87,000 grant to the Maui
Farmers Union United of which $12,000 is going to be designated for a concept plan
for a food hub. Food hubs are essential to encourage new farmers to enter the
market, and they can include processing facilities, plant nurseries, and farmers
markets which in various places that I’ve been, become real community centers and
tourist attractions as well. So they can become real economic engines for the
community and help our farmers to succeed. Finally, I would like to support whatever
funding you can find, and thank you for allocating some money for invasive species.
This is another wise investment because the cost now is going to pale in comparison to
the economic devastation if the fire ants take hold and if the coqui frogs spread out of
control any more than they are. So the cost now is going to be minimal compared to
the effects on our main industry. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any questions for Mr. Perez? We thank you for your
comments this morning. Martin Herling, to be followed by Lucienne de Naie.
MR. HERLING: Hello, Members. It’s an honor to be here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please use the microphone, Mr. Herling.
MR. HERLING: Good morning, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. HERLING: It’s an honor to be here and talking in front of you. I have a bed and
breakfast called the Banyan Tree Bed and Breakfast in Makawao, and I was dismayed
to hear about the raise of the Commercial [sic] Residential property tax rate. You
know a few years ago as other people testified, we lost our Residential rate and it was
raised, so, you know, my rate went, increased by 100 percent, you know, at that time.
And so we’ve learned to live with that. You know we’re in a situation where we have a
certain amount of rooms, and we don’t have any way of expanding our income because
we can’t have any kind of other establishment like hotels have restaurants on the
property, hotels can apply to expand their number of rooms. And we’re just being
squeezed by a higher tax rate without any way of recouping that rate. And, you know,
we don’t operate at a large profit margin already. And there’s lots of competition out
here. And I do appreciate the Council addressing that issue of many illegal properties.
And I know that, you know, that has had an effect on less illegal properties operating.
And I just don’t understand how you’re raising our rates and lowering other property
tax rates. I’m not asking that you make a reduction in our rates, but why are we
singled out? And we’re so vulnerable, all of us, we’re just small homeowners and we
don’t have big large profitable businesses. And this would make it very difficult
eventually to stay in business, who knows. So I appreciate your consideration of our
situation. So thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Herling, for sharing your comments with us. Members,
questions for the gentleman? Having none, Mr. Herling, we appreciate you coming
forward.
MR. HERLING: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Lucienne de Naie, please, and following Ms. de Naie will be Kimokeo
Kapahulehua.
MS. de NAIE: Aloha, Chair Hokama.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. de NAIE: Good morning. Good morning, Committee Members. Lucienne de Naie, I’m
testifying on behalf of the Sierra Club Maui Group this morning as their Conservation
Chair. Of course we support more funding for Malama Maui Nui and for MISC and all
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of these, the Environmental Fund of the OED, because it’s a thin green line to make
sure that we can respond to the things that do not just threaten our environment but
our, you know, our water supplies, the health of our oceans, and these, the health and
safety of our people. I’m here today to direct your attention to our support for the
funding in the Open Space Fund to purchase the lands at Kuiaha. And I know there’s
a little bit of confusing like, you know, why don’t we get Lot 1 instead of these 3 lots
because it’s less per acre, so forth and so on. I’d like to address that a little bit. Lot 1
should be purchased, it should be public. Oili lot which is the cheapest of the lots,
$17,000 an acre for 277 acres should be purchased. They definitely should both be
purchased. But the question is what do we do now? Those lots do have some issues.
They have more issues than the 3 lots we’re talking about now, and they might be a
better fit for a public/private type of acquisition process. And there is a discussion on
that. Mr. Victorino I think is working. There are folks through Surfrider Foundation
that are also working on that. There’s a new group Malama Hamakua Maui that is
working with the lineal descendants so that, you know, that part can be in place.
Those lots, they really need the pono sort of acquisition strategy. We’re not there yet.
The three lots that we know about today, they have been used. They’ve been used by
Mr. Alex Bode beautifully. Sierra Club volunteers have gone down there and done
service outings. We have seen the potential of these lands. We have seen how many
keiki have enjoyed them. There was a traditional hale down there. There was farms
down there. There was a bunkhouse, the kids could camp. There was a corral, there
was horses.
It all got torn down because Mr. Bode unfortunately had a
month-to-month lease with A&B. That was a crying shame. In honor of his memory,
we really should purchase those lands, let them be used like that again. There is a
plan to manage. There, I mean there is a group that wants to manage. And all of the
groups that use these lands like Surfrider, Sierra Club, Haiku Community Association
all want to raise money for Malama Maui Nui…Malama Maui…Malama Hamakua
Maui, because here’s the focus of where we can get the job done. And so we ask your
support and sorry for the confusion. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony this morning, Ms. de Naie.
questions for the lady on what she shared this morning? Mr. Couch --

Members,

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you have a question for clarification?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Thanks, Ms. de Naie, for your testimony. You were
saying Lot 1. It’s my understanding Lot 1 just got sold but I may be mistaken.
MS. de NAIE: Well, I’ve heard that several times, but so far none of the folks in the real
estate industry that are very supportive of it being public have notified us about that.
I heard that it got sold oh, a number of months ago. But, you know, you may have the
updated information.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh no, I wasn’t sure.
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MS. de NAIE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But if it…you’re, so you’re saying if it wasn’t sold then…
MS. de NAIE: If it wasn’t sold, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. de NAIE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. de NAIE: But these three lots it’s my understanding have not been sold and they’re a
proven entity, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for Ms. de Naie? We thank you for your testimony -MS. de NAIE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this morning.
Joyclynn Costa.

Kimokeo Kapahulehua, please.

Following him will be

MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Good morning, Chairman Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: --and Councilmembers. Mahalo for giving me this opportunity. I’m
here this morning to ask you to support the proposal that Councilmember Don Couch
brought to help us out with from the Mayor’s Office Economic Development and Arts
and Culture Program for Hui O Wa`a Kaulua. You have had the opportunity to see
our Vice President Amy Gilliom, our Treasurer Bridget Burger, and Anela Gutierrez, a
board member. And just recently joining our board was Galen Nakamura, Rick
Bissen, Yvonne Biegel, Kaui Kahaialii and Katrina Oliveira. And so yesterday I wanted
to tell you that we have been partners with you for nearly 40 years now at the
Kamehameha Iki Park. So we are very familiar with you and us as being ohana for
such long. So we mahalo you for giving us a home and we will continue to ask you to
give us that home to continue to do the work that our women had come here and tell
you about that. And I just want to say that yesterday it was just environment and
culture. It was just the ocean and the culture. And today now we have environment,
culture, science, technology, and economics. Yesterday we just had a canoe called
Mo`olele, today we have Mo`okiha O Pi`ilani which is at Maalaea and Mo`olele in
Lahaina. Yesterday we just had the Hokulea and soon became Hawai`iloa, Makali`i,
Hokualaka`i, and Namahoe to be launched in Kauai and the Mo`okiha O Pi`ilani,
Hikianalia. We now have nearly about five or seven canoes that voyages and we are so
proud to have that for our deal. The educational program they bring to you is to be a
satellite to Lanai, Molokai, Hana, and Central Maui and Lahaina. So I just want to tell
you what was yesterday and what is today. Yesterday our vision was just by eyesight
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we can Lanai, Molokai, Molokini, and Kahoolawe. Today our children being navigators
have a vision of beyond the galaxies of the universe by using the stars and navigating
themselves, so we ask you to support that. That’s my first thing I wanted to tell you
that. And so as the partners that we’ve been with you and we appreciate to continue
to be partners in this new program in this new year. I know it’s, I just got a minute or
28 seconds, I just wanted to tell you to support my friend Bode, Alex Bode who had
bought that property Wai Ki Kena. And so we support the Don Guzman proposal
before you to acquire that and keep that in open space and continue to have our
children to foster what he had brought to all of us. He’s a hunter, he’s a fisherman,
he’s a truly mauka/makai and lived that and died by that. So thank you so much.
Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mahalo. Any questions for the gentleman on testimony? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And good morning, thank you for being
here. Hui O Wa`a is…so no longer at Kamehameha Iki Park?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: No, that’s not correct. We are still at Kamehameha Iki Park. The
Wa`a, Mo`okiha O Pi`ilani Kaulua is at Maalaea, but our home base is at Kamehameha
Iki Park.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So like your office and that’s your base -MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Yes, and…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you work out of?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the physical canoes are one Maalaea and then Mo`olele
is at the, in Lahaina Harbor?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: It’s not in Lahaina. We are right now on restoration of Mo`olele with
getting it back into the water in Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that is the slip via Lahaina Restoration
Foundation, they’ve been paying for many years on?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: We no longer have a slip with Lahaina Restoration Foundation. That
was given up due to their board decision and things that was…we weren’t…so we don’t
have a slip no more in Lahaina. We can launch the Mo`olele from the beach to go out
and back and forth.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you very much -MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for your work. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions for the gentleman? Thank you very
much for your testimony.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: Mahalo, Chair. Mahalo, Councilmembers. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha. Joclynn Costa, please, and following her will be Gretchen Cardoso.
MS. COSTA: Good morning, Councilmembers. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Long time no see.
MS. COSTA: My name is Joclynn Costa. I represent the Aha Moku Hamakualoa area, and
I’m in support of not just…and I want to mahalo Councilmember Guzman for bringing
this up. I kind of wonder where our Councilmember White was with this for, from our
area. Maybe he can take it from a different standpoint. There’s a purchase that is
being requested from this Council, but maybe we can condemn the rest of it and give
it all to the Hamakualoa area. And I say that because I hear all of these testimonies
about the impacts that are plaguing our island. It’s sad to see the woman for the
invasive species come up here and almost begging for money, but what we need to do
is understand why we have invasive species. And it was the decision of planners that
economic-wise it was wise to bring all of these development in. And from there, the
people who then moved into the islands had their own idea of paradise. It wasn’t
enough that we already had the foliage here, they needed to bring in from other
countries. So I think we need to have some ownership of responsibility for the
condition that we’ve put this island in, and that’s where the Aha Moku comes in. We
are the voice of what cannot speak, the aina. And when we speak of the aina we do
not speak of just dirt, we speak of soil that, that feeds us, the air. We wake up every
morning and we take a deep breath and we take advantage and we forget where that
came from. If you start knocking down every single tree, stop every single stream,
eventually we’re going to die. If you want to put more concrete and more rooftops then
you may as well start deciding where you’re going to be buried. And even that is not
sacred. So when we talk about environmental impact, we need to look at the
economic impact. Start living smart. It was the natural resources that brought you
here, and it can be the natural resources that take you out if you don’t make the right
decisions. Take back Hamakualoa. A&B has had lots of profits, they can give it up.
Write it off as a tax write-off. They’ve got all this Central Maui, digging up all of our
iwi. Then they’re taking the iwi and they’re crushing it and making cement for our
highways. Enough already. I ask our Councilmember White to file something to
condemnate [sic] the rest of that property and fund the rest of the lots. Save our
resources, save our coast, and save our culture. Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mahalo, Ms. Costa. Any questions for the lady? Okay, thank you for
being here. Gretchen Cardoso?
MS. CARDOSO: Good morning, Councilmembers. Aloha.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MS. CARDOSO: I’m here to speak about the Upcountry skate park. I brought my two boys
with me, one’s a little shy, he’s back there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s okay, that’s all right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And what was your name again?
MS. CARDOSO: Gretchen Cardoso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. CARDOSO: We live in Kula. Our whole family skates. We even built a wooden ramp in
our backyard, but that does not compete with a skate park made of concrete. We are
so excited. We’ve participated with you folks and the Parks Department via e-mail and
phone since 2011, I think I’ve been talking to Brianne Savage. The Parks Department
was making this their number one priority, so we were very discouraged to hear it was
cut completely. But I’m here to ask you Councilmembers now, it’s my understanding
you can put it back in the Budget with enough votes so that’s what I appeal to you for.
Please put it back on the Budget, let’s get this rolling. Money has been spent already.
As a family, we will enjoy the skate park. I use a charter school, HTA, it’s a great
public school. We do most of the curriculum on our own and we try to stay physically
active. We do our own farming at home. We’re out in the fresh air, and this skate
park would mean a lot to us. We would build great memories there. We would care
for it as our own extended community and property. And skate parks have a lot of
aloha. It’s amazing how kind and encouraging the users are to one another of all ages.
And when we have visitors from the mainland, they always comment, they compliment
Hawaii’s people at the skate park, that we’re welcoming and encouraging, we share, we
take turns, we give each other water. I just want to continue that on the island. I
believe the best skate park was saved for last and that’s in the Upcountry region. So
please vote with your dollars and your intent to bless the youth of Upcountry and even
us parents and older generation. We’ll get a lot of enjoyment and use out of the park.
Thank you. Are there any questions?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, any questions for the lady or her
two young advocates?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Are these the artists?
MS. CARDOSO: That’s right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that your submittal? Thank you for submitting that.
MS. CARDOSO: I helped them a little with the art but this is my eight-year-old’s
handwriting, yes. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. And thank you for your testimony.
MS. CARDOSO: Appreciate it. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here. Okay, we’ll go to our District Offices and ask,
Ms. Lono, anyone in Hana would like to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Lanai, Ms. Fernandez, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Molokai, Ms. Lono…Alcon--Ms. Lono--Ms. Alcon, anyone
wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: There’s no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, ladies. Members, there’s no further request for testimony for
today’s meeting. With no objections, we shall close testimony.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall take a break for Staff and Members’ requirements. So we’ll
be in recess till 11:00 a.m. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:
ITEM 1:

10:48 a.m.
11:00 a.m.
PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 16-29)
EXHIBIT “1” MATRIX

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, we are back in session, Members. Before we start our
review, second pass, round two, Exhibit “1,” the Chair will make a few comments, one,
I would say it’s about perspective. If you looking and looking at what the so-called cut
from the Mayor’s proposal where he was optimistic in my, and again I was hopeful for
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his optimism, but he grew the Budget by $91 million, and you’ve heard the report from
Mr. Victorino, we will not receive $13.66 million more for TAT revenue considerations.
Therefore, what your Chair has proposed to you is a Budget proposal from your Chair
that increases the current budget by $34 million. So we have added things from the
current year. We have not taken away from the current year. We have made lateral
adjustments so yes, in testimony you heard this morning regarding Environmental
Fund, that is correct, but the Chair did put back or transfer laterally because
Administration did not put in a line for coqui frogs, okay. The Administration did not
this year continue to request, but upon conversation that Mr. White presented to me,
in your Chair’s proposal, I have reinserted the $3 million for the North Shore
purchase. I have reinserted the monies for coqui frog that the Administration chose to
leave out of their $91 million increase. Okay. So I think from a Committee
standpoint, I think we’re making adjustments to what we hear from the community,
and we’re also making adjustments on what we know is the more realistic amount of
revenue that we will need to be working with. You will hear concerns regarding the
Affordable Housing Fund. As your Chair currently understands it, because we don’t
show all of the encumbrances within that fund currently, in my conversations with
Mr. Baz, your Chair’s current assessment of the fund is there is not enough money to
consider Hale Mahaolu’s request. There is insufficient funds for that request. So
unless Mr. Baz can readjust and tell me his encumbrance numbers have changed or
what has been expended out of the fund, Members, we need to pay attention to what
is actually there in the funds for appropriate…appropriation purposes. As you go
through round two, I will also ask you as part of your thought process, the Chair is
open to supporting whatever you want to do in, that you consider appropriate as you
adjust within your own district. I leave that to you. That’s how I had, I did things for
Lanai in the last three years, I just adjusted within the district’s numbers. If you
choose to go outside of your district then I would ask you give the courtesy to the
district that you’re looking at and talk to that Member, ‘cause that Member may have
other ideas of the allocation within that Member’s district. If you are looking outside
of your district then regarding cash to bond, bond to cash, I would ask that you
consider notifying the Staff and I so we can make sure that our balances and fund
requirements are accurate. That’s the key for your Chair is, you know, we can do
what you, the most, the majority of you would like to do, I just need to tell you we are
balanced and I want to stay balanced. Okay. So adjustments on type of funding,
special use funds, General Fund, lapsed bond, general bond, you need to let me know
so we can make the appropriate calculations and adjustments for Debt Service and
other requirements. Any questions? Okay. We shall proceed. We are not going to do
revenues at this time, Members, and we will not go through any of the Countywide
things. Ms. Yoshimura and the Staff still needs to make some adjustments. So we’ll
leave those items alone at this time and we’ll go straight to more specifics. So I’m
going to take you to Page 4. Okay. Under Page 4, I believe the only revisits we had
was from Mr. Carroll. Was that correct? Mr. Couch? Okay, just so you know that
I’m, there’s no adjustments in County Clerk, we’re moving on. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That was a -CHAIR HOKAMA: I was going to ask…
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For Clerk’s?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I’m sorry. I didn’t have that line. Okay, let’s bring Clerk’s, I apologize.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I’m not sure how you want to do
this. Do you just present the proposal and then have discussion or do I make a
motion? I’m not sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no motion, just extend your proposal at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I want to try and work through consensus and then if, when, if we are
deadlocked or we cannot move forward then I’ll consider voting.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I would like to add a salary increase for the Clerk and
the Deputy Clerk to a tune of 16,600 to be split. If you need the split…
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have that written out, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I…no, I don’t.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. ‘Cause you’re going to need to tell us exactly what you want.
Whether you want it in Category A, the numbers, specific -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, all in A.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All in A.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you need to be specific now -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the requests.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It was definitely all in A.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you want to add?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, 16,600.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How you wanna pay for it?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I mean you said you didn’t want to go to revenues, I have
a proposal for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tell us how you want to pay for this 160 [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Out of my ultimate change in the rates.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you have a rate proposal -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you want to present later? I’ll let you present the rates later.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But that’s your plan to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --adjust property tax rates?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. This is only for the two positions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
positions?

Okay.

Mr. Couch, explanation?

Your reason to up just these two

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I’m sorry. They haven’t had an increase in a bit, and it’s
one of those that we need to get ‘em a little bit further in line with the, A, the rest of
the County’s and B, you know, other entities. Unfortunately we’ve had, you know,
bargaining units, everybody’s getting increases except for those that aren’t in a
bargaining unit, and I think we have two good staff there and I wouldn’t want to lose
‘em. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comments. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, can I request the Member to at least give a breakdown
between the two -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --positions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure. Deputy…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What is the increases on the two?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Deputy to I believe increase one…one, one, zero, zero and Clerk
five, six, zero, zero.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can we…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Staff, you got that? Okay. Yes, Mr. Guzman? I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Well I, you know, in speaking with I guess some of
the…the Clerk himself, it appears that if anything he was willing to, you know, forgo
just so that the Deputy Clerk could receive more this year.
That was my
understanding. So if there is a going to be a reduction, I think the Clerk’s Office was
more inclined to reduce the Clerk’s salary versus the Deputy Clerk’s.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I understand that and the Clerk did talk to me about that
as well. He said, you know, you don’t have to give me, but it’s one of those situations
where you kind of gotta move ‘em both up a little bit or otherwise they’re going to be
the exact same salary ultimately. So -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, I see. I see.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that was my intent.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. I see. I understand that then. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I’d like to thank Member
Couch for putting the proposal forward. You know I guess I’m in a little unique
position because when the Clerks were put in their jobs, I was the Council Chair and I
was, you know, part of what went on to recommend them, and I’m very happy that the
Councilmembers approved it. Because I think they have proven to do a very good job.
And at that time when we discussed the salaries that we were going to set, we set
them lower than what was being paid at the time, and the rationale was let’s put them
in the job and see how they do and then we’ll see. Maybe six months from now, we
can judge are they doing a good job. Well, we all know six months later they were
deeply embroiled in stuff we never saw. That was the GMO initiative and all that stuff
which they had to deal with, and I think they’ve done an outstanding job and I am in
full support of giving them what they deserve. We just need to find it, it’s fair, and I
am terrified that we lose the Deputy. He’s a young man, he has many skills, and if we
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lose him because everybody’s looking for how to pay their bills, we’re going to hurt.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other comments on this?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Maybe my addition is wrong, but so this is 160,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, 16,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And okay, ‘cause you said Director 5,600. So, what are the
increases and what are the breakdowns ‘cause my addition doesn’t add up to your, the
sixteen, six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For the Deputy 11,000 and then for the Clerk 5,600.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I’m sorry, I said three zeroes didn’t I? Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, you did.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You stay throwing us off now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sixteen thousand six hundred is the total. Eleven thousand for
the…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’ll agree with you, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Five thousand for…
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And 5,600 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fifty six hundred, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for Director?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, that’s…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that’s not the way you presented it but -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --thank you very much for that clarification, Ms. Cochran.
I was all confused.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I guess I can be open ‘cause I was definitely not going to support
$160,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That’s the way you came across. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. That’s why I was like whoa, dude.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys…okay, please be accurate because we are taking what you say
as the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah. Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So 16,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sixteen thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I got it now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, could I ask -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --Mr. Couch for the percentage increases on the two?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I didn’t figure that out. This was as…the 11,000 was as, a
request from the Clerk himself for the Deputy.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know, Mr. Chair, the concern I have is there’s no question that the
Deputy does a great job, but when these two individuals took their positions, their

- 42 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

increases at the time were I believe between and I don’t want to misspeak but it was
between 30 and 40 percent increases when they took those positions. And I think
they both do a great job, but I still feel that with the challenges that we have with
revenues added to the fact that other counties don’t have a split between Council
Services and the Clerk’s Office. So, you know, we have four employees where other
counties have just the two. So that’s the reason why I have felt that the compensation
level is adequate and justifiable. But that’s my thoughts. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch, we’re going to ask you for submit something
so it’s very specific, we can see, and I want the Members to see it before I ask them for
a decision.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we can return…the Chair will call for a return based upon the specific
write-up that Mr. Couch will hand us. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And just to follow up Mr. White, the percentage
difference too, to be added in that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Couch, yeah. Okay, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything else in Clerk’s? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No I just, I would ask Mr. Couch also to provide the previous salary
levels for the two individuals. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I’m glad that we’re talking about what we’re going to ask
Mr. Couch, because that’s what all other Members going need to do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’re going to move to the Office of the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not dollars but I just want to add my audit request for
Transportation, under Department of Transportation on Line 89.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. You have a proposal, a language proposal for us, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Just audit for the Department of Transportation at this time.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You are requesting a consideration for a proviso that out of Professional
Services we consider having a Council audit on the Department of Transportation?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that. Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I’d like to support what Member Crivello
is proposing, but I think that we might want to refine the audit. I’m not sure ‘cause
we’ve not had the opportunity to talk, but we were talking about a management kind
of audit more than a financial audit because that’s already done. But what we’d like
to look at is an audit of services, client satisfaction, maybe improving routes,
management of the contracts that they have with Roberts and MEO, those kinds of
things.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Councilmember Baisa.
You’re correct, which I need to expand in regards to management and performance. I
guess the performance would come as a result from the clients or the ridership as well
as employees I think would be good. And that’s basically what I’m looking at in
respond to many of the ridership’s concerns that I’ve been receiving into my
Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The Chair will recommend this in response to Ms. Crivello’s
request. The Chair will recommend that we place a proviso in this program area
under Professional Services, Members, that I will also be happy to support the
requestors of this proviso. And my intent is then to allow the incoming Council Chair
and the incoming standing Committee Chair that has jurisdiction over this
Department to come up with the refined scope of the audit and then allow the new
Council to authorize a contract to do such audit. Okay. Because we’re not going to do
it through this Committee, it’s -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --going to be through the Council Chair’s Office, and I would like the
standing Committee to take some responsibility of scoping the audit more detailed.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We’ll follow up, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do we have consensus on the proviso?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that is moving forward.
Services Program? Mr. Carroll?

Anything else under Office of Council

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. On Lines 90, 91, and 92 reduce salaries
and wages on those 3 positions. I would like to reinstate the funding on that. That is
for a total of $292,620, and I think it’s appropriate to restore that funding. And at the
same time, I’ve already worked on a request to go to Committee to give to the Chair to
review the policies and standards of our Council Services Office. And I think that’s the
place where we really need to give the scrutiny and decide how we are going to set it
up and if there’s savings or we have to add or what. But we are in a really good
position to do it, because they’re right down on the floor below us and we have them
right over here, and I think by putting it into Committee is the proper place to make
this type of decision. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments and your proposal, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I can support Mr. Carroll’s request but
only in 90-91. The other position has been vacant and I understand you gave the
explanation about the Legislative Analyst and as well as the need for a Committee
Secretary for which almost all the Committee secretaries right now are doing double
task, in other words doing two Committees. And so I can fully support 90-91, not 92.
And your recommendation to add a Committee Secretary, Mr. Chair, I can support
that. So that’s my take on that. And -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I can do the math very quickly but that’s my position on
that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Yes, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. And I’m glad that he brought that up, because
the reason I put all three on top there, it doesn’t mean we’re going to fill the position.
That doesn’t mean we’re going to fill it. That means we can fill it if we in Committee go
there and decide it is appropriate, it will be funded. That’s why I didn’t want to do
that over here. This is not the place to make that type of decision. That is filling, for
fill a position and opening that we have, and I feel strongly that we need to make those
decisions in Committee and be able to look at them there and do it at that time.
Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, Line 92, delete, this is deleting position and money
and funding or just the funding?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, the…I’m saying that we need to…let me go first. Ninety-ninety one,
let’s just take 90-91. The Chair is very open -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to what is being proposed. Part of your, a chair’s responsibility is to
focus attention on areas that need some discussion, and so what is being generated
outside of meetings and during this meeting regarding this area is exactly what the
Chair anticipated. And I’m happy to hear this discussion. But I would agree, you
folks have, you know, paid attention. I don’t have a problem of Mr. Carroll’s request,
and that this is something that the Council Chair is going to need to address. And I’m
open to putting this back, because I’m happy to allow the new sitting Council to make
final determinations. It’s up to them who they want to hire, who they want to retain.
It’s not going to be our decision. They will pick who they choose to keep as a Clerk, a
Deputy Clerk, Council Services Director, Legislative…that will be all done by the nine
Members that are sworn in on January 2nd, not us. But your Chair is open to this
request from Mr. Carroll on Lines 90 and 91. Any further questions or comments?
Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. I would just suggest that we leave the 67 in there. I
understand your comments about the secretaries having a significant load, but we
also have a backlog of PAFs, and so we will push forward with the evaluation of
whether the position should be filled as an analyst or a secretary. But I think the,
leaving the 67 in and taking out the increase of 33 provides that necessary flexibility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Before we get all confused -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 90 and 91.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --let’s take it step by step, and I’m sure we’ll reach a reasonable position.
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was just going to suggest that we might want to do this line by
line and be clear as to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --in or out -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --because I think, ‘cause of course I am in support of doing some
adjustments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Members, thank you for this healthy discussion. And one
thing too, you know, I don’t want anyone, whether it’s being the Administration or the
general public to think we do not scrutinize our own Department seriously either. We
take our job seriously, you take your jobs very responsibly, and part of that is to
review our own requests. And you’re doing a very good job and I appreciate it as your
Chair. As it goes to Line 90 and 91, the Chair’s going to take it in, both lines together
at one time.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do I have consensus to restore?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Line 92, the request was to restore 67,518. You’ve heard
Mr. White’s comments on why he believes that this is a responsible reinstatement.
Any other comments or questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, not to hold the whole process up
but again, we have a lot more coming up -CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and, you know, this is something that we got 33 in there
and you got…you can make that decision. Again, we’re going to have to make some
cuts, gang, and unless you’re going to raise or put all that property tax back and even
that won’t cover everything that I hear everyone is asking for. You know we’re not
going to get any more TAT and we’re not going to get any more from the outside, so
you make the calls but this is one of them that I agree with you, Chair, I’d like to leave
that position vacant because it’s vacant and add for a Committee Secretary where I
know we dire, really in dire need of. And then, you know, the next sitting Council they
can come in and they can look at everything at that point in time. So thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comment. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I’m in support of the current
Chair’s analysis of what he thinks is necessary for, to operate the Department which
he’s kind of, he’s the head of. So I’ll take, follow his lead and support his
recommendation.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
from Chair White.

Chair?

I also would like to support the recommendations

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I did a report a few months ago on the PAFs and they’re
outstanding and there’s so many PAFs that haven’t been too. And there are important
issues that need to be addressed and we just don’t have the manpower, the
researchers to get to those PAFs. And so I would support Chair White’s proposal to
keep that or at least restore the Legislative Analyst. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Then dependent upon your direction once we get through this part,
then the Chair will be happily anticipating your funding proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So back to my initial question then on this line.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Of Line 92?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so we, the talk is to reinstate this vacant…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sixty-seven five one eight, just the money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just the money?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s my understanding, just the money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, ‘cause we don’t have E/Ps.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But there’s a line -CHAIR HOKAMA: Just the money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --stating Legislative Analyst and everyone’s…Chair, there’s a
line stating Legislative Analyst and everyone’s saying this, the reason for the
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justification for the money is because we need legislative analysts. So I mean literally
there is a body and an E/P, I know we don’t say it but there literally is. So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, for me, Ms. Cochran, you look at our current structure,
yeah, it’s part of…the Staff’s problem downstairs is how we’ve structured ourselves.
Okay. Normally we don’t have ten standing Committees. Okay. So again, so now that
you have…you…we have chosen to create more Committees, we haven’t changed
staffing levels, so assignments on who gets what, everybody knows, Budget is a
primary Committee. It’s hard for Staff to double up on things because of the demands
of just Budget and Finance. Land Use, zoning is another area that takes a lot of Staff
time and attention on application approvals, making sure processes are squared away
before submittal to Council for consideration. All of you deal with sharing Staff with
other Committees as Committee Chairs. It impacts your ability to also perform as
Chairs because of time that the Staff can provide you for your needs. Okay. And at
this point in the current structure, I’m unhappy with support, how support has
evolved. I’m unhappy with the way that secretaries are being given more responsibility
and not enough additional support. And again, we have a lot of analysts compared to
the other balances of the components of Council Services. Okay. So as someone who
has managed operations and people and contracts, I’m making this recommendation
at this time to assist the new Council in being able to better perform through
Committees and their overall requirements as a body. That is how I’ve came up with
this proposal. And that’s just my philosophy and approach to management. I just
share that with you so you can understand why I made the adjustments accordingly.
But part of it was for you to also think about how do you want to adjust Council
Services to better be improved to serve the community. And that’s what we’re having
right now, this healthy discussion. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, no. And thank you for your comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. You know we have to as Council people
depend on the analysts and as well as the Committee Secretary. I find myself having
to--how can I say--see who, what analyst qualifies to follow through with certain PAFs
and research and what have you. So sometimes I think that the structure that we
have does not have full management over the positions that we refer to, to help us
with what need to process. So I find that a little challenging within. So this, that
being said, I need to understand that if we just keep the 66,000 [sic], are we saying
that, that 66,000 [sic] will be determined by the new Council as to how they will
expend it or assign the positions to? And is that, does that include a Committee
Secretary?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The way I’m looking at the 67,000 as I understand mister, Chairman
White’s comments is this would be part of an administration decision as our Chief
Administrative Officer on how to expend it. If he feels he needs, he wants to authorize
overtime to allow Staff to develop things for Members’ requirements, that’s one way he
can approach it. If he feels he wants to hire temporary employees to assist, as the
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Chief Administrative Officer, I…under this type of budgeting, he would be given the
authority to move forward. He’s, what he’s asking us is what the departments are
asking us, flexibility in addressing certain situations. So, you know, I’m just sharing
with you how I’m looking at that he wants the ability to adjust to the demands that
the Members place on him as it impacts the Staff’s assignments and responsibilities to
perform. That’s how I’m reading this, and if I’m wrong, Mr. White, tell me now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, that’s correct. The restoration of the 67 would provide us the
flexibility to decide whether it’s, whether we bring back the temporary folks that we
had cut last year or whether we bring in…we use the money for a secretarial position
or an analyst position. So that, so it’s the flexibility that we’re looking for.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you for that clarification, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. And while I’m listening to us
talking about the new Council that will take place in January, unfortunately we have a
sitting Council right now and as, till…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so half of this money will impact this Council -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This budget is going to affect -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so we’ve got to live with it for six months -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and I’m not willing not to do anything until January of next
year, because I think we have some situations here that need to be handled ASAP in
terms of staffing and what we’re doing. And so I’m, I’d like to see us look at this not
only as…because the new Council coming in, in January can amend the Budget, they
can do whatever they want to do with it. But we have a problem now and so I want to
base my decisions on the things we need to do now, and I’m listening to Mr. White and
I want to make sure that we have the ability to fix whatever needs to be fixed now.
Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for that. I would just say though, you know, I appreciate
this healthy discussion. I’m open to restoring Mr. White’s request of 67,518, but I’m
going to support then deleting the 33,296.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Sounds good.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But at the same time, Members, as we are asking Mr. Couch because of
his proposal for Clerk’s Office, I would ask that this 67,515 [sic] then also be utilized
to see if there needs to be appropriate adjustments within the current positions of the
Office of Council Services and that people are in the correct categories, compensation
is at the appropriate scales. ‘Cause I can tell you as a Budget Chair, I prefer not to
deal with our own Branch’s Budget amendments if at all possible. Okay. So on the
67,518 do you have consensus to restore?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine. The Chair will still ask you to keep the two…to delete
the 22,898 and delete 33,296 is what your Chair’s then going to recommend.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, what percentage…I don’t have the, my sheet up, but maybe
Staff could share with us what the 22,898 represents of the salary increase total.
CHAIR HOKAMA: On our sheets…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection is that we had put in…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Where are the worksheets? Shelly, you have the worksheets on that one?
One, I know I held flat any increases for Staff as part of that number, Mr. White. I
kept all Staff at current salaries and wages, I did not budget an increases for our Staff.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think we had put in one…so you took out the entire increase?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Shelly, I mean Ms. Espeleta, if you would share with the Committee how I
arrived at this number.
MS. ESPELETA: Chair, I believe that was the salary adjustments on Page 4-8 of the Budget
Details on the 1.6 percent increase.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah, I’m…I would like to request restoration of that because
it’s…I mean when we look at…I mean I don’t really disagree with your concept, but I
have a concern that with the incredible increases that we’re seeing in other areas that
we should be leaving ourselves some flexibility.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your comment but just because we are stuck with certain
contractual things I still have a hard time with some of the increases. Okay, but
again, we will make a decision by a body, not by an individual. So again, this
Committee will make that determination, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And if I may, Chair? The, you know, it’s up to us how we assign those
increases. Basically we’ve set aside I believe 1.6 or 1.7 percent, but it’s up to us how
we utilize that funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct within our Branch that you are correct, sir.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I was scratching my head.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Okay. Don’t worry, you, we will all take our midday break to
get renourished and reenergized ‘cause we’ll be here till it’s very dark. Okay. So
you’ve heard the request on the 22,898. You guys are going to restore this?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And, Chair, before…on Line 96 I would request that we remove the
proviso, because it, we’ve been advised that the Auditor’s Office is, I believe is
undertaking it they’ve advised us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, wait. Before we do that, let’s deal with 94. Let’s delete it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because at the end of the day, the Council will decide whether or not we
want to hire the recommendation or not.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So consensus is to delete that one?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. But I will still make a push for the secretarial section. I don’t like
the way work has been distributed downstairs. I’m very unhappy. Okay. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair? Chair? Oh wait, is…we…you just…
CHAIR HOKAMA: We cut the Secretary request add, we’re cutting the add of the Secretary
and the money. Okay, 96. The proviso of Council to consider an audit as explained
by the Chairman is to delete it. The County Auditor is already having that as part of
his new audit plan as we’ve been informed. Any objections? Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Civil Defense, did we have anything for a return? I don’t
have…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know it’s a ten-hours position and it’s really to try and
certify and train volunteers at the same time, and Civil Defense have not been able to
provide that kind of cert training for Lanai and Molokai because we don’t have the
part-time defense coordinators. I value this because if we have a fire, we have Fire
involved. Any other kind of disaster or natural kind of situations I believe we need
some sort of, some coordination that will be in full line with our Civil Defense. So I
would like to have this restored.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other comments? This is Line -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One oh seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --107.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One oh eight. Yeah, 107-108.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: This is a part-time position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, you want 107 and 108, miss…
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I want to restore the -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
expansion position --

--.75 employee at the amount that we’ve deleted the

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --at 20,000…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sixty-four, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Sixty four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would like to restore.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What is your plan to pay for it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I was going wear my “poor thing” shirt but I ran out already,
but…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, things like…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That doesn’t work, I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, poor thing doesn’t work.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. I’m not sure at this point but I just want us to take
that into consideration on the necessity of having permanency even if it’s just
part-time availability of coordination.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not if we have a disaster, is when we will have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand. So, Members, so that we can have consistency as we move
through round two, unless you can give the Chair how you’re going to balance the
request, we are not going to go and ask for consensus, we’re going to keep moving on.
‘Cause I’m not going to end up round two being told by Staff you’re already off balance
and you gotta find X amount of dollars. I need you to go give us recommendations
how you want to fund it. I gave you a proposal, I’ve told you where I’m looking at to
provide revenues. I need your recommendations on how you want to pay now for your
adjustments. Okay. Next revisit, Ms. Yoshimura?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So -MS. YOSHIMURA: The next one…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --what did we end up on that one, Chair? I’m sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re going to wait until we come up with -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just was curious, I hadn’t heard anything.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 121, 122…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So we’re…108, is no consideration on 108?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we’re going to have to return to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, but I guess for Ms. Crivello, she just mentioned 107 but
that comes with 108?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I thought she wanted -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That coincides with…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --107 and 108.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don’t…that’s not what I heard.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that what…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so she wants 40,064.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Line 108 is not related to the expansion request for the positions, it’s for
the reflective address signs in Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I just want to return to 107.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, only 107, Members, we’re going to return to.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So we have consensus on the deletion on 108?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He’s not asking for it…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, but no, so I’m asking do we have consensus on 108?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Done. Next area please, Ms. Yoshimura. I think it’s 121.
MS. YOSHIMURA: One twenty-one, Mr. Couch.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, the delete equipment, I’d like to return that because you
deleted funding only for the two new positions which means if they have the available
A Account that they will be able to hire those and therefore they’re going to need the
equipment. So that’s why I wanted to return the equipment request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We already have consensus on deleting the expansions, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, you…on Line 119 is delete funding only for expansion
positions, so the 2 E/Ps are still there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh you’re right. No, yeah, yeah, that’s correct. That’s correct. I was
looking at the first line -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --118. So you want to give them back the whole amount?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, just 10,000.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: The deletion of the equipment is not related to the expansion positions,
it’s a request for five scanners.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: For what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Scanners.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Five scanners.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, that’s what the deletion…his deletion was was the five
scanners, it wasn’t for the positions? All right, then I’m fine then.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we have consensus, 121?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If I beg your indulgence, you know -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --I was not here the day you folks went through this initially so
I’m trying to follow you as carefully as I can, so I would appreciate if we announce a
decision on each of these lines. All this goes and back forth about what was taken out
and I’m getting lost.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Not a problem. Line 122, we had a request to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was me again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --have more discussion on this. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. I believe in our discussions with Corp. Counsel, they
said that really, you know, they could hire the guy, but he didn’t have any, he or she
didn’t have any say in the negotiations. That’s what I thought I heard, now I may be
wrong. I love the idea but…
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s why we’re not asking, the money that is currently being
proposed here, Mr. Couch, if you notice it is for services, it’s not for a individual. So if
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our representatives, whoever they may be, needs an update on the most current
employer pay compensation plan in the State, we, they can get those updated data. If
it’s about other contractual components comparing us to other municipalities in the
same bargaining job description and scale, they wanted to, they can use that for,
those monies for that kind of support information to assist in the negotiations -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --is my understanding. Mr. White, you’re one of those that had…we all
have grave concerns about collective bargaining, but I believe that was my
understanding for this monies.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that’s my understanding as well. I think the concern I have is
that we continually hear that the unions are hiring very qualified folks to give them
information and assistance in their negotiation strategies, and so this is simply an
effort to provide a level of funding that the Administration can utilize in the process of
negotiations. Mr. Couch is right that, that individual would not be the negotiator but
would be able to provide some backup information and hopefully some counseling.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question to that. Did we…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m sorry. Did we appropriate this funding last, this fiscal
year?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We did provide funding and the language was more specific about a
consultant, an individual.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think hearing comments from Mr. Hiromoto from DPS and others, it was
felt that it might be more appropriate for us to assist regarding the type of services and
data that would help support the employer’s position at the table is what this money is
for.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So we’re going to change the language or it’s going to be
specifically for…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and that is why if you -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the current Line 122 is about professional services, it’s not for an
individual. It’s for services to assist in labor negotiations and contract talks.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. All right, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And so -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --therefore, Mr. Chair, I’ll withdraw my revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else on this one? Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Okay. We are under DE…we’re going to do a little more,
Members, and then we’re going to break. We are in DEM. We have a request, 132,
this is regarding Work Day, Malama Maui Nui. You know I propose a decrease. Part
of it is looking at the fund balances, and I’ll put it on my, I’ll take the responsibility for
this. I would ask you to allow us to come back to this, ‘cause what I would like you to
have is tomorrow I have posted, we have two meetings tomorrow. On the meeting in
the morning where Mr. Baz has sent us I think at least six Budget amendments for
Fiscal Year ’16 which ends in pretty much weeks, there is a request regarding this
program area. And so I would like you to see what is happening to that fund, what
revenues are not being realized, and what is the current status of this funds. It is not
a healthy situation. And so you’re going to see that in tomorrow’s meeting regarding
the request to us to shift money for a fund that is pretty much in the hole, it’s in the
negative. So I would say that use that information from tomorrow to help guide you
and make you better informed on how you want to approach ’17 Budget requests. Any
problems with that, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we will return to this. I appreciate it. And again, I’ll take it as part
of my responsibility of dragging this out. But I would like you to go through
tomorrow’s request. With that, on Page 6 we had a request, I’m sure Mr. Couch would
like to give me some comment on 138.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually I have it down as Ms. Crivello.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I’m sorry. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Me too. Yeah, I do too.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t recall. I’m okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. She’s okay with this. Anyone has an issue with 138? Okay,
do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. One thirty-nine, 140 consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. One…oh, okay, 141, was there any concern about the
proviso? I think we had consensus on the 392.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I just wanted to double check. Okay, we are not going through any
of the Countywide’s, we’re going to do the adjustments at the end of the cycle. Page 7.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One six-four, overhead charge. We consensus’d that though
yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Out of this page…okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We had consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You know what, we’re going to break right here. And when we
return, we’ll hit Wastewater Ops, Sewer Fund. So we’ll be in recess till 1:30 p.m.
today, Members. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:56 a.m.
1:42 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Let’s get back to order please, Members. Okay, I hope you
got your nourishment, reenergize. So the Chair appreciates all your comments, it does
help us make better decisions, so the Chair welcomes your discussion, your questions.
So let’s get to Wastewater Program, this is under Sewer Fund. I have a return for 174.
Who asked for that one? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I got both of us.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, no, you go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, I would be happy to entertain your -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --question or comment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My request is to return those two
positions. You know I had Mr. Nakagawa on the, I put him in a tough spot and for
that I, you know, I apologize to him. But you could see his indecision…not indecision,
his just pain in trying to make a decision on that, and he just had to make a decision
right on the spot. So that means…I think that those two positions were real critical
for them. So while I was thinking about only doing one, just his reaction to my
question, I would like to return both of those positions. And I know we don’t like to do
positions, but I think looking at the condition of all the equipment and the fact that
they said that they were really adamant about having a Wastewater Treatment Plant
Operations Manager, I think that’s, I think it’s a necessary request. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comments. Ms. Crivello, anything you want to
add?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I just was reacting to the actual rust and, you know, the
potential damage that we would have to deal with in the courts or what have you for
that consideration. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. So, Members Couch and Crivello, this is under
Sewer Fund so is there a plan on getting the cash for this? ‘Cause this will not be
from property taxes. Mr. Couch, any thoughts on how you would like us to get the
money for this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s the wastewater collection rate?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be…yeah, you would need to look at all components that feed
into the Sewer Fund because this is under Sewer Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So I believe your request was to increase…I mean have
the rate increased to 1.5 percent, is that right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I am at this point in time supporting after our review of Exhibit “B,” Rates
and Fees…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Appendix B.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Appendix, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the correction. Appendix B, Rates and Fees, I’m going off
those revenue projections as submitted, and I haven’t made adjustments to those
proposals from the Department. So that is where I’m calculating the monies off their
numbers, projected numbers for the Sewer Fund, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so you didn’t cut the increase in rates. I thought you had
cut it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we didn’t cut. I left certain things to the Vice-Chair and for his
guidance, as well as hearing, you know, advice from Ms. Baisa, Mr. Victorino, you
know, they are our Chairmen or were the Chairmen of standing Committees such as
Water so I take their comments very seriously when we reviewed rates and fees. And I
took both of their comments seriously in not adjusting the proposal, ‘cause they deal
with it, the Department on a more regular basis than I as your Budget Chair. So I’ve
taken their comments to heart, supported the Department, and the revs is as
presented, Mr. Couch. I haven’t adjusted Mrs.…Mr. Baz’s numbers. So again, if you
want to get back to me, you can get back to me on that. But you will see on Line 176,
Members, as we went through CIP, I shifted it from CIP and put it into Ops, the permit
compliance project, the 150,000 under sewer fees. That’s Line 176. And the
Committee gave consensus on that number already, the 150 for permit compliance.
So you know what, Mr. Couch, Ms. Crivello, I’m happy to give you some time this
afternoon so you can come back with a suggestion on how you want to deal with the
Sewer Fund. Is that all right?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’ll give you some time. I’ll give you some time. Okay, Page 8. I have
a…let’s see, I show a return to Line 212 which is the adjustment I had made for the
refuse carts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Me. That must be me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, yeah, you have some questions or comments regarding 212
please?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two one two. Yeah, well, Chair, we spoke briefly about the
middle-size range…middle-range -CHAIR HOKAMA: The 60…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --size.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I think I’m going to hold off and not have to juggle all
this around in regards to the two sizes of carts. I’d rather put it to the community, get
their feedback, how much is actually needed truly, what is wanted, that sort of thing.
And then as Mr. Miyamoto spoke, if people are wanting to do this and get a lesser rate
‘cause it’s a smaller cart, you know, then we’re going to have adjust the rates on that.
But currently what, how they would have to do it is one flat fee regardless of what size
cart you take. So I’d much rather have a little, you know, more detailed discussion
with the community in regards to this idea at this point. So I don’t need to continue
the discussion on carts here, Chair. But I am looking and I’m thinking this is the area
to insert that 25,000 for the Malama Maui Nui recycling, West Maui Recycling
Program or is this an item you would like to wait till after tomorrow’s Friday
discussion in regards to this organization?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, why don’t we wait till tomorrow?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, that’s fine. That’s okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s why let’s do as much as we can today, and then after the
morning session which is on the Budget amendments, when we get to the afternoon
session which is back on the Budget proposal, we’ll return to these two areas and
make the call on final adjusted number.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Just so we can tag this section to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, no -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --come back to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --yeah, we’ll make sure we come back.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Not a problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so we’ll make no decision on this at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I really would like you guys to go through the process and see what’s
happening to the fund as well as the programs that are impacted by it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that will be scheduled for tomorrow morning at 9:00 a.m.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
itself?

The Solid Waste Management Fund or the organization
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CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s the Budget amendment as submitted by Mr. Baz to take care highway
beautification, abandoned and derelict vehicles, how it impacts the Bike Fund,
Highway Fund, Solid Waste Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh Solid…okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fine. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you. Anything else on this area? If not, we’re going to move on.
I have a return to 217. Which Member -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Me. Oh wait, sorry. What?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --brought up a request regarding the 217.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two…wait hang on.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This would be the area where Member Cochran’s proviso would actually
be inserted for the $25,000 for West Maui Recycling Programs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. This is the area, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s…okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So yeah, we’ll flag it down.
regarding the disbursements. We’ll consider --

You can flag out the, under 216

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --your request tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let’s move to Department of Finance.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Are we coming back to 218?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh yeah, no, no, thank you. Who asked about contractual services?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I did. I just needed information -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --as to who are we contracting?
eliminating these funds from? Or is that just generic RFP or…

I mean who are we

CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s see. Okay, who had the notes on DEM?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, that was the increase…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry. That was the increase that was proposed by the Solid Waste
Division. I think that was based on their EKO contract that they had just gotten.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the Chair made the adjustment after hearing the various comments. I
mean you all, many of you had comments and concern about the increase of the
contract. We did hear a representative of EKO explain their approach to the contract
response to the RFP, why they are asking for the increases, and I just made the
adjustment that the dog should wag the tail and not the tail wag the dog. So I know
that was one of my concerns, but I know other Members shared their points of view
also. So I made the adjustment so you can have additional discussion and see
whether or not the increase to the contract is a fair amount for us to then ask the base
to pay under Solid Waste adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So, Chair, either way I just wanted to know who that
contract monies were for. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other comments at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Page 8, Mr. Victorino. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re on Line 218.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You folks have consensus?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was that the, part of the issue with EKO was and I
don’t whether it applies to the others but part of the issue with EKO was that a
shorter contract timeframe drove the price up because they were anticipating Anaergia
coming in at a certain point. So they needed to write off their equipment in a much
shorter time. I don’t know if we have any assurances of when Anaergia is going to
come in. I’m wondering whether it makes sense to take another…well of course we
don’t, we can’t do it during Budget but it might be appropriate for them to take
another look at the length of time for the contract.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s a very good point you bring up, Mr. White. And again depends
what this Committee will decide, especially with the Department’s request to do
Sundays and all weekends. For me, just that pretty much increases costs and I don’t
know how the Department is going to tell us then the Anaergia contract is still valid.
So eventually, Mr. Ueoka, you need to start preparing, ‘cause you’re going to need to
maybe give us some advice. Because I think we’re close to the line where that
agreement is going to be either terminated or null and void. So be prepared when we
bring it up. Anything else on this one? Is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If there’s not, there’s not. I mean, you know, we’re going to keep moving
on, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Okay. Under Department of Finance, Line 22…no, no, we
had consensus on that. Accounts we had consensus. Financial Services Program,
Members, Department of Finance, No. 242, 243, 245.
Two forty-two is my
recommendation to transfer to Finance one of the positions from Management to
assist RPT for agricultural inspection purposes. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that was my revisit request. I understand your
comments and your explanation, but I’m going to respectfully disagree with those
comments. I would prefer to keep that there. Based on the testimony of several other
departments that actually got some stuff done, and yeah, I agree with you on the one
project that we were looking at was, we had some questions and concerns about. But
I think there were a lot of other projects done that we didn’t see their work
performance on there. And, you know, there was a comment made about if you hire
an architect and the architect, you can terminate the architect. A lot of times
especially in the private sector, they don’t show as much respect to government so
they don’t have the government, the County’s best interest at heart. I’ve run into that
quite a bit. I’d rather have somebody sitting on them from a CIP Coordinator Office.
So I would like to not support the transfer I guess, delete that line.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We appreciate your comments, Mr. Couch. Others? Any other
comments? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. If that is the will of the Committee to
transfer that back to the Department of Management, I still would like to advocate for
an agricultural inspector. So I’m in a dilemma at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So that’s where I stand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we appreciate your comment too, Mr. Guzman. I would just refer
you to two things. One is the audit findings, Finding No. 5 by the Auditor to us. Audit
Finding 5, there is no structured process in place to coordinate Capital Improvement
Projects with other County departments prior to initiation of reconstruction,
rehabilitation, or pavement preservation projects by the Department of Public Works.
That’s from the Auditor regarding the CIP, County Capital Improvement Program
Coordinator position and how the position has changed over the years. The position
was specifically for, to assist in coordination of planned CIP. Administration then
made the position become responsible managing specific project and no longer
coordinating CIP among various departments. When you look at the response dated
April 15, 2016, from the Department of Finance, signed by the Director under Page 3,
No. 3, prior to Fiscal Year 2013, quarterly status reports on CIP projects were
transmitted to the County Council. These were completed by the CIP Coordinator in
the Department of Management. The Department of Finance relied heavily on these
reports to complete its yearend Countywide improvement plan schedules. Starting in
third quarter of Fiscal Year 2013, the capital project…Capital Improvement Project
status reports were no longer transmitted to the County Council; therefore,
information needed by the Finance staff to complete the Countywide Improvement
Program project schedules has not been readily available. So that tells me that it does
not work, what is upstairs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, you always have some wisdom to
add to what we’re trying to decide on. So I’m clear, this CIP Coordinator presently is
in Department of Management? At this point, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: A position, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The position in…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you’re wanting to trade that off for an ag inspector for
which many of us feel we need an ag inspector, and especially in RPT which seems
to…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. There’s one that is vacant -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --upstairs -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with a retirement or resignation of the previous incumbent, so there’s a
vacancy. And that’s the one I am looking at to ask you to reassign to Finance RPT
Division for agricultural…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For one ag, for, to be specifically an ag inspector?
CHAIR HOKAMA: In the Ag Program, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Somebody who knows what -CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m gonna allow -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --agriculture is all about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Director Mr. Agsalog and Mr. Teruya the Administrator to decide -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --how best to --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --use this position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that would be our proviso…
CHAIR HOKAMA: For the agriculture, yeah, for agricultural.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For agricultural inspection ‘cause -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, agricultural component of RPT, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --we’ve heard it too many times that it doesn’t seem that
any, when some of these people go out, they have no idea what an agricultural -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --operation is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I’m allowing the Department through our two top administrators -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to scope it, create the job description appropriately, and then go out and
fill that position without -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --adding additional new E/Ps to the County Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I see now what you’re trying and I’m clear
with that. So I’ll wait to see what my other Members say, but I don’t see a reason why
not. I mean along with that explanation you gave from the Auditor. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. To address the agricultural inspector
issue, I know in my proposal I had talked about a “Office of Agriculture” whether it’s
in, under OED or whatever, and potential, included in my proposal was a potential
description of that office that would, we could write legislation to say look, there are
three different Departments right now that require an agricultural inspection; Water,
RPT, and Planning. Part of my idea is to say look, we depend upon a lot of agriculture,
okay, so and there’s, with the closing of HC&S, there’s going to be places where people
need to go, say hey, how do I coordinate this, or who can I coordinate this with? Kind
of like a coop and there’s gotta be an office to coordinate that stuff. At the same time,
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you have an inspector go and say look, that’s not agriculture, you get regular RPT
rates, you don’t get your Agricultural rates, you don’t get the Agricultural water rates,
you don’t have a valid farm plan. You have one office from, doing that, instead of
having three separate definitions of what allows Agricultural rates which we do now.
So that’s what I was trying to do is consolidate those. If you want to, you know, take
that empty position and make that one of the positions that’s fine, but it should be in
an office that has jurisdiction over all other departments, as opposed to if we put it all
in Department of Finance, Planning can say oh, that doesn’t meet our definition of
agriculture, or Water can say that doesn’t meet our definition of agriculture which is
what’s happening now, and so we have three separate situations. The other thing with
your, the audit, generally audits are done to see where there’s problems, and then the
department is usually given a chance to fix those problems. Here we got an audit and
you said okay fine, we’re just going to disband the department, no chance to fix. I
would submit that we would want to give them at least one more year to see if they
can shape up and get some of those audit deficiencies taken care of. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for your comments. For your Chair, six years is long
enough for me to make an assessment. I’ve watched them for six years. Okay -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I would just say…yeah, I’m going to recognize Ms. Cochran first. Hold
on, Members. I appreciate your comments, Mr. Couch, and, you know, it’s very valid.
I would say though as your Budget Chair, I would prefer to have us consider referring
the general subject to the appropriate standing Committee because your Chair doesn’t
support the general premise, grow government and it solves the issue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I’m not into just adding positions, okay. Let’s come up with a
plan. If at the end of the Committee’s work and due diligence and groundwork, the
wisdom is to create this new office and grow government in this manner, fine, ‘cause
that will you satisfy your Chair in that you’ve done your job knowing that we’re not
overlapping what the State should be doing or other agencies who has been given
responsibility and authority. We shouldn’t be overlapping and doing their jobs. So
once we get that analysis, as your Chair, I’m happy to consider those things, but I
don’t think we’re there yet. And I’m just not willing to add positions and create new
and expand government as the solution to a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. If I may, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I would ask that the Members take a look at the
proposal, it came with my proposal. If not, I have a copy here along with my provisos
on the other side. At, you know, if they want to do it at a break, take a look, that’s
fine, but I do have this information here. I really think…you’ve heard the agriculture
community say look, we need some sort of place to go to do this, and we need some
consistent enforcement kind of thing.
So hearing that and agriculture is,
90-some percent of our land is ag land. So I think only one person in a, an appointed
person in an office is not going to be able to handle. Especially what’s coming up,
we’re going to have 27,000 and 36,000 acres of ag land that people are going to want
to deal with. And to have on person…I mean if we can shift positions around that’s
fine too. But I would request -CHAIR HOKAMA: And I would…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that everybody take -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --a look at this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I’m going to just recommend that yes, please follow up when you
have your chance, Members, to look at Mr. Couch’s proposal. But what I’m looking for
at the, from you as the Members of a Legislative Branch is to start having the
discussion on what should be a County policy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not the State’s policy -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --not the Federal’s policy, not the private landowner’s policy, what is the
County’s policy and what is our appropriate role in this manner. State Constitution is
clear on what the State has to provide under this area.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Our Charter gives us what is mandated services that we have to
appropriate for priority first.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Committee.

And I think that’s a valid, valid topic to have in the EAR

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. And that’s what I’m hoping to get from you as the Members to
help create a policy and the intention of what we’re trying to achieve with the County’s
responsibilities. So I appreciate your proposal. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I support your recommendation here
just to start. But agriculture inspector, so your thought is only in Finance?
CHAIR HOKAMA: At this point in -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Purposes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --time as part of the, what I would think as part of the assessment and
what RPT currently does and we hope to do with our support for expansion in
pictometry, how we’ve looked at other component areas. Even now when I mentioned
to Mr. Teruya of my concern, he was going like oh, really, you’re willing to give us
additional bodies. But I told him yes, because he’s one Division, whenever he’s asked
for expansion increases, what has been the net to the County? More monies. He has
produced for us and created us a revenue stream by collecting what was not
collectable in the past. We’re making sure that we are aware and we either lien or tax
sale appropriate lands according to law to recover the County’s fair share of revenue.
So I look at this as another way for him to tighten up and make sure that ag is in
compliance with the current laws and rules and regulations.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, and I agree. But I look to Ken Yamamura who is our Ag
Specialist out of OED, how can we he not be utilized in agricultural type, you know,
issues? ‘Cause he’s -CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say if…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --our Ag Specialist for this County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: According to the Mayor, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well I mean he’s in that position via this County to do Ag
Specialist job. And -CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say then, you know…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that kind of goes in line with what Mr. Couch is trying to
do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We have a body here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And I would say -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We pay for that body…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --that the Mayor needs to talk with Mr. Agsalog, his Finance Director on
how they would like to utilize Mr. Yamamura. I would consider that more an
Administrative decision within the authority of the Mayor since Mr. Yamamura is his
appointee, Mr. Agsalog is his appointee. We think that the Mayor can have that
discussion on how to look at the advantages of how to readjust maybe
Mr. Yamamura’s assignment and responsibilities, and how through maybe with
Mr. Agsalog, they can find a way to achieve some of their goals that they would like to.
But I leave that to the Mayor under his authority over his appointees.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And I just wanted clarification on agricultural
inspector ‘cause that can fall into also, you know, like -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I put that inspector -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --State ag inspectors…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --‘cause that was what basically the Ag Working Group term was used -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --but I’m happy to make it more flexible so that if the Department says
we’re not...we need an ag specialist, someone that has understanding of soil, this,
actual uses, the local knowledge. I’m happy to do what you folks are going to
recommend. I just gave a proposal and I’m using just the term that was regularly
used during the review of the BF-70, and the term that was regularly used was ag
inspector.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And so is it our kuleana to describe who and what
this person does and its job responsibilities?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I mean if you feel to, you know, further define and clarify, I’m happy,
I’m throwing this out as a recommendation. It doesn’t need to be inspector. You feel
an ag specialist is the more appropriate term. I’m not stuck on -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Okay. No just -CHAIR HOKAMA: --the language.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --a little more clarification, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But again I am in support, so that’s -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --my…thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White, then Ms. Baisa.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know the…I tend to agree with your position
on this, because in six years, the cost of this Department is in the neighborhood of
$5½ million in pay and fringes. And when I look back to the fact that we, you know,
authorized the design money for the building next door in November of 2013, we don’t,
you know, we’re not there yet. They came to us asking for design funds for a
nine-story building, and then when they came back and asked for the service center
authorization to buy the property, they listed options. Option…both options included
reducing the size of the Old Wailuku Post Office Building from nine stories to I think
four or five stories. And option two I believe included the option of using that property
to build a structure not for County offices to offset rent but rather for housing some of
the nonprofits that deal with the County which would simply add costs, not offset
costs. Another option that they offered was to lease or sell the property to another
entity to develop. And the last one I believe was leave it as a parking lot until long
term, a long-term purpose can be determined. This is all nine months after we gave
them the design money to build a nine-story building there. So there’s a…there’s
either…my concern is there doesn’t seem to be a real focus and a solid direction, and
I’m sure they’ve done well on some projects. But, you know, what we’ve seen so far is
not stellar, and so I tend to agree that it’s time for us to maybe focus these resources
in other directions. And one of the…it’s not, we’re not on this line but one of the
things that I found intriguing about your proposal is placing two engineers back in the
Water Department, and we were told over the last couple of weeks that they’re short
five engineers. And we’ve been putting up with a lack of progress on the Upcountry
water meter waiting list for a long, long time. So I look at this move as a way of saying
hey, we’re not getting the performance we might like to have out of the CIP team, but
I’d sure like to have some resources focused on the Upcountry water meter waiting
list. Because for me that’s the most embarrassing challenge that we’ve got and have
had for nearly 20 years now. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. And thank you, Chair White, for your
comments about the Upcountry water meter list. It was brought up in the debate last
night as a question that the community has about, you know, what are we going to do
about that water meter list. And we all know that a lot of the issues have to do with
staff and people to be able to help do the paperwork so that you can make offers of
meters and whatever. So I’m enchanted with the idea of having two of Water’s most
knowledgeable people go back and, you know, help make that happen. But of course
I’m also concerned about, you know, all the CIPs, and I want to make sure that we
don’t take all of that ability to do other CIPs besides Water. But it seems like there’s
been a lot of thought given to it, and so it’s kind of like, you know, watching your
mother-in-law go over the cliff in a brand new car, in your brand new car. You know
I’m for it and…you know. I’m in love with the idea of having the engineers in Water,
and I’m kind of sad about, you know, what do we do about this CIP thing. But I…then
it gets more complicated with the ag inspector or whatever we’re going to call this

- 74 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

person because I know that’s a need. You know we’ve all sat here meeting after
meeting after meeting, listening to the ag community and listening to the Ag Working
Group and everybody telling us we need ag inspectors and you guys better deal with
this. So I want one of those too. So, you know, we’re here with the proverbial rock
and a hard place and we gotta make some decisions. But I’m looking for the best
payback to our community. What is the result, what is going to help us the most with
some serious problems like Chair said that have been around forever? And I’m
beginning to fall on the side of let’s get the water people taken care of and the meter
list taken care of, because like he says, it’s embarrassing, it’s embarrassing for me, I’m
tired of being asked what are you going to do about this Upcountry water list. So if
that’s going to help that then I figure we can deal with the other side. We can get
professional services, we can get other people to help. And so anyway, Chair, I am
really getting to like this more and more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. And again, Members, for those of you that have been around
with me for years, you know that I try to really think it through before I present it to
you, anything to you. So again, I’m looking at what I feel is from a Countywide
perspective, this proposal is trying to address. All the districts will not get everything
it’s asking for, but I think I’ve been fair in trying to provide every district with fair
programs, fair improvements, fair amount of expansions, new equipment from a
Countywide perspective. Because I like how you folks all think, we are all County
Members representing the whole County, not only your district but you take the rest of
the County responsibly and I appreciate that. And that’s why I’ve tried to structure
something from a Countywide proposal that is fair to everyone in your district as well
as everyone from a Countywide perspective, and I understand. And like I said, again,
perspective, yes, you have…I have taken things away from what the Mayor has
proposed in addition to the current year’s Budget. But I have added, from the
opposite side of the picture, I have added a lot of things that your district needs from
this current year’s Budget numbers. So again, you know, I look at that, you know,
we’re providing more than we’ve, we have been. Some of us may look at it and say it’s
less than what the Mayor has proposed. Yes, and again, I wish we had that additional
money. I would have loved to have that $13.66 million more of cash. Okay. We don’t.
And I would prefer not having the nine of us battle on this floor today how to chop
$14 million, ‘cause I’m trying to find a way to bring us together and have a unified
Budget finalized tomorrow night hopefully, instead of having us be nine fractionalized
Members ‘cause we cannot agree on how to cut $14 million from the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And again I listened to Mr. White
and Ms. Baisa and, you know, I really agree that this has a multipronged approach to
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solving, you know, a starting point to solve the real issue of an agricultural inspector.
You know I agree with you, growth in government has been, and Mr. White and others
have said it many times, out of hand. We keep growing while the rest of the world
seems to be in the private sector decreasing in the number of employees. So I like this
idea, I think it’s a good step. It’s not to say this is the final step, you know, the next
group come in, they may want an agricultural department, go set it up. Make you
sure got all the ducks lined up, go ahead. I’m not opposed to that either. But I can
say this, that if this helps the Upcountry water meter list then I’m all, you know, I’m
even more in favor of this. So I can support this proposal that you brought out. I like
it and I’ll wait for your, you know, when you say consensus, because I hope our, my
Members can see that this is just a good step in the right direction. And remember
now, once we’re all said and done, I believe the Mayor has the right to start going
through some of these as a veto, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. He has his authority as provided -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s his authority.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --by Charter -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so -CHAIR HOKAMA: --he can do line item vetoes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --just to bring that up because we may want to go east, he
may want to go west -CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and then we have to come back and say this is the way
we want it if we got the six votes. So thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. And again, I know this is a major consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I want you to be ready to make a decision so, you know, my sense is we’re
not quite there yet this afternoon, and I want to be respectful of all your comments.
Whether we…the differences, I want to respect that, allow you the time to come to a
point where when we make the decision, we’re ready to make the decision. So,
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know I’m not sure what the idea is,
are we actually transferring E/Ps from one department to another? Are we trying to
do the people? And do we…I mean what are our legal options here? If we decide to go
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this route, is it we’re just reducing E/Ps from the Mayor’s Office and adding an E/P in
the Department of Finance or how does that work?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re transferring it from Department of Management to Department of
Finance. No…what is the term? What is the right term we need to use?
MS. YOSHIMURA: So the result would be that it would be a decrease of E/P in the Managing
Director’s Office…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, Chair, I don’t know, her microphone does not
work well, I cannot hear her over here.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’ve been having issues with that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and, you know, I’m the farthest -CHAIR HOKAMA: --_____ area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --away from her so more so, please. Yeah, can you give me
hand signs so I know what’s coming?
MS. YOSHIMURA: So the result would be a decrease of E/P to the Managing Director’s Office
with an increase to the E/P in the Water Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Shelly [sic].
MS. YOSHIMURA: The positions that the Chair is…
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s for the two, that’s for the engineers now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, right, right. Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: The positions that the, has been identified is just the Chair letting you
know where he has made the adjustments from. So that the details is not tied to the
Budget Ordinance, when the Budget Ordinance goes into effect on July 1, 2016. So
the specific details of the exact position is not going to be included in the Budget
Ordinance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that correction of the Chair. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
But that’s still…I mean there’s actual bodies in those
positions? Maybe not this one but the others, do they move with it or how does
that…I guess I don’t know…
CHAIR HOKAMA: With the Water Department one? Yes, the bodies move with the position.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have that ability to do that or is that you just know that
that is what the plan is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s within our authority.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. And the Administration if they have some issues, that is why by
contract they RIF seniority so the seniority counts. They would do a RIF’ing if need be.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which is reduction in force.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well that was, you know, what the Mayor had already proposed from
Administration one. He was going to go through attrition and retirements and other
components was his plan to us during Arakawa one on how to address the growing
numbers of County positions. He was going to go through attrition and adjustments.
Mr. Ueoka, you have anything you want to comment on? You’re not required to say
yes.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. I’m fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll move on and…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Before you move, I want to be crystal clear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We move those two people from CIP in the Management Office
back to Water. The positions go to Water so they now have two more authorized
positions and Water pays for them?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would come out of the Water Department’s program funds.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
money?

And as far as Management they lost the positions and the

CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Just want to be really clear. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If we agree to the change.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: If we agree to do that, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If we agree to make the move, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Water Department is its own…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
monies --

You know, you’re our Committee Chair so you’re very aware of the

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with Mr. Victorino. Okay. Let’s go to page…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, 243.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Two four three and 245.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 243, Service Rep II, .7 position. Was that you, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, happy to hear your comments, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess three-tenths of the position is funded by the State, and
as Mr. Vila pointed out, it’s hard to do something with a third of a person. So he
would, he requested and was pretty strong in his request for the seven-tenths of a
person to be added to that so he can have a full-time person, so I’m asking for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that request. Others, anyone else has something they
want to share? It’s my regular stance regarding the State.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think they should pay for this whole position.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if we had that $13.6 million, it would make this one real easy.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I was looking at it from the other way. You know I mean, you know,
the Governor has a unique situation I wish we had. He has a potential $1 billion
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Carryover, okay. I would love to have that problem so I can look at this kind of things
in a different light and different attitude, but I don’t have a potential $1 billion
Carryover/Savings.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One point one billion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So do we have consensus -CHAIR HOKAMA: --I leave it -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --on that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to you, you want to restore this money, .7?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, delete.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Two forty-five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two four five.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I made the adjustments regarding the Ops.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m all right. Disregard my revisit.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So consensus?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus then?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Members. Okay, we will return to 242.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I want, for those that would like a chance to look at Mr. Couch’s
consideration, please do so. Line 264, I have a request for return. This is where I
kind of put, lumped a pot…
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I thought we had consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t know why I had it under a revisit. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I take that back. Thank you so much, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There’s nothing on this page.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two seventy-five, the transfer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Number ten.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that was just my issue with transferring cost to the business
and…the business community when we don’t charge residential folks any tipping fee.
And because we don’t, I’m reasonably comfortable with transferring from the General
Fund to make up for it and keep the tipping fee lower. But if the, if everybody else
wants to do it, that’s okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, but I appreciate you bring up a valid point, Mr. White, and I take it to
heart.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Almost valid point. There are residents, anybody in a condo
that also pays the tipping fee.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m not…no, but they’re handled by a -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Private.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: A private business.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --commercial hauler.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, private, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m sorry. I…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, ‘cause I am paying that extra fee.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but that’s because you’re private.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Let’s get under control. One at a time please. So, Mr. White,
you have the floor at this time.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I’m fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Couch, you have something you want to add?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that was it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
there’s a difference.

No, just the point about private and public, you know,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the tipping fee was put on the private, because they
don’t pay that we pay each month. You know we as residents pay a refuse bill and
they pay a tipping fill which is basically what the private company puts as their refuse
bill. Am I correct?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No. Excuse me.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No? Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, I’ll allow you folks a few moments to have this
conversation but we’re going to keep moving on. If we’re not going to make a
consensus, we’re going to move on.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I won’t -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --speak long but -CHAIR HOKAMA: You may have a comment.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --the trash that goes from my hotel to the dump is subject to a pickup
fee -CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --because the Maui Disposal picks it up, charges us -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --for the hauling.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Got it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So they take place of the, what the residents charge or are charged for
their pickup. But when Maui Disposal gets to the dump, they pay a tipping fee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: When the County trucks bring the residential trash to the dump, there
is no tipping fee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So that’s the difference. So anyway I rest my case. I don’t believe in
continuing to increase the tipping fee, because it puts a larger burden on the, on all of
us that have to send our trash through another means.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The non-residential component.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Whereas the residential guys don’t get charged. And I’m not
suggesting they should get charged, because that’s as Mr. Couch mentioned, that’s
when we end up with trash on the side of the road.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So I have, I understand the rationale for not charging the residential
guys. But I’m just saying if we’re not going to charge them anything then we shouldn’t
charge the other guys as much, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I see your perspective. Obviously my perspective was to increase the
fee. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And I believe we had some discussion with the
Solid Waste management guys that the residents don’t pay full amount, the actual
cost for the pickup. In fact that the General Fund or everybody else helps subsidize
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that to the point where they, you know, when they, getting to the 3-Can Plan they put
that same amount of subsidy in the 3-Can Plan so there is a subsidy for the residents,
and I’m fine with that. And I’m also fine with your increase. I understand Mr. White’s
point but I still will support your increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair, one more question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This 80 to $81, does that cover the full true cost of what
the tipping fee should be or is that still short of what the Department…‘cause I
remember them talking but I don’t remember the numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I believe we have had correspondence but the 81 is to break even.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
break even.

Break even.

Okay, it’s not to make money, it’s just to

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s to break even.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do you have consensus on Line 276?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Bumping up to 271, that’s a revisit via you, yeah, to return
to the golf…oh, supplemental transfer to Golf Fund. You wanted to revisit that one
yeah? Is that right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. No, no, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You said we’re going to come back to it.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
comments --

Yeah we’re going to come back to it in the opening

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --back in the day.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s again dependent upon…at that point in time was dependent
upon how we looked at -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Fees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --some of the things like the fees. So now that we know you folks have
had, we’ve had basic consensus on the twilight rates, student rate -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Half-day rate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the 3:00 p.m. rate, now we can calculate the revs and make the
adjustment on the transfer. But I wanted us to get some direction from the, you, the
Committee Members on how you folks wanted to look at those proposals in
Appendix B as it regards to the revenues for the Golf Course Program. And now, we
have a sense now -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --after the review. So yeah, thank you for that reminder.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but that was the basic is we wanted guidance from you folks on
rates and fees so we can adjust the transfer amounts -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --from General Fund to Golf Fund. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for the reminder. Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know you think out of the box a lot of times and you’ve
said about…and I’m a little off track right here but, you know, about like we have the
idea of now our County crews paving and maybe even going out to bid for other
contracts and all that. Is there any rule that prohibits the County from bidding on
Mr. White’s or any condominium or anything like that? Is there a rule? Mr. Ueoka --
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --is there a law?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --can you make, give us some guidance or some comment?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ‘Cause Mr. Couch is shaking his head, it almost fell off. So
I assume that he has some kind of knowledge, but can you tell me please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, can you give us a comment at this time?
MR. UEOKA: I’m not sure if we would be bidding on a project or…yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not so much bidding I go to Mr. White’s hotel and said
okay, the County can do it for this amount.
MR. UEOKA: Well, we usually…that would be kind of bidding on the project. It would be
more we’d take it in as our, you know, as part of our coverage. Like we started doing
commercial trash pickups for everyone and, you know, you guys set it up in your rates
and fees. But…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean okay, I just wanted to ask…
MR. UEOKA: You can do it that way.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: But as far as us bidding on work, I’m not sure if we’re able…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, the reason I use the word bid, many times -MR. UEOKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --hotels and, you know, they have that. So I mean
Mr. White wants to move on, but I just want to get the facts so the public understands
okay. I mean everybody wants to explain so I want the public to understand that we
technically could do it if we wanted to, but we choose not to at this point in time.
More or less.
MR. UEOKA: That sounds correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. That’s all. That’s all I wanted to ask.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I think we might need to make some adjustments in our collective
bargaining agreements, Mr. Victorino. But our sister counties are part of ASFCME
Federation which is what our unions are a part of -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --nationally. So Indiana, those counties because they went through the
same thing like us, privatization of County services, but those counties up there also
have responsibility of the interstate. So what Indianapolis did was set up two crews,
both were given equal responsibilities to repave county property and county…the
interstate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And what the county did was told then to each crew, which crew,
whichever comes in under budget ahead of schedule will get a percentage of the
savings as a one-time bonus. So those crews perform under their ASFCME contracts
like our people and the winning crew got a bonus by coming in ahead of schedule and
under budget. So that had set off for Indiana then from the private sector a request
on why the county couldn’t start bidding more on private contracts because of the
performance. But that’s not the purpose of the county employees and equipment, it
was to take care county requirements, not -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --private sector requirements. But that came almost reverse privatization
in that state, because the government employees performed better and cheaper than
the private sector.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Chair, for that clarification because at
NACo that was brought up. That has been brought up in the past. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay. Okay, we’re going to move on. Let’s see. We’re going
to skip Countywide costs. Again as mentioned earlier we’ll make those adjustments
once we get closer. So let me direct you to page…Line 311.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we had…on 281.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two eight one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. White and I both had a…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh okay, yes. Mr. Couch, your question on --
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I think -CHAIR HOKAMA: --Self-Insurance?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --we talked about this and we may have to go into executive
session on that. I think we talked about that on this. I know why you put it in there
but there’s…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don’t want to say much more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So maybe, you know, at the end of the whole thing -CHAIR HOKAMA: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --if we get a chance we should -CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --discuss that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And you folks know why I made the adjustment here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And I have some comments on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because of issues -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --amendments. Okay. That’s fine, Mr. Couch. Three eleven under Fire
Department. You know we appreciate it, the Chief did participate with us yesterday
and gave us his comments on the adjustments. And so, you know, I’m open to your
comments.
One of my thoughts though, Members, again, we gave them an
accreditation position, they chose to change that position and do something else. Now
they’re coming back and saying they need the accreditation position. You can play the
Council only so many times with this shell game. So, Members, how would you like to
approach this expansion request of four new positions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I’ll just say it again, the staffing in this Department
is up by 42 percent just since 2013, so I agree with your restricting the growth there.
And, you know, once again the…our cost of just payroll and fringes for Maui County
from 2013 to 2017 is going to grow by almost $65 million and that’s a huge amount of
money. So, you know, we’re talking small numbers here compared to that but it all
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adds up in the end to a very, very significant cost increase that all the taxpayers have
to reach into their pockets and take care of. I have a challenge going back and asking
people who don’t have the kinds of fringes and pay that County workers have, to reach
into their pockets and keep putting money forward. So I’m in agreement with your
cuts here because I think it’s appropriate, and people can always figure out how to do
the job with fewer people. And I think we have a right to ask them for that assistance.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Other comments? Mr. Couch, then Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Certainly not on that. Just I got a comment from Akaku that
they request that the Members get a little bit closer to the mic so the public can hear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for sharing that. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I’m a little bit torn on this one because of
the fact the last time that we gave this position at the, as for the Accreditation
Manager, it was so far out in terms of their, I guess their ability to finally get
accredited. But according to Chief, he was saying that they’re in a position to actually
get accredited and that I believe he said that they were, they had already gone to the
mainland and I guess a team was coming here within the next month for the
accreditation finalization, things like that. So for me it’s one step closer or they are
now prepared to I guess have this position ready, available, and be used. So I did pose
the question to Chief whether battalion, whether he would prefer a Battalion Chief or
the Accreditation Manager and he said it was up to us. But I basically gave him a
message, it’s going to be one or the other. So at this point, I’m just going to go for the
Accreditation Manager instead of the Battalion Chief so that’s where I, my position.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for your comments, Mr. Guzman. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Guzman.
dollar amount attached to that body? Do we know how this breaks down?

Is there a

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We have it in our worksheets, Ms. Cochran, how much the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Chief would be -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And…okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --compensated.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair, I hear your frustration in regards to this and it’s
been occurring, you know, ongoing, but I see them really hitting their, that goal line
and reaching that point where as Mr. Guzman stated. And it would be, I guess it’s a
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nice effect to have this Department in that status or that stature along in lines with
our Police Department is this way. And so I’m, at this point I am in support also to
reinstate this Accreditation Manager for Fire. Just I think they are truly ready.
Unfortunately back when they asked, they weren’t and maybe they shouldn’t have at
the time, but now I think they can utilize this. I’m told that Police has the status, they
have three bodies that actually make sure that, that entire Department stays up, you
know, on, stays at that level. And these are our County core services that I really hold
in high regard and esteem and pride for this County. And so those are my thoughts at
this point, Chair. I want to support Mr. Guzman in his proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for sharing your thoughts. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. And I know how much we’re
trying to trim here and how hard it is, but this Accreditation Manager, I really would
like to see it to the final, to the finish line. You know I was here from years now when
we’ve been talking about getting a team and getting it ready and the work we’re doing
and on and on. And, you know, having participated in accreditation at MEO. I am
very familiar and of course not at the Fire Department level but of what it takes to
obtain an accreditation, especially for this kind of big Department that is so
multifaceted and whatever. And people have spent countless hours and effort and
money and the meetings, the paperwork, the coordination, the writes, the rewrites, the
submissions, resubmissions, whatever. I really don’t want to kind of pull the plug on
it now. I would so like to see it, you know, finally make it. However, there is a caveat
and the caveat is when they make it, they, you have to maintain it. Because all the
policies, all the paperwork you send, all the reporting, all that has to stay in place.
Because when they come back and look, they better, you know, everything better be
updated and up to Hoyle. So this cannot be we’re going to obtain it and then okay
now we don’t have to think about this anymore. It’s an ongoing effort to make sure
that you maintain that standard. And I see the Police Department, they go over and
over, you know, trying to, ‘cause the teams come back and double check. So this is
not a one-time investment, this is going to be an ongoing investment in maintaining
that standard. And I think we have to look at it as long term, it’s not just one person
one time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Others?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Real quickly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I agree that, you know, I share your frustration, we give ‘em
a position and they use it for something else. So I hope we can put some kind of
proviso that this time this Accreditation Manager is actually what this position is going
to be and not a Battalion Chief or something else. Okay. No, serious, you’re laughing
but, you know, this is frustrating and I share with your frustration, ‘cause other
departments do this, do that to us time and time again. And then they come back the
next year wanting another or the same position, and I thought we gave it to you last
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year or the year before. Ten years I’ve seen this game played by two Administrations.
I don’t think that’s fair. But I’ll go with the idea of this Accreditation Manager, will go
like Mr. Guzman said, over the goal line. I’m happy with that. But if they’re not going
to do that then I think we have another challenge. But we’ll leave it in your hands.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else would like to share a comment or if you
have a question regarding the request? Okay, I’m just going to ask for this, is there
consensus for Accreditation Manager?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Who’s the no?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll come back and next pass we will make a decision, Members. So I’m
just…so thank you very much. And I appreciate all your comments, I really do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And upon our return, maybe just a dollar…I guess that
would be for Mr. Guzman to find how he’s paying, what kind of check he’s going to cut
out of his pocketbook for this one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well yeah, we’ll, we can get it -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, just for when we return.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --from the Details. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Oh right. Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. One thing I just want you to think about and again you’re
going to see a Fire amendment tomorrow for this current year. And so if I remember
the data correctly, I think it’s from 2009 to 2013, if you look at our general
compensation for our, some of our firefighters, it went from 71,000 more or less plus
dollars, so with the new contract with BOBI pay and whatnot, it goes to $156,000.
That’s a big double jump in compensation over a 4-year span, 5-year span. Okay.
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That’s the kind of impact your Chair is trying to deal with in presenting with you
appropriate revenue streams and what I feel is going to become unbearable to the base
pretty soon with this kind of continued contracts that we’re not really can handle from
the private side. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The, in the Details, it shows I’m assuming it’s
8-month funding at 63,4 which would put the annualized number at about 95,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ninety-five thousand.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Plus fringes of…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I’m calculating with the fringes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was calculating with the fringes. So I think my range came from 71,000
plus to over 150,000 during that span of increase regarding compensation and fringes.
Okay. Let’s see, next line, next line, next line. What did you have, 343? Yeah, 343,
Members, Ocean Safety.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We’re going to revisit on this, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You heard the Battalion Chief give his reason why even with the transfer
why they need additional positions to make it work. You heard the Chief saying he
would like to try and take this to another level of performance. But the current level is
still a safe level of…what we present currently as we understand it is still at
reasonable and acceptable levels. We are not in a deficiency or a unsafe situation as I
understand it. Members, comments on this area that you would like to bring forth at
this time? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Chair, I think…I have here a question mark if
we were--and you know, maybe it’s changed since yesterday--if we were going to try
and go in executive session for some legal reviews as far as what we’re going to accept
with the budget for this particular line item. I’m not sure if that’s still on but I…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say if the Members, you the Members, have a specific thing that in
your requests to the Chair then I can make an appropriate ruling whether executive
session is, would be required or not. As much as possible we all would like to operate
in the open, but there is times when it is appropriate regarding the liability
responsibilities and requirements of this County and this Committee to perform, that
we can consider executive session under Hawaii State Statute. So again, it’s
dependent upon the requests and guidance from Mr. Ueoka with the Chair, then we’ll
make the ruling and the call on executive session. So unless you present the Chair
with a specific request so I can make a ruling, we’re going to stay in open session in
front of everybody. So --

- 92 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. No…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --but I’m happy to consider.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t have a question. I was just wondering why -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I had that note. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Because I think someone brought it up.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And my thing is if you folks want to and it’s an appropriate thing then I
would say we are happy to go into executive session for those purposes. Is there any
request at this time for such a consideration? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I believe…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know I mentioned it at one time as well. I got some answers
from the Fire Department. I still have some questions that I would rather ask
Mr. Ueoka in executive session regarding what was said.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And the questions pertain to …
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Probably -CHAIR HOKAMA: You gotta give us something so we can -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --liability on…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --look at the components of the statute that allow us to enter into
executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure. It would potential liability if any. If, depends on what we
do in here, what the potential liability would be to the County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I...Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman? Happy to hear your comments.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I think it was also related to…sorry. Just pipe in if I’m, you
know…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: When we have the jet ski operators and then they’re called to
911 issues out in the ocean and there was a…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the liability issues of -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --our employee…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And then there was -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --issues on I think the BU 14 versus BU 3 I believe -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --agreements and all that stuff, and how they were going to
deal with that. And Chief kinda got into it, but we were limited in the discussion. So I
think there were some questions that remained unanswered.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I would say we have about eight to ten components under State
Statute that the Chair can consider executive session. From what I hear and if you
folks do provide a motion then the Chair is happy to consider executive session under
92-5(a)(4), Subsection 4 which the statute allows this Committee to enter into
executive session to consult with our legal counsel on questions, issues pertaining to
the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, as well as liabilities of the Council, the
County, and this Committee. So…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Before we do that, would we…‘cause Mr. Guzman
mentioned the Chief started but then kind of got off. Don’t we need them, don’t we
need him there to kind of help us explain? Because I don’t see him here now and
maybe…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, so if we do have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we would call him up, right?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --authorization to go into executive then we are going to make appropriate
notifications to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so we’re not going to do it right now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the appropriate personnel. We would wait until appropriate personnel is
present -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
--if it’s part of the requirements to enter into executive session,
Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Then I have no problem with that. I move, Mr. Chair, to go
into executive session. That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There is a motion and a second for executive session on item under Ocean
Safety Program, Budget Line 343. The Chair will rule that the motion is valid under
Section 92-5(a)(4), Hawaii State Revised Statutes. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Which is fine, I’m supportive of doing that. Are we
gonna do the other one too or we do that later?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I…if we’re gonna do executive sessions, I wanna do it one time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Exactly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I’m gonna -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this one would…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --deal with this. I’m happy to consider others -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --under the appropriate component of law. Okay, any other discussions of
this motion before you, Members? If not, all in favor of the motion, say “aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say “no.” Okay, nine “ayes.”
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VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE; RECESS
executive meeting.

open

meeting

and

CONVENE

CHAIR HOKAMA: There was a minimum of six affirmatives by, to pass this motion so we
have nine. So we shall enter executive session upon the Chair calling recess at the
appropriate time to enter into executive session.
Okay, other considerations?
Ms. Baisa, you had something?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I missed it. I was trying to get specifically what line we were
gonna discuss.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three forty-three, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Three forty-three…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just the whole program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The whole…okay, that’s what I needed to hear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah. My thing is if we’re gonna enter, then I wanted to some
flexibility for, to allow your questions in executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, I just wanted to be clear. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, thank you. Mr. Couch, did you have another request for exec?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, and I don’t know the…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have a -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --comment on this section and this item right now. Chair,
so in regards to. . .I don’t know if everyone’s been receiving e-mails about the
bargaining units agreements and what have you and the numbers specifically for jet
ski operations, and there is a dollar amount. I’m just. . .are you aware, did you insert
that anywhere in here to compensate for that portion of the agreement at all? Or no?
I’m just trying to figure out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Do you know what I’m talking about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, I do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That anything of the agreement is here or no?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is part of the, what I would call the questions and issues that we
should be talking about in executive session -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, all right. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If you feel that’s where it’s appropriate, that’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --at this point in time, that would be the best place for the discussion to
be held regarding that, and I’m, we’ll be happy to share information -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --under the appropriate conditions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?

- 97 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Chair, I move to go into executive. . .regarding
the Self-Insurance item on Page 10.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, line 280.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Line 280, yes. I move to go into executive session pursuant to
HRS 92-5(a)(8) to deliberate or make a decision upon a matter that requires the
consideration of information that must be kept confidential pursuant to State or
Federal laws, or a court order.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I have a motion and a second made by Mr. Couch, seconded by
Mr. Victorino to enter into executive session as authorized by HRS 92-5(a)(8) which is
exactly what Mr. Couch read into the record, that is exactly what the statute says.
Further discussion on the motion before you, Members? All in favor of the motion, say
“aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS: “Aye.”
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: On the motion can you add in 5(a)(4) as well?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s not a liability. _____ liabilities.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s a part of the. . .I would say and Self-Insurance deals with liabilities
and immunities also.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, it does?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. Yeah then 5(a)(4).
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then, Members, with no objections, the Chair will amend the motion with
no objections from you to also include under State Statute 5(a). . .92-5(a)(8) and
92-5(a)(4), any objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, therefore I’m gonna ask for, at this point for your decision. All in
favor of the motion, please say “aye.”
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say “no.” Motion passes with nine “ayes.”
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE; RECESS
executive meeting.

open

meeting

and

CONVENE

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, why don’t we keep going until we reach an appropriate part to take
a recess and then we can, and then the Chair will consider executive session. Okay.
The next line after that would be Human Concerns.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Line 361?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 361. This line is, recommendation is transferring one EA from
Management to Department of Housing and Human Concerns to assist, and this is
what I’m calling Housing Assessment Specialist to help deal with the homeless crisis
as well as come up with the game plan on how we are. . .the County’s role and how
should the County address its part in the homelessness issue. And so this is my
recommendation on how to get it going. And again, before I’m open to look at another
division or grow another department, I would like to have a game plan and a full
assessment, including existing use of current and past funds we have given to
homelessness in the millions. So this is your Chair’s proposal. Again, it is my
proposal, I’m open to your thoughts, and at the end, whatever the Committee chooses
in its wisdom. Any questions on this one? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I brought this up because again that’s a
position if I remember correctly that is temporarily vacant. It’s got a return right to it.
And I believe that they are in the process. If, and I think Mr. Ching said that they’re in
the process of making an offer to someone for that because they’re going to use that
position to manage some of the projects including MAPPS. So I do agree with you, we
do need some sort of…not necessarily…I mean the Housing Assessment Specialist,
fine, I mean those kind of positions if we…we don’t have a position description for that
so it’s a year before that would get done.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I wanted to give them the flexibility -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We do need something…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --describing a position that feels, makes sense.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. We do need something along those line for housing
assessment, but to take it from a position that’s just about ready to be filled I don’t
think is a good thing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I like the intent for us to have a Housing Assessment
Specialist, especially to come up with something strategically for what we will do to
address the challenges we have with our homeless and affordable housing. But
my…maybe somebody can explain this to me. I understand that it’s, the position is
held for…let’s just…the Transportation Director’s return rights. So if it is to preserve
the position that they want to hold onto, then funding is not necessary, right, until he
comes back?
CHAIR HOKAMA: By contract and I think by ordinance, the Mayor can appoint a civil service
person to an exempt appointed position. And I don’t know, Mr. Ueoka can tell me but
I know there’s either contractual or language in the ordinance or State law that allows
that current incumbent after a period of time to exercise the individual’s right to
return back to the original civil service position. So it’s called return rights under the
provisions. What your Chair is more concerned about is keeping a lot of this civil
service position vacant, and what normally happens at end of Administrations is they
slot all the appointees then into permanent positions, and that’s why they want
certain positions kept vacant or available to slot appointees down the road. Now
whether this is an acceptable practice, a good practice, that’s debatable. But the
Chair feels it is more important to utilize positions we currently have authorized to be
placed in the appropriate areas of need and adjustments then to potentially take care
an appointee to fill a position after this Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Other questions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No question but I think you bring up a very important point. And if I
recall during our discussions with respect to the housing, the request for staffing for a
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housing department or housing element in the DHHC, there were a number of
comments made that there are…that these responsibilities could be assigned to some
of the EAs upstairs because that’s been done frequently. When there’s an issue that
comes to us or comes to the County, the EAs are the ones that are, that have the
flexibility to be assigned to that. So in this case it’s not the same, there’s not an
appointed EA but it’s another position that is, has been made available by a vacancy
and can be moved to solve a challenge that the Mayor and the Council all feel that it’s
responsible for us to start putting more resources towards. So I support this move.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other comments, Members? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just quickly. I concur with your proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Then the issue again is it’s already in
the process of an offer being made, I think is the…that’s what Mr. Ching said on the
floor. So I think we’re getting a little, I don’t know, snarky on this one. It’s a position
that is going to be filled whether it’s LTA or not, whether it’s in Housing or not, it’s still
going to be LTA, so I think the Housing Assessment Specialist should be somebody
who will have longevity there. As far as the other one is concerned, just depends on
what happens when the, a new Administration comes in. That’s, you know, part of
the question that this Council is dealing with on another item as well. So I think to
pull the rug out from under somebody who’s about ready to be offered a job is kind of
not right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And thank you for that, your comments, Mr. Couch. I appreciate it. But
you and I know and I came from private sector, we offer and we withdraw offers
frequently. And if you look at the Vacancy Report, you can look at all those vacancies
in Management and the Office of Mayor and make your recommendations on how they
can fill all these slots that is currently vacant with E/P counts and monies. Happy to
receive your proposals. Okay. We’ll come back to this. We just been in, on the same
dime so we’ll come back. We’ll come back. Line 365, grants and disbursements for
the Affordable Rental Housing Program. Any comments? Any questions? Chair is
very open. Ms. Crivello, your thoughts please?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know last fiscal year -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --the executive director got funding from the State and I
failed to ask him again when he was here to testify. But then he returned 103,000
about, so if that still happens then I think we should put back the 20,000. If not, I
guess it’s how it’s going to be.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this for Hale Mahaolu?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Hale Mahaolu, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. I just wanted to be clear on which entity you were referring
to.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We’re on 364.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is not…this is different…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, 372…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we’re on 364.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three sixty-four.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Three sixty-four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three sixty-four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We’re under Affordable Rental Housing -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Program.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, okay, okay. I’m okay. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll move $1 million…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, consensus, but, Chair, this is one -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that I kind of have an issue in regards to it’s always divvied
up amongst the, only the four entities. And I think last year I asked why is that, how
come the general populace is not notified about these funds and what have you? And
again here we are, same pot, same four people, organizations divvying up amongst
themselves and not letting anyone else in. So that’s my only issue with this thing
here. Of course the way it’s utilized and how it’s all, whatever, but I think there’s
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others that would like to be a part of but are never given the opportunity.
money-wise I’m okay, but it’s just the way it’s utilized.

So

CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe we did pose this concern that you have with Director Reimann. I
cannot recall exactly the Director’s response, but I know she gave us a response,
Ms. Cochran. But again, you know, I understand you have, I know you have very
strong ideas and thoughts regarding this request. So another way for you to approach
it and, or since we came to terms on the amount, if you want to provide language
about disbursements under proviso, the Committee can review and consider that
request if you so choose to propose one, is my recommendations to you. Ms. Baisa?
Ms. Baisa, you have a -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --question or a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, it was my understanding from the Director and from what I
understand that this was put out through an RFP, and these are the people that
responded. And my understanding is, you know, there’s always scuttlebutt out there
that the folks that are worried or concerned did not apply. And so I understand what
Ms. Cochran is saying and maybe she’s saying that no, they didn’t apply but does that
mean they’re out of it forever. So anyway, that’s the situation as I had it explained to
me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Thank you. And I’m sure the Director is concerned about the
appearance that maybe it’s not an open request, but again, she must follow State law,
State procurement process and make sure that it’s fair to all interested parties. But
we appreciate your concern, Ms. Cochran. Any…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything else on this Line 365, Members? If not, let’s go to…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we have consensus on this one, yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I just want to make clear.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s see, the next line I have is 373.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That was my comment, Chair, on the return of 103,000
from, if they should get State funds. But at this time, they don’t have notification of
the State funds so we’ll leave it as such. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And again, Mr. Katsuda has been, always been very responsive in
giving us update. Once he knows what happens at the capitol, he comes and tells us I
don’t need the money, I still need the money. So I rely on Mr. Katsuda giving us a
good status update when appropriate. Yeah. So do we have consensus at this time?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have consensus. And hopefully Mr. Katsuda will give us
continued good news. Okay. Members, you’ve done some yeomen’s work so why don’t
we take a break now before we enter into the Human Concerns Program. And so
before we return in open session for Human Concerns, we’re gonna go and do the
executive session components, get that out of the way. Then I would like to return to
open session and continue round two, ‘cause again I wanna do as much as we can in
front of the community and the public. Okay, so with that we are taking recess for set
up for executive session at this time. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

3:17 p.m.
5:10 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, of course we lost the attorneys. Okay. Anyway we
had discussions regarding those two items that was requested and the Members voted
to enter into executive session. One was regarding the Self-Insurance Fund, and we
got responses from Corporation Counsel. The second one was upon the liabilities,
duties, and privileges as it regards to the responsibilities, liabilities of the County, the
Council, and the Committee, and this was regarding to the subject of Ocean Safety
Program. So I believe we had a request from the Members in general, Mr. Ueoka,
regarding components of the Ocean Safety Program, so if you could give us some
comment, please? And if you need further framing of the, for your response,
Mr. Guzman or Ms. Cochran, Mr. Couch may be -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --able to assist you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair? Just to formulate the question in open session. Both
Member Cochran and myself are requesting that 143,000 be added to Category A in
Ocean Safety Program in the amount of $143,080 for the differential for the use of the
jet ski operators.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. It’s our understanding that based on the current contract
process and where it’s at, adding in the 143,000 for a differential wouldn’t necessarily
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be made, be able to be made available to the jet ski operators under the current
contract. Because cost items are still pending, that would probably be a cleaner way
of doing all of this if you want the differential to go through. But currently because
the existing contract, I believe it’s expired at this point, it’s hard to…or…it’s hard to
supplemental-ly agree to something on an expired contract. So right now it may be
not as helpful to add that into the FY ’17 Budget. I hope that clears that up. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What would be the recommended process or procedure?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. A more detailed analysis of exactly what contract they are
under right now would be necessary, and from there, looking into a…and if it’s still in
effect and we’re able, we are able to supplemental or supplement the exist, whatever
contract they’re under right now, that would probably be the better process. Or the
BU 14 cost items are on the table also. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Would that need to be generated by the Mayor and then
approved by the Council at that stage after that was completed? As what you have
mentioned.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Member Guzman, I’m going to assume you’re talking about
a supplemental agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
MR. UEOKA: Typically speaking, supplemental agreements are provided by the employer
who would be the Mayor and sent down to the Council for cost items I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So it’s your recommendation it’s premature at this stage to
place that amount of money for the differentials within this Budget?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, we’re not sure. If you put that money in, we don’t
feel that you’d, the Parks Department or the Department of Fire and Public Safety
would be able to expend it for the differentials -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
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MR. UEOKA: --based, you know, currently under what the contract situation is right now.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Anything for the Chief or Director Buenconsejo?
They have duties to attend to, so if there’s no specific questions for them at this time,
I’d like to thank them and excuse them from the rest of the meeting. Is there any need
for the gentlemen?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, thank you. Director, thank you. We appreciate your assistance to
the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Because…Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They’re not here for any other item, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Unless you folks have something you wanted to bring up. I was going to
allow that since they’re here, but if -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we have no questions for the Director -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Too close to dinner.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or the Chief…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Too close to dinner.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let’s see. Okay. Let me get back to where we were on track
to…three…what was that, Ms. Yoshimura? Three seven nine. Thank you. Members,
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this was what was presented by the Admin of how to…their proposal was to set up a
whole division for homelessness. Your Chair made the adjustments. We already
talked about the specialist in Line 361. So this is my proposal to you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I did the revisits on this one.
mean homelessness is a huge situation nationwide, probably worldwide.
least temporarily we need to have a focused group of people to do that. So I
to put the positions back in, three of them, Homeless Specialist,
Coordinator, and Homeless Office Operations Assistant as LTA.

I would…I
I think at
would like
Homeless

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions, comments you guys want to give?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I hate to agree with Mr. Couch but
sometimes…but I will say I would like only the Homeless Coordinator and Homeless
Specialist. I think the Office Operations Assistant, that is not necessary in my mind. I
would like those two positions put back in, if I’m going to put anything back in, and as
LTAs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Temporary.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’m fine with that, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you for that. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I can support that also.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Thank you. I hope you folks had a chance this morning
to read the editorial from the publisher of the Star Advertiser. He made a comment
about the State’s approach to the homelessness issue, and his point was you gotta
come up with one plan.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, it’s helter-skelter.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Before you throw money, come up with a plan, and then you can
figure out whether the money is appropriately directed to address the plan and
accomplish the plan’s goals. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I understand exactly what you’re saying, and I think that
that’s one of the problems is that we have not sat here and looked at a plan. You
know we’ve had some proposals before us about purchasing this or doing that, but a
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plan, you know, a plan with timelines and goals and everything, actions and who’s
going to do it and whatever, I don’t think we have that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not yet. Not yet. I would agree with you, not yet.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, well we don’t have it yet. However, the problem that we
have is that the homeless people are for real and this situation is going on, and, you
know, I’ve watched the letters in the paper and listened to the chat and people are
getting really, really frustrated by what is going on in our parks. And people are
beginning to be afraid to go to the parks and that’s really bad. And, you know, the
story of somebody fiddling while Rome is burning, Nero I think it was, people feel a
sense of urgency and they want us to do something. And so, you know, even if we put
these positions in here now, they’re not going to happen until July maybe, and then
they’re going to have to find people and we know what goes on when we try to look for
people. I mean this whole process of getting a body into a desk. I think that’s the
problem that we’re dealing with is there’s this push for urgency on one side, and then
there’s the other side where we’re trying to take a more rationale planning, let’s see
where we’re going kind of approach. So it’s really hard, but, you know, if we never put
these people in place, then who are we going to hold accountable for giving us the
plan? Everybody, somebody doing it and maybe nobody’s doing it. Whose job is it to
put a plan down in front of us and say this is what we need? I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You bring up very good comments. My proposal is also to have that
specialist in 361 to work with all the nonprofits and other interested parties, and then
within 9 months, come back with a Budget submittal back to this Council in 9 months
to say this is the County’s plan. And then next, you know, and again I understand
the, you know, issues are current, understood. Request for money is current too. And
we’ve approached it, you know, in various manners over the various years with
different crisis and demands like 9/11 you were a director of a big nonprofit when
9/11 hit and everyone had to adjust, you know, during those days. But my thing is
I’ve been on enough Councils where I have been properly criticized for wasting money
and throwing things so fast at an issue, thinking that money will cure the problem
and it didn’t, and then we got, you know, commented about wasting the people’s
money because there was no obvious results or benefits that the people expected. So,
you know, for me I’m a little bit cautious. I’m not gun shy, I’m happy to put the
money there, I just want to make sure we know what we should be expecting and what
the community should be expecting for the money we are going to put out there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: My problem is I think because I’ve been around too long, but,
you know, the Homeless Alliance was alive and well at least five years before I left
MEO. I’ve been here ten. Nothing’s happened, and the recommendations that the
Homeless Alliance made did not happen. We were ready to build, all of us with all of
the Members that at that time were very active, including The Salvation Army and the
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veterans people and everybody that’s involved in this homeless issue. Some of the
players that exist now did not exist then. Nothing’s been implemented, and this is
15 years down the road. So for me it’s really worrying me about we gotta do
something.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I hear you, Ms. Baisa, because you’ve been on enough Councils and most
of it with me, where you and I both supported that over, that $15 million we have
appropriated for homeless programs, 15 million. So I appreciate your comments. I’m
open to the direction of the Committee. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I understand your comments
about, you know, nine months come back. The issue with that is A, it’s nine months
from now and -CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but B, the more important one is that if we say okay, nine
months from now, how long is it going to take to get people? I mean if we okay the
money now, at least they know, you know, when we pass second reading, they at least
can get ready to start recruiting for the thing and hopefully in nine months they’ll have
the position filled. You know how…
CHAIR HOKAMA: But currently the, if you look at the Budget, we have set up pots of money,
self-sufficiency, food, shelter, and whatever is the other components of pots where
existing agencies can access to do their specific areas of expertise in the homeless
issue. We’re not abandoning those pots of money, we are putting those pots of money
so that existing entities can access with specific projects to eliminate or reduce the
impact of homelessness in this County.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I understand that, Mr. Chair. But I think because
there’s so many different agencies and maybe even duplication of services in some
places, I think we need somebody that sees the bigger picture and works on getting
them all coordinated together. They tried to do it with the Homeless Alliance,
something happened and it…I think, you know, if they were territorial…who knows.
But something didn’t get them gelled together. You have this Homeless Coordinator
person and specialist, they get, they know all the things that are going on and they get
everybody on the same page, and then they can say okay, you get your funds, you get
your…I mean they can be, they can hold the funding over their head and get them to
work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and that’s why I’m happy to hear your discussion. I just hope the
State person doesn’t trump us.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And just so that we don’t belabor this
point, you know, I really think making a Homeless Specialist and a Homeless
Coordinator really it’s a good first step to get this whole thing moving. Okay. And I
will say this, in my years at the Board of Education, I saw what throwing money, good
money after bad money was with the Felix Consent Decree. That was millions,
hundreds of millions of dollars that was the State spent on special needs. They
deserved it but it was done in such a manner, that’s why we really need someone who
can help us plan. And I believe these positions could do that. We could put them, put
their feet to the fire and make them or say to them you need to do this and we need
something back in three months, six months, whatever, a plan, a plan which we can
approve or follow or whatever, but something. Bring the Homeless Alliance in, you
know, tell those guys you guys have had a plan, bring that plan back to the table. But
to keep talking about it, I think we all agree we need to do something now, and I think
those two positions would be pivotal at this point. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello, your comments?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I do agree with Councilmember Victorino. And
taking your lead as far as saying that there’s really no plan. And if we don’t have a
roadmap and say the Governor gives us so many dollars, our Housing, our Director for
Human Concerns have about seven divisions I think that the Director has oversight.
And often it’s like run here, react for the homeless because Governor’s proclaiming
this. But then there’s the other issues of responding to the other needs that this
Department deals with. So I think in support, at least that we can have some
direction and I like the LTA because if it’s not working then you know what,
something’s wrong. So I would hope we would take this into consideration for the, to
come up with a plan, a roadmap and to say where we’re going and what we want to
accomplish with this. And this specialist and coordinator can facilitate that process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch, how…your plan was to what to pay for this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s the same, the rate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You was going to look at increasing rates?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Taxes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, can we get the exact amount for those two
positions? ‘Cause these were all three, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Exactly.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, could we have the exact amount -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for the two positions please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So, Members, I’m going to propose that we just, at this point in
time I’m going to ask for consensus -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for LTA for the specialist and coordinator only.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’ll be LTA and then we’ll get the specific SR ranges or compensation
scales from the Details, and we shall share that back with you so that Mr. Couch can
start calculating his rate increase. Okay, we’re going to move forward a specialist and
a coordinator only under limited term. Okay. You know what, before we hit the
grants, why don’t we do our dinner break.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We have Line 380 too, 380.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, the reduction on operations, we also wanted a revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay. Excuse me, Members. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I think…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus I think. I know I said something but I thought it
had to do with the -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is the operations connected to the…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --if it was connected with those folks but I don’t think it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is it or isn’t it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Operations in reference -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --to…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Staff, our 22,000 cut under operations.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair? The reduction to operations is not related to the expansion
positions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, we are going to break and then when we
return, we shall hit the grants and disbursements for the various components under
Housing and Human Concerns. And so I guess Mr. Couch is going to give us a lot of
comments. Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, staff came up, my staff came up with a number and
I don’t have the exact number, but it’s about…if you went from 2 to 3 percent on
anywhere where it says 2 percent increase, it’s about $257,000 difference.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And you were going to adjust the rates?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have, you know where? Overall, you’re going to spread it overall -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or you’re going to pick for a specific category?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I got about 2.5 million in revenue from the rate adjustment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, keep your running total.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I am. I am.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your running total. That’s all I ask is to help us stay balanced as best we
can. ‘Cause if not, we’re going to stay here longer till we balance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually the actual number is 257,1..518…257,518.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My calculations I have $3,000,585 and 80…120, so I’m
ready even more than Mr. Couch to put in. and you knew where I was going with that
one. Thank you, Chair. I already told you guys where I was going.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let’s go.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll be in recess till 6:45. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

5:31 p.m.
6:51 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members let’s get back to work please. Members, we
are on Page 14. This is round 2. We shall get as much consensus as possible, and
what we don’t, on round 3 those that we haven’t reached consensus we shall make
decisions. With that we’ll just ask Mr. Couch since he put a master request on all of
these. You can start with Line 383.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think that was actually Ms. Crivello was, that’s hers.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Where?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: ‘Cause that’s not one of the 2 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Three eighty-three? No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Three eighty three.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Food, shelter, and safety.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t have monies to put where…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 860,630 is your Chair’s recommendation. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re going to move forward. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. 2 Percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For the most part I’m asking that we go instead of a 2 percent
increase to a 3 percent increase across the board, but I understand some Members
have some concerns about some individual ones of those that were big adds and
then…or I’m sorry, big deletes and then only a small increase. So as far as I’m
concerned 3 percent across the board comes out to about $257,518 I believe.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that more than what the 2 percent he put in?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: As opposed to what?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Couch.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the problem that Mr. Victorino and I have is we were not
here the day this was done so you gotta give us a little bit more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I’m sorry. The Chair deleted expansion requests for all of
these entities.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And then, and added a 2 percent increase.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I’m saying make it a 3 percent increase. That’s all my…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Dollar, what’s the dollars we’re talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two hundred and fifty-seven thousand…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: More or less?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: More.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: More.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And his proposal is raise taxes to make up the 250…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two fifty-seven five one eight.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s just the 1 percent?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go from 2 to 3 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that is the 1 percent increase.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One percent is 250,000 -CHAIR HOKAMA: To go from 2 to 3.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --more?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The total is that much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s how I understand his proposal to the Chair, Mr. Victorino. He’s
increasing…‘cause what I budgeted is the 2 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, I got that, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So he’s telling us he wants to go to 3 and that additional percent is going
to cost us…well, he’s going to have to find another $256,000 of General Fund -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to pay for this 1 percent increase.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two fifty-seven what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two fifty-seven five one eight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so, Mr. Couch, you’re only addressing all the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wherever it said…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --2 percent -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but the delete expansion portions on these?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I haven’t -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --said anything.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you didn’t go there?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s up to each Member as…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Just…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no, I just didn’t know if you were going -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that too. But right now just focusing on the 2 percent,
add 1.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa, any questions regarding Mr. Couch’s proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
others say.

Chair, if you don’t mind I’d like to go later after I hear what

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I’m still catching up.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, you have anything you want to comment on now?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Although I know everybody’s trying to play on this fairness
game, if you give 1-2 percent, you give ‘em 3 percent, whatever the percent is, but in
some of these cases, they’re not going to even cover what was really needed. So I’m
going to hang a little bit, Mr. Chair, and I’m not in favor of 3 percent across the board.
I have some particular angst about that and I have some particular wants and needs
of certain groups that I want to put back some of the money. So I’ll take it from there.
And I’ve had that covered with my -CHAIR HOKAMA: Proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --not increases, putting back what was there by the Mayor.
I didn’t increase anything, I just put back what was there by the Mayor. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And the Staff will also…did you hand out the survey results?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Still making copies.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. And the Chair has Staff making copies. We’ve tallied up the
responses from the districts and the community’s response to the survey. When you
have time, please go through it. Those that responded have a very clear idea of where
we should go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. I’d like to comment on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know I got that survey and everybody I know got that
survey, but when we get the survey, it doesn’t tell us where those cuts are going to be
and that changes what people think. When you tell them I’m going to take your skate
park and I want you to pay a couple more cents of real property tax, if you don’t do
it…they, you know, they play ball. It’s easy to talk in generalities. I don’t want to
raise my taxes, but when I tell you I’m going to take something you really like, it tends
to change their viewpoint. So I just want to say that at the time they filled out
surveys, they didn’t know where it was going to hit home. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah and that’s a good comment, Ms. Baisa. That’s a fair comment. What
we did though was send out a survey that we’ve been using for years.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So again, we take that comment as how to improve the next year’s
consideration. So we appreciate that. Yeah, we know we can improve like everybody
else. Okay. Anything else? Any other comments? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I am agreeable to Mr. Couch’s proposal but I think
it’s better if we go, you know, item by item and just see if we can get consensus on the
three and, or another number.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine with the Chair. That’s fine with the Chair.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I want to just be sure that…I don’t know if the Staff has a total of these
pages, but the grants amount is not totaled up. The 1 percent means that we’re giving
a 1 percent increase on I think 25.7 million. Does that sound about right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You mean the total amount of grants we gave out? You ain’t too far off,
Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, ‘cause 1 percent of 25.7 million is Mr. Couch’s 20…$257,000
number. So I just want to be sure that we’re…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll verify that number. But with that, 388.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m okay with 3 percent added.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What’s your number for 388, your revised number, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’m sorry?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What’s your revised number for 388, Early Childhood Programs?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh actually, oh yeah the, so it’s 3,090. Three thousand ninety.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three thousand ninety.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: For line 390 yeah? You say 2 percent increase is 2,060.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: E Malama I Na Keiki, Lanai. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I have to do the math here.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-five fourteen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. I was just getting there. Twenty-five fourteen. Let
me get my calculator out ‘cause he’s going to ask me for each one. Twenty-five
fourteen, change that number to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Next one is 73…or 7,137
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, Mr. Spreadsheet over there has it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, just a calculator.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Faster calculator than me.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What was the number again?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Seven one three seven.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven one three seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Line 406, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It’s 5,250.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fifty-two fifty, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It comes out exactly the same yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four eleven.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Should be 2,850.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four twenty-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the number is 1,950 but this one is, requested an
expansion of 10,000. I don’t know if the Members are interested in discussing that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Feed my Sheep.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would like to recommend that we go back to the 75.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Where?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: On 427 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Hold on, hold on.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --Page 15.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa has the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Again, trying to catch up with you again.
deletion I’m assuming the majority agree?

Where there’s a

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We never discussed…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, there was…we just had discussion -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, you never discussed it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and that -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Members wanted to have a consideration.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It was one on the previous page that we had consensus on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Like let’s look at 414. It was a decision by the group just to, just
let that deletion stand?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We weren’t here so I don’t know what happened.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. That’s consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. And the same thing with the next two?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, the next two we had…yeah -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we had consensus -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on that.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Just so that we know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we’re looking at Line 427 now, Members. Mr. White is asking
that we look at…you’re proposing 3 percent of 75 now?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I’m suggesting we go back to the 75. Oh no, no, I’m sorry, you’re
right. Yeah, 3 percent on the 75.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that is?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty…2,050?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To help mister…Chair White, the Budget Chair removed
20…10,000 from the 75,000 because it was an add on, I think it was a new request or
something.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s right, it’s an expansion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then said increase it by 2 percent. I’m willing to go to the
75 because that’s what they asked for.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that’s fine with me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But not…okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s not fine with me, no. If we’re going to be, let’s try to
be as fair as possible.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well you said had ones that you wanted to add back, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Haven’t gotten there yet.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So what is it at 3 percent?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nineteen fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nineteen fifty.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nineteen fifty. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But there’s no consensus on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine. Four thirty-three.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again, that’s -CHAIR HOKAMA: Three zero nine zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --3,090, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was 26 the next one, 6,000 right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, Mr. Victorino and Ms. Baisa weren’t here.
thirty-eight and 442 I show as consensus.

Four

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Me too.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No changes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four thirty, yeah, we…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah but if you’re doing…never mind.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you guys agreed to take Hale Makua out totally?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No. Chair, my recollection is Hale Makua we had consensus on -CHAIR HOKAMA: Hale Makua is -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --a flat 200.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what Mr. Krieg came and said if we would please consider, again, one
more year, 200,000, and we’re happy to have the proviso regarding the matching.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that was his request and that’s why your Chair put, has 200,000
instead of 204 as what we receive in Mr. Krieg’s verbal testimony and written
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testimony. And he’s the one that said I’m okay with the matching requirements. Like
he has for this current year, he’s asked for the same consideration for the upcoming
year. And that is what your Chair is proposing to you, his request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two oh four or 200?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two hundred with the matching -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But you have 204 here, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: There’s a 204…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I know, and that’s…yeah, that’s an incorrect thing on my part.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So 200.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It is 200, ma’am. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, consensus then. All right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so we’re giving him what he requested.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And that was consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two hundred with the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proviso. Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then…
CHAIR HOKAMA: The next line is 446…no, 447.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we had a consensus on 442 but the 2 Members that
weren’t here may want to look at that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that’s an across-the-board reduction?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, actually it’s up. Last year’s amount was 641,000 so the
1 million still gives them a significant increase.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus, I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don’t know about Mr. Victorino.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four four seven, Members. What is that, 2,872.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-four seventy-two.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-four seventy-two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, 2,472.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Four fifty-two.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Eight thousand two hundred thirty-eight dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What was that?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Eight two three eight.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight two three eight.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Done. Let’s see, 455.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ms. Crivello had…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four sixty-one, it’s 1,050. Ten five zero.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: How much?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One zero five zero.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three percent. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four sixty-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hundred eighty thousand to Cameron Center.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll come back after we do this Line 460 [sic], and we’ll go back to 464.
Four six nine was 2,406.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-four oh six. Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I’m good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Okay, let’s get to 464.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Ms. Baisa.

Mr. Chair, I have that down as Mr. White channeling

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa, you got channeled.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, Ms. Baisa of course wants to know why we took all of it
out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I deleted all new requests.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All new requests.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just…yeah. I just went from a blanket approach that all new requests
was going to…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, well…
CHAIR HOKAMA: But again, this is now, it’s just my proposal. The eight of you have your
opportunity to…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would like to revisit it if possible later when we see where we
are.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Ms. Baisa, we can do that. That’s fine. Happy to take your request.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand, you know, but just give me time to look at it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, of course, happy to. Happy to. Fair request. Four seventy-four,
450. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four fifty. Line 474 is 450.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Line 479.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have 10,440.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One zero four four zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Ten thousand four forty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Consensus, Members?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four eighty-four. Who has the magic fingers? And round it to the
higher dollar.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One sixty seven…oh no, I hit the wrong number.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, no.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Cannot be, you’re taking away money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-eight sixty-seven.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-eight sixty-seven, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. I like how you do your increase.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fat fingers.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-four ninety.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty…four eighty-nine, 2,490. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four ninety-four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nineteen ten is what I have.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Okay, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Four ninety-nine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven oh six five is what I have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven zero six five. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Five zero three.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One oh three five oh. Ten thousand three fifty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Five one two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just again, the two Members that weren’t here didn’t know that
we consensus’d to delete the new grant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Was that 512, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Carroll, this is the time, place where you’ve asked me you wanted
to make a comment. Please do.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That one I’m going to ask for restore. That one over there I
happen to be involved with, and that’s one that we’ve been using for teen suicides for
mental health. I also acquired money outside that I’ve been…nothing to do with the
Council, trying to support them. Hana alone we had far too many and even over here,
and that’s a program that’s working, a peer program among other things. And they
also do other things but it’s really an important program. And it’s just a shame seeing
our youth take their own lives so I would ask that that would be restored, the $40,000
bringing it up to 65,711. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments? Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would support that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I do too.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just curious where he’s getting it from.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m getting it from Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: From my rate increase.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I got vouchers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I was…consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You what, Members, I would prefer you just go within the request…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sixty five two oh seven. I agree with you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, on the next one -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I know you guys had consensus, I wasn’t here, but…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Which one, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 515.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mental Health Kokua.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know this is a big part of my community here. They
have their facility right here on, or one of their facilities on Market Street.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the outreach program that they do has been very
intrical [sic] and very important, not only in my community but I think in all of our
communities. If you can’t see where for 200,000, I would ask for half of that or
100,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you’ve heard the request and proposal from Mr. V.
comments? Mr. Couch?

Other

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree with Mr. Victorino, this is
probably…this is going to go along with all our, the homeless issues because a lot of it
is mental health issues. So with the rate increase, I think the 200,000 is doable. So
I’m fine with the 200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I was asking for 100 but if you’re going to give me 200
I mean I ain’t going to complain. But, you know, I just, you know, something is better
than nothing, and in the spirit of compromise, I’d look at 100,000. But if you can see
a way for 200,000 and we have consensus, I’d be very happy with that also. So I’ll
leave it up to the Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, of course I would be tempted to channel Mr. Victorino’s response
when I ask for a little bit more money -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --but I won’t do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you will, but that’s okay, I love you too.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But I would want to ask you, Chair, on…my understanding is that part
of the reason for this deletion was not just it was a new grant but that we’ve expanded
some of the other opportunities for people to apply for the larger buckets of money
that are available in the Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’ve adjusted, yeah, what I would call program pots -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. So -CHAIR HOKAMA: --instead of specific items for a specific agency.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --I would be comfortable with Mr. Victorino’s request for 100 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Me too.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --with the understanding they can still go and get additional monies
from another pot.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Done. Yeah and again, Members, if you look you will notice I
have put monies in those program pots which any agency can apply for. Any agency.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mike.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so 100,000, moving forward. Thank you. Page…Line 525. You
want me…you want to take a look at that, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was looking at 519 before we go ahead, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, sure. I’m happy to return to that line.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That was the Kidney Foundation, we took out the whole grant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could we get -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --25 back for that one? At least something because kidney
disease is one of our leading diseases in this State and this County. If you go down to
the…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand. I deal with it, my family deals with it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Most families deal with it, whether it’s diabetes -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A lot of dialysis.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or other things, so it’s a, yeah, Hawaii knows kidney diseases well. So
again, I approached it from anything new I chose not to consider for this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I totally understand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so you have a proposal, ma’am?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But I’m worried that, you know, this is such an important thing.
Do they have other means of funding? ‘Cause I hate to see them falter. We need
something.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was…well, you know, I think they can qualify under our new food,
shelter and that other big pot that was community partnerships. But again, Members,
this was my proposal, I’m open to your consideration. So, miss…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, if we can get…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Somebody just mentioned 1 25, I don’t know who…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Let’s put the 25.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
something.

Yeah, I said 25 just to as, just to make sure they have

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Something.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then if they want to go to the big pot and they can get
some out of the big pot then they’re a lot closer to that. So the 25,000 again is just my
method of saying I want a little to help these guys. So I can give 10,000 to Mr. White
for his and then I’m even for the day. No, but seriously, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, I understand. You know I mean you all have hearts, okay,
everybody has a heart, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Twenty-five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-five thousand, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: At least something, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, the next one…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was just going to say, the next one is…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The Salvation Army comes out to a little over what they were in the
Budget for so I would just leave it at 142.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One forty-two.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What line?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One twenty…225…I mean 525.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Back to where they were.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You got that, 142? Thank you. I know you guys are in a good mood and
everybody wants to be Santa Claus but as your Grinch I will tell you, we have to pay
the bill. Okay. Okay, so we are now on Line 530.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Self-sufficiency, yeah. Three percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Three percent is 4,326, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four three two six. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What was it? Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four three two six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four three two six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, for the 2 that weren’t here, we consensus’d 534
‘cause there were no revisions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five three four. Oh yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Next line I have is 545.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Special Olympics yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. Up…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you, yeah, you’re right. I thought we…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Special Olympics, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, okay. Five thirty…540.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 3 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What was that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then have the proviso…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eleven fifteen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eleven fifteen, okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The proviso is for Molokai. Is that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Molokai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for Molokai, the proviso -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members. Proviso of the 10,506 is specifically for Molokai. And
then we’re going to raise this number…what is your number, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eleven fifteen, 1,115.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One one one five.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: They got more than what…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, they got less. No, they got more, yeah, you’re right.
Three percent, yeah, thank you. But more went to Molokai too. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let’s see. Five forty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Was 3 percent, 750 right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh that’s all right if he didn’t notice the 25,000 cut.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I saw the cut but…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So the increase is how much?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven hundred and fifty dollars.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Okay, Line 551, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: In light of recent events I would like to restore the expansion
and, you know, and then delete the increase.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you’re looking at 220?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten thousand for Women Helping Women?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two twenty-eight fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait, wait, what you said?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, no, 220,850.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two two zero eight fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah, yeah, yeah. I’m fine with that, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch wants to go back to the original -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Back to the Mayor’s number.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --request.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no problem, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two two zero eight five zero.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus, I’m good.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s Line 548.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any issues with 549? It’s a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus for…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the 3 percent right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. No, no, no. All we are looking at is 220,850 now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay, okay. I see, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: With Line 549 proviso attached to -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that number.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was at 557 already, Chair, sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so proviso and 280,850 [sic]. Okay, done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One two six zero.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five five seven.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What about 557?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One two…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s what he just said.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One two, yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One two six zero.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I didn’t hear that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s your island and you’re well aware of what they do there,
and I notice you deleted the expansion of almost $8,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. I treat all organizations the same. Even if it’s on Lanai. I treat them
the same.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood. Understood. But are you…you’re still okay with
that or you want to…
CHAIR HOKAMA: One of the things that we have consensus on that you supported the Chair
is to expand the Lanai cultural and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --economic development pot. I believe CDFL with its Director Ms. Aoki, if
they need additional funds I would ask them to look at that pot because it then would
be for a specific project.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, you know, I made sure that they can access monies to take care of a
specific need for the community. And we’ve set up East Maui the same way, Haiku,
Paia, and I believe Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I think we have enough flexibility. I mean I appreciate you folks willing
to give us more money, but I think we can…we’ll survive on what everybody else needs
to survive on. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, on the -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --next 2 -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on 562.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five six two. Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’d like to go just back to the original amount because if
you add that up it’s going to come out to one…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s going to be the same.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, same thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Great logic. So consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the next one would be the same also.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One oh six zero nine zero.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and the next one would be the same thing also. Put
500 back and make it back to the original 51,100. That’s 567.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So okay, we’ll take it one at a time. One oh six zero nine zero,
5…Line 560.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Five six five, 51,5.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Five seven five.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This one I had a revisit from Mr. Guzman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Which one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ohana Makamae.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Maui Youth and Family, 570.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh yeah, 570.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five seventy, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Guzman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m sorry, I was…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: New program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, MYFS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, there was another new program that was…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Please use your microphone.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Yeah, so we can…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Sorry. Yeah, there was another new program earlier that we
didn’t approve. So this was just an expansion on the new program. So I was hoping
we can at least give 100,000 out of the 200.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you’ve heard the request from Mr. Guzman.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On 575…
CHAIR HOKAMA: One second please.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, sorry, thank you. Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So apparently they didn’t ask for an increase and you gave ‘em
a 2 percent increase. If we’re going to go…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah and that was a good catch on your part, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would go with the 90,707.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. Thank you for that catch. Yeah, I apologize, it must have
been one of those midnight -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --hour decisions on my part.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No worries.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five eighty.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This was, again, the Substance Abuse Programs that I believe
is going to go for mental health counseling in Ka Hale A Ke Ola. Yeah, it’s a new
expansion but again, our…I guess pushing…a lot of the homeless issue is mental
health and that’s what I’m hearing from all the people who are working on it. And
we’re pretty bereft of mental health services, I mean already, so anything we can do to
help that would be beneficial. So I’m willing to go to the full 97, but it’s up to the
other Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support that or some figure of and remove the 9,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your comments…other comments, Members? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I don’t think that we can invest too much money in this
area. It’s such a problem. And I know -CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree with you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --there’s no limit, we could put millions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s right, I agree. You know I mean…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, you know, whatever we can I know is -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would you consider 47?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --going to be well used and worthwhile.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, would you consider 47? Kind of like splitting
the…would you consider 47 on this particular? Take away the 2 percent, just add
back 47.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why don’t we just round it out to…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To 50. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Easier.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifty, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I concur with your figures myself. I hear what the Members
are saying and of course I’m all wholeheartedly for Substance Abuse Programs and all
that other great stuff. It’s just this entity, especially in Lahaina, I’ve been hearing a lot
of issues and concerns and things that I haven’t had the time to address and really get
into and research and dive in. So at this point, I am not confident in that area to
carry out what this money is going to be slated for in a very productive manner and
the way the Members here believe it’s going to be utilized. So I will go with this but I
just want to share my issues with this entity at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you’re not ready to, you know, agree, Ms. Cochran -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the Chair is fine with that, because we will be returning to other areas
where some Members still have -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --some comfort issues. Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would you consider…Ms. Cochran, would you consider this
50,000 staying here in the Wailuku side until we can address all your problems?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But…Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: As I under…isn’t…I thought is this not specific to West Maui
or this is across the board for both?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Across the board. It was across the board.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair views this as a Countywide pot.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, it’s a pot.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it can be used for, if a qualified entity from Molokai, Hana, or Lanai
applies, and the Department feels it’s a responsible…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, how come I heard…who did I just hear? Mr. Couch
saying this expansion was for in particular Ka Hale A Ka Ola. Am I not right?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, hold on one second. I think you’re right, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s why I’m sharing this -CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s verify.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will verify first. Ms. Yoshimura?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I heard that.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the request for 97,000 is based on a Ka Hale A Ke Ola program
for addiction recovery management.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Ms. Yoshimura, does it state what, which one? Central
or West -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in particular or no?
MS. YOSHIMURA: No, it’s not specific.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it could be for either or both facilities. So -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you know what, we’ll return to this ‘cause the Chair has some, his
druthers with this entity too. We’ll return. We shall return. Okay…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, the next one -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --even though, you know, again it would be very similar to
the other one, Mr. Couch, you put back the 100,000. But Youth Alcohol Education
Awareness Programs there’s never enough. I’d like to leave the 2,000 that you
proposed, so making it 102.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate the, your comments, Mr. Victorino. And I understand
your…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this is Countywide too, yeah, so.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand that too. What I would ask you now is, you know, we are
on an add roll right now. I would ask you to just push the 100,000 now and then
once we get a sense of how much you’ve added back -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine, Chair. That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we can come back and we can do some…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause there’ll be one more round, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not the final round, so I would ask can we move 100,000 forward?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine. That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, 588.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’d like to go back to the original -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --85,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --85,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
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CHAIR HOKAMA: In fact I just saw a rerun, it was, the trivia question was what is the name
of the two youngest siblings?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Don’t ask me ‘cause I don’t know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What was the name of the program?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 595, Members. Mr. Couch, your number?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The number.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Again, Members, this one is a huge decrease, I don’t know what
the expansion was, what the request was, but…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --give you a comment on that. Ms. Yoshimura?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, my recollection was that this was for a program specific to the
kids at Ka Hale A Ke Ola and the, at the Waiale Park.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, it’s for an afterschool program to expand from two days to four
days.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know again I want to be judicious and expand where
we need to expand. What I would ask is maybe an additional 10,000 be reinstated to
make it 105,889…892, and that’s all I would ask for. You know I think then we’ll be
able to get 3 days probably out of that based upon the, what I was told by the director.
So that’s all I would ask, but, you know, I’ll leave it up to my colleagues.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One oh five?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One oh five eight nine two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, gang.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 105,892.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Six hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I have to recuse myself on this one I believe.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, but you can propose.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can propose.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m happy to…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The number is 29,910.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two nine…what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-nine thousand nine hundred and ten.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You’re okay with that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: …round numbers.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Maybe I fat fingered it. One nine nine four oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I don’t see Ms. Nakata or Ms. Yoshimura shaking their head. So I
guess…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No yeah, that’s the number.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you’re number’s okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Twenty-nine nine ten.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Six oh five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four two eight three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Are we going to change this one too, Mr. Chair? Take away
the 2 percent, go back to the original?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We just, yeah, give them the original.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Six one four. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This one I think it was last year they
actually came and said look, you gave us a raise the year before and you want to give
another raise this year and we can’t use it at this time. So they came up, stepped up
to the plate and didn’t take their 5 percent from last year. So I would like to restore it
to the 245,285 if the Members would agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, thank you for your proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Are you saying --
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --they need it this year?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, they said…I called her and asked her and she said…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
spoke.

‘Cause, you know, they never showed up and nobody

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: She was in the hospital.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know that but nobody from the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --organization spoke, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members…
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We are moving forward the number 245,285.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On 618 you’re going to take the 220 out again, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, 11,000, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I know…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’d like to put that back to the original.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would like to put it back to its original too. I know you are
being frugal with everybody else, but this is for the youth and it’s your district and I
know you can’t speak up for it, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I move to put it back to 172,086.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: …not speak for his district. Excuse me.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Everybody can speak for their district, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You gotta speak for your district.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, he speaks for his district but as the Chair he usually
doesn’t give suggestions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, you get my recommendations, Members, you know, I mean I’ve given
you a recommendation. And again I appreciate your folks, you know, willingness and
don’t get me wrong, I mean if you guys make the call…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let’s do it right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let’s do it right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus. One seven two zero eight six.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Got it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The other one…okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six twenty-eight we got consensus. This is something that the Mayor and
I have worked on. The Mayor was kind enough to propose it earlier as a full CIP. The
Mayor has made revisions ‘cause I would agree with him we are only ready for
planning money at this time, and so the 150 is appropriate. I wouldn’t ask you for
anything besides planning money at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, it’s all consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we have consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we already consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the next one if you add the amount it’s 5,850 so it’s
basically take out the two red.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that’s right. So 280,850 [sic].
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Next one is adding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six thirty-six.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go back to the original figure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s see…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Original figure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty-two six thirty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s see, 639.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Restore to…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Original.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Restore to original please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two five seven five zero zero. Okay, done.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six forty-four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Paia Youth Center -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --more.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This one…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know they do a great job and I’d like to add back the, whatever the
2 percent is or the 3 percent is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I was going give you 2 percent, I don’t know about
giving you a 3 now.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You better watch out, I’ll ask for another 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Shoot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So 228,735.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, he wanted to add 3 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He wants to add another percent, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, what’s the number?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’ll get it in a second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Six seven two -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Six seven two --
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --eight.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --eight.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that Project Graduation didn’t request an increase -CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but you added.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Again, yeah, that was…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So back to the 47,74…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty-seven seven forty-one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six five four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, this is one -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You had the other piece in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I actually in my notes here I want to delete both of them.
This is kind of a slush fund and I don’t know what the expenditure is but I don’t think
they came close last year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What is that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is this just a pot of money?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s…yeah, it’s a pot of money for youth programs.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where is Mr. Baz when I need him?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good pot, leave it there.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You can ask her?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can ask you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes, yes. Ms.…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Leave the 109.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we just leave it there for now and get a response from
the Department -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --please?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. On 5…654?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’ll get…okay, fine, we can return, 654.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah I would like to get a response from the Department
please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine, Members, not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six six zero.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six six zero, no.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’d like to add the 2 percent or the 3 percent to that number.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You took away the expansion.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. But add back 3 percent to the 838,112
CHAIR HOKAMA: Three percent of 838,112. Okay. Whose finger is fast?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What is that? Couch?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I get 25,143.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus. Six six two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six six two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty-five…what was that, I’m sorry. Mister…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-five one four three.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 25,143 to add to 838,112. You have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On your island, I remember them coming and saying, you
know, that they were going on their own, just like Molokai, and that they weren’t
taking any pot from Maui. And like Molokai and Lanai, I would like to make sure they
have enough to run their programs. I understand you were deleting all expansions, I
got no problem with that. But I would like to make sure that both programs have
enough money to run the program needed on that particular island. So I don’t know if
there’s a willingness to reinstate both of them at the request of the 20,000 and the
137,634. That would be my recommendation but it’s up to the body.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say Lanai, just 15,000 is enough.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifteen, thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus. I think we had consensus originally.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Molokai. That was Lanai, 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So thank you, Mr. Victorino. I’d like to ask the
Committee or Staff what is the balance in the Animal Management Fund?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It’s about 104,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, thank you, Staff.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Save them some time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. That being said, I’d like to proviso that 55,680
from the Animal Management Fund if I may, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, now wait a minute. I going stop you here.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So we deleted the expansion -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --of 55…we deleted $55,680.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You want to add it back?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
Management Fund.

I want to but I’d like to take it out of the Animal

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From this year?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, ‘cause you’ve got 104.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but they still haven’t finished the year, we got two
and a half months left.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I’ve just asked Staff if, you know, if that’s the balance
they show, am I able to do that and just proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, I -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --would say I’m not too sure, because I’m thinking Mr. Baz already
calculated part of Carryover/Savings -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to come up with his totals --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and therefore I don’t know if we can touch this year’s money to shift to
next year. I don’t think we can. Ms. Yoshimura? Ms. Nakata?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, mister…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’m willing to add that to my rate increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that’s why I say I willing to put it back, the 137.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh okay. South Maui going hapai.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Either that or you take it away from the 838 plus the 25,000 you add in
and you subtract the 50 from there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair, I prefer not to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’d like to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --restore actually the 137.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, that was my suggestion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I was looking at where I could get the monies from.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’ll hapai you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No worry, we get, we get.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No worry, we’ve got it figured out.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: In an e-mail from Mr. Baz, the current balance in the fund is about
$150,000. After 2 months of expenditures to end up on June 30, 2016, he estimates
104,000 being in the fund, so that would be available for appropriation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But that would be a part of the Carryover, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right but that’s part of Carryover.
MS. YOSHIMURA: No, it’s not part of the Carryover/Savings, it is in an Animal Management
Revolving Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection is that, that Animal Management Fund is where
vehicles are purchased and other things for the Humane Society.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And so I would rather we…I agree with taking it back, because the
Molokai group works -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --off of, you know, off of very slim pickings. So I’m comfortable with
the increase, but I think it should come from General Fund, not from the Animal
Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But if Mr. Couch is willing to hapai…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I am.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One thirty-seven six thirty-four. I going tell for Mr. Couch I’m not going to
be too agreeable on rate increases.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, mine are rate reductions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, next, 673.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: This is the one where the number, the starting number or the 150 of
the amount that they were given last year came from the Animal Management Fund.
So you deleted the expansion, what I would like to do is add back the 150 which takes
the 402,482 to 552,482 and then add the 3 percent to that which is 16,575 giving a
total of 569,057.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five six nine what?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That makes it…569,057 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
Program.

--which makes it consistent with what we did for the Sheltering

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Staff, you got that? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair, I didn’t.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I didn’t. I didn’t get that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So 569,057, is that the total?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Five six nine zero five seven is the new total. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s the new total. Which is still down from 654.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six ninety-four.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whoa next page.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah we don’t, I don’t see a note on 681.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We have consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
anymore.

Okay.

Well, SPCA Maui I don’t believe is doing the spay/neuter

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, call your wife and ask.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, no, it was, unfortunately there was a takeover of the funding, and
so I would suggest the Humane Society has done a fabulous job getting grants from
the mainland -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and those grants aren’t going to -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --last forever. And so I would recommend that in…that those funds be
channeled to the Humane Society.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, can other districts use it too or?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we hapai Ms. Crivello for some of it?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: On Lanai.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We just hapai’d her with half that amount.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, wait a minute.
anybody around here.

I don’t want to hear about hapai’ing

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Jesus, you guys, good night.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’ll take it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh wait, wait. That’s your district, what are you talking
about you’ll take it? I think we’re…it’s late, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Chair, he wants to move the 100,000 to Line 660?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think what he wants to do is just change it -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I want it specifically for spay/neuter.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, for the Maui Humane Society.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
$100,000.

Okay.

So Line 679 will just be called Spay/Neuter Program period,

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excellent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, done. Done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And not…and but for Maui Humane Society in particular or
just -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s just -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --any entity can come -CHAIR HOKAMA: --Spay/Neuter Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and utilize it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any qualified entity may apply for the money. Any qualified entity. So
this is not for SPCA -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that what you’re saying, Mr. Couch or Mr. White?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this is not for Humane Society, it’s for any qualified entity that would
like to apply for spay/neuter funds. Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I’d…
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause I’m not supporting that it go to the Humane Society.
anybody to get access for this.

I want

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Even Don Couch.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Then I’m wondering if…well, it might be better if we give Molokai
20,000 of that or something like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They can apply -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --like everybody else.

- 162 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You’re right, you’re right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re making it fair for everybody.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: On the grants that there were provisos placed for a specific purpose and a
3 percent was provided to the grant, Staff would like guidance as to how to adjust the
proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which proviso?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Which one?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What? Where?
MS. YOSHIMURA: For instance Special Olympics, Special Olympics has a proviso…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What page are we?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten thousand for Molokai?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ten thousand five sixty for Molokai?
MS. YOSHIMURA: For Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we said.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What page?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, it’s on Page 18 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Five thirty-eight.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: --Line No. 537 or 538.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or 540 actually, the proviso, we increased the proviso too, 540.
MS. YOSHIMURA: So when we prepared the original proposal, we did increase the proviso
2 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MS. YOSHIMURA: So Staff would make the adjustment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Give it 3 percent. Yeah, increase the proviso to 3 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(inaudible). . . back because there was a proviso -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on the Special Olympics.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, increase it to 3 percent.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. And there’s another one on Page 14, Line 404.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you can adjust it to the 3 percent as long as they stay within the
5,250.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that’s the…the 5,250 was the original so…and the
original proviso was 28,681.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, I’m going to ask you to allow Staff to make those
appropriate adjustments and notify the Committee of what the new adjusted figure
would be. Is that okay, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll allow Staff to make those adjustments and then return and
report to the Committee of those adjustments. Thank you for bringing that up at this
time. Okay. We are now on 694.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six ninety-four.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Which line number?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six ninety-four but I don’t know which one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My proposal is from 696 all the way down to 703.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, Mr. Chair, 696, I’m asking that you restore that one. Is
this…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Six ninety-six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh this is Management.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That’s a vacant position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe that is a return-right position. So you’re deleting just
the funds until the person comes back, is that how you’re…
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s the plan.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh I see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because yes, the incumbent is in another, is in an appointed position
currently, and again, by requirements we are required to allow him to return within a
specified time that he has to decide. So he has a return right back to that position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the position doesn’t go away, right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just the money.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just the funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I’ll be okay be with that if the next 697 stays in.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well okay, we’ll return on the next round ‘cause the Chair’s not going to
agree.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, me neither.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Me neither.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let’s see -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven oh eight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --626…708.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven oh eight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven oh eight.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh yeah. Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah the veterans, yeah we need to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought we consensus…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh no, no, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Seven oh six and seven…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven oh eight was -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah it’s…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --yeah, that’s the zero right, so seven oh six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, this is, was my revisits. We…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It wasn’t your only one, it was me too. But okay, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually you weren’t here, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, let’s put it this way, Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So…
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I’m here tonight and I’m saying I want to revisit it, please.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can we build a wall here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, hold on. Hold on, Members. Okay. Regarding this, you know that
the Chair moved this, right -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that’s where we’re questioning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s where we’re saying…at least what I’m saying is I, as per
the Director of Public Works, he’s asking that we don’t do that, and I agree with him
because it’s more than just the cemetery work.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes. Also, you know, in working with our veterans on the,
that $9,000 grant, that’s what it is. So they have to give their reports and they
work…what’s his name, Denny? Yeah -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --so they work with Denny and that’s what the veterans do
with doing, submitting all the reports. So when I hear Mr. Goode saying that he
doesn’t have the capacity to take care of all that and the constant oversight, I believe it
makes it easier even for the application of the grant to be under Management.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Did we…did I agree to the expansion for veterans cemetery? Yeah. Did I
cut that expansion request? No, I think I supported it, yeah? ‘Cause of the increased
acreage. I did, yeah? Yeah. Part of…what I will share with you is why I felt it was, we
should consider Public Works is one, Public Works is currently assigned the
responsibility of veteran cemeteries Countywide. Second, your Chair if…did…is
recommending to you as part of the expansion of our main veteran cemetery, my thing
was to support the request for a supervisory position that they, the Department is
asking. I feel that, that additional position can help the Department take care these
other program components that relate to somehow a veterans component. Whether it
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be the Veterans Council, Molokai veterans, West Maui veterans, I’m thinking that by
providing the Department that supervisory expansion position. So I did get weak, I
agreed to that. But I’m thinking now we’re giving them one supervisory position that
can help them with this program area, and it’s not massive projects to manage. You’re
talking about 27, 31, I mean we talk about $50,000, Members. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I’m probably out in left field here, but is there a concern from the
veterans about the services they’re getting from the Management people?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, this was more about…let’s…I think it’s the Maui group, it’s more
about the upcoming events that they would like to participate in, and I believe one of
the veterans did come forward and explain the, their giant increase from 9,000 to
18,000. And that’s why you see the 18,000 under grant to Maui County veterans.
Molokai is pretty consistent. West Maui I believe one of the spokespeople was
Mr. Paul Laub -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and, you know, their attitude is we would ask for this support, if not,
we’re still going to do it because we love our community. So -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I just felt to support it and allow it with that expansion position for
veteran cemetery programs and whatnot, that supervisory can assist administering
this program. So that’s how I approached it, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But Mr. Laub is not complaining that they’re not getting any help
from the Management Department so they should go someplace else.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That’s what I’m trying to figure out -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no. He’s just -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --is why move it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --asking that we provide monies to help pay for the maintenance of
supplies that they put out to help maintain.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And these are all new grants, these have never, we’ve never had
them before?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, they’re not.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, for West Maui but…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: One’s higher, the other’s the same.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Maui County veterans have been in existence for a while. We have
been supporting Molokai veterans for many years in the Budget. So yeah, I’m just
saying that, you know, I just shift it to Public Works but the request of the monies is
in the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: You know my staff works closely with the Molokai veterans,
and they just about got it wired with how the grant process is with Management. And
if you check overall, when grant applicants, they, it takes them a while to figure out
exactly what they gotta do. So first, they’re weaned through, so, you know, the
Management Office and I’m sorry I don’t know his name, Denny and my staff works
closely to help make sure they meet all the requirements of even if it’s not a very large
grant, they have reporting requirements, they have application requirements and
everything else. So they just got it wired so -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --that’s just my concern then we’re going to move it over to a
new supervision or oversight, and will they, will that person in itself understand grant
process? I think that’s sometimes the confusion we sometimes get because it’s grants.
That’s just my opinion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I appreciate your comments ‘cause -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I understand we have issues and that’s why we try to revise Grants
Program many times, ‘cause it can be a bureaucratic nightmare for grantees. I
appreciate those comments, I understand. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I would agree that this, just for that reason alone, they should
probably stay here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, that was my proposal. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So you know I always harp on Public
Works and what do you do for the cemeteries. I mean great for the vets but what
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about all the others, I have a million in…anyways. So I know this one 4,000 is a new
proposal from Mr. Paul Laub, the West Maui Veterans Club, and it is specifically for
only Hanakaoo -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Beach Park’s Cemetery.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right next to the Hyatt.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: They have been going in and, you know, providing services
and what have you. But I have heard concerns from Public Works about the work
they do. And so I think it can be cleared up and explain what the issues are on their
behalf. Because if they’re going to be paid to do something then there’s gotta be some
parameters set on how you go about doing your job. So that’s just my thoughts on
this. And yeah, I’m all in support. I’m glad somebody’s picking up the ball on this
‘cause I keep harping about this all the time, but there’s a lot more cemeteries, not
just this one. So if these vets can maybe expand and build out their workforce, I
would sure love to see them go around and take care of all the others in West Maui.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Let’s leave that one in Public Works. No because they have the…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, makes sense.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on. Hold on. Hold on, guys. Ms. Cochran, we appreciate your
comments. I would just say that, Members, you do know that Public Works currently
has the responsibility of all County cemeteries.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s right. That’s right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So Molokai, Ms. Crivello is well aware, we have County cemetery,
Public Works is responsible for those cemeteries.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s not Management, okay. On Lanai, it’s Public Works with veterans
cemetery. Maui it’s Public Works. So I’m just trying to be consistent, because that’s
part of our problem is we get things all over the place and all these different
departments. People going like I thought they were doing it, well, they just do it for
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Molokai and Lanai. Maui, no, these guys do it. You know I, I’m, part of this is to help
straighten out our structural disadvantages if I can use that term. But again, it’s just
your Chair’s proposal. You guys want to leave it in Management -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we can leave it in Management.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Again, I think I’m finally beginning to understand. Okay, this
money is all tied up with cemeteries?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just the last one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just 4,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: West Maui is about the cemetery.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Veterans Council is about events they want to do -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in the upcoming fiscal year -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --because it’s, there’s some major veteran events that is, they are planning
to I guess participate in -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in our County. The Molokai one is again, our normal support of that
we’ve given over the years.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. So now that I understand what these grants are about, I
think maybe we ought to leave ‘em alone for now. But it’s something we might want to
take a look at, let that supervisor that we’re going to get, get his feet wet and figure
how he’s going to handle this acreage and his new job that people and all we’re going
to expect him to do. And let’s look at it. If it doesn’t work and he’s ready to take it,
well, then next time, move it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Hi. Thank you, Mr. Chair. I probably would never support
that in that, you know, a guy who’s supervising cemeteries at Public Works has no
idea what’s going on with all these other special programs. And grants management,
even if it’s only $4,000 or even if it’s only $9,000, you have to go through all kinds of
weird paperwork and stuff. So to have, to put that on that guy as opposed to
somebody who’s already doing it and have no complaints about from anybody as far as
the handling of the grants, I see this is kind of getting into micromanaging. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But that’s what we do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know. I know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You would know if I was managing, Mr. Couch. Okay. Again, that is your
Chair’s…you guys wanna leave it in here? We can leave it in here.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right, consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Six twenty-six -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where are we now?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and 627. I mean excuse me, 726-727.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What about…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was going to what?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh okay. We finished all that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am? Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Before we move on, I mean the whole…so it’s a grant given
by Management with no…I’m speaking just for the West Maui issue, yeah, the 4,000.
I know it’s not big bucks but it’s just the principle. And who’s going to oversee it
then? Management, and they’re going to…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Regan as head of the Department is at the end of the line of…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. So he can go talk to Public Works and ask them
what the back history is or whatever and work it together and make sure that this
group does the job the way, you know…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because it’s going to be a grant so they’re going to have to have an
executed agreement on the terms, expectations, schedule of payments, everything else.
And if it’s a reimbursable then the grantee is going to have to come back with
appropriate documentation to verify the reimbursement amount. So it should be all
set in the grant agreement that both parties will execute.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I mean I know we don’t have a cemetery expert here
but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --just so there’s…right, you know, some parameters set.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But if you have concerns and you are, you want to, we’re open to language
you might want to propose if you feel if you want to tighten it up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, that’s really micromanaging, I don’t want to…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It’s not as…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The whole banyan trees, no, you know.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oleander.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean if you want to give proviso to help so there’s no question of what
the intent of the money is.
Provisos tend to help clarification and to take
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away…because it’s always like well, what was Council’s intention with the…oh I don’t
know. Hey, read the proviso, it is for this specific use, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Chair, maybe perhaps I can give Mr. Paul Laub a call
and…you think?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I mean I have no issue with the amount, I have no issue
with the entity, I just want to make sure the job that we’re paying them, going to pay
them to do is a good job.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You need to, please -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --can you report back tomorrow?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause tomorrow night is the night.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, happy to return, not a problem. Okay, 726-727. Members, we
already had consensus on 24 and 25. So we’re on the Ops and Equipment. And I
believe to be fair I want to refer that Mr. Verkerke did come and give comments -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and explained his thoughts to us.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. Couch?

And so, you know, Chair was open to Mr. Verkerke’s comments.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, Mr. Chair, Mr. Verkerke said he would need in Operations
to, would like us to add back 100,000 and then in Equipment add back 130,000. And
he has it in his testimony submitted a couple days ago.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Why don’t you propose that?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s my proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 100,000 in Ops?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Line 726 is an additional, add 100,000, so make the -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --takeaway…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay and then on 727, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven twenty-seven add 130,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So eight oh three seven zero, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It reduces the negative.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just to…yeah. So just so you know I am happy to support this -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proposal. Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And just for clarification, when I say add 100,000 to 726, that
makes the negative 227,560 to negative 127,560.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other one makes it 543,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And seven hundred thirty dollars.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thank you, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
dangerous.

Sometime, Couch, you and I can think alike, that’s

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have consensus on 733.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, we had consensus on 733 but this is the area I passed
out--oh sorry, I haven’t passed out yet to everybody--a potential, just an outline of
what the office of agriculture would be. And I’m thinking it would be either in
Department of Management or Office of the Mayor and we’re right in between the two,
only because it deals with three, at least three different departments. So obviously
we’re not going to do anything on it tonight, but I would like to pass this out for the
Members to take a look at it. If everybody says oh yeah, it sounds like something we
can do, then great, if not, then that’s fine too. But I would like to at least propose it
as…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair is happy to allow you to propose.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I will pass this out at the break I suppose.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we’re going to take a break now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh we are? Okay. Perfect.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re due. Okay. Please return 8:25. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

8:15 p.m.
8:28 p.m.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . We shall return to order, Members. Okay, we are under
Administration Program 736.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 736. Okay, hang on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any comments? Questions? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, I’m sorry. Chair, for -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --738 I’m requesting that, that be restored. And if we’re going
to do a cut, I would request that Position No. M…OM-0094, that 77,985 be cut instead
of the 120,616.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We have a proposal from Mr. Guzman, so mister…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What was the…okay, what is your…yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you tell us the title of the position you want to take out
please? Not the number, I just want to know what is the description of it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh that’s the Communications Director.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just so we know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so what is the adjusted number, your adjusted number? Minus what,
seven…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Seven seven nine eight five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven seven nine eight five.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: In replace of the…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: To replace the 120,616?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I can support -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Putting back the…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --putting back 738, but I can’t support taking out the other
one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Put in 738?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You mean you putting, supporting putting the 120…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Line 738.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we are on Line 738, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven thirty-eight. The $120,616?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restoring.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus, restore.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Restore that. Okay, yeah, that’s…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I’m not agreeing. So that ain’t moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am? Yes, Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, what was the figure -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman’s -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Mr. Guzman was throwing out there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proposal was 77,985, the cut.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Meaning so there was some type of…no, I guess…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, he’s just reducing the -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m just reducing the 120.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --amount of reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh so not the negative…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so the negative is only -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Negative on the negative.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in Mr. Guzman’s proposal it’s 77,985.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, Chair, prior to our break though isn’t this the area that
mister…oh, Couch wanted to add in per a department of ag section?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, he’s…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Having no bearing on this figure then?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It would be an entirely new additional -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --expansion? Okay, got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I put it out there, Mr. Chair, for discussion at the
appropriate time. This is the place, but maybe we can see where we are with
everything at the end and what kind of numbers we have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve put back about $1.25 million, you’ve added back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So far.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So far.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So, Chair, just for my own, you know, explanation -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --as to why this position rather than the position that you
have cut in the Budget. The reason being is that I believe that the Communications
Director is using the letterhead of the County, and he’s supposed to…and he’s
representing that he is the County Communications Director. But as we’ve seen in the
past, it’s not. He’s really supposed to…he’s really the Mayor’s Office. He’s not the
County Communications. And so until they change their, his title and his letterhead, I
don’t consider him the Communications Director for the County. And I’ve, I did
introduce a bill -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --and it was, you know, it was helped, drafted by NACo, one
of the top attorneys, but yet when I got an opinion from Corporation Counsel and I
relayed that opinion to NACo, their opinion was very insufficient from our own
Corporation Counsel. And that was kept, I kept that opinion to myself and to my staff,
but yet the Mayor knew about it and he came down and testified. I don’t get that. So
to me I’ve got an issue with this, and so if there’s going to be some cuts, I would rather
save the Chief of Staff and substitute the so-called Communications Director of the
County. So that’s my say. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I appreciate your comments, Mr. Guzman. Okay, we do not have
consensus on this one. So we’ll move on. We’ll move on. The next revisit I have is…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven thirty-nine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven thirty-nine. I was going to…yeah, yeah, okay. I was going to return
for this whole area tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, the whole area, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven…what did I just say now?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seven six zero.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven six zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Don Couch.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This I believe was the salary adjustment for if I recall
Environmental Coordinator or Sustainability Coordinator.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I don’t think so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Stacia guys when they came?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I don’t recall.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: This is the salary adjustments that were calculated into the A Account for
the Office of Economic Development, anything that was based on a collective
bargaining agreement. So it was just the changes, salary.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: These are salary increases, these were salary increases that
they wanted to give their people? Okay, and that’s…I mean we’re talking about giving
our folks some and we’re talking about everybody else is getting some, I’m just
hesitant to not give…and it’s not anywhere near, I believe it’s not anywhere near what
all the collective bargaining’s are, are they? It’s not the same amounts.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I suggest that we revisit this after we see where we are.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, moving right along.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We shall return. We shall return. That’s fine. Line 768.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have a question on this one. I see the reduction but I also
see the proviso was left in. So am I under the assumption that you’re looking at
200,000 but still leaving the 75,000 for the Farmers Union United Maui Chapter? Is
that correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, very good. I got it. I can take, handle that. Good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. Wait, wait.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Sorry, I was…Mr. Couch was talking to me while
mister…anyway. So if I can re-ask, I’m sorry, you’re deleting the 75 to HFUU for the
Mentoring Program?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. He’s leaving it in but he’s just deleting 75,000, but the
proviso still stays.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh for the 75 for that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --entity?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just reducing the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: He’s reducing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --overall pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, I guess ‘cause the numbers are the same so it looked
like, yeah. Okay, got it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m reducing the pot -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus. I’m okay. Sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --but the proviso remains.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or wait, Mr. Guzman had an initial here.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, we’re good.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So yeah, 767 moves forward and 769 moves forward. Okay. My next line
is 787.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. This group has done, is doing a lot of good work,
and they did come one year and say hey, look, we usually get 80,000 and we don’t
need it this year, because the cultivars are growing, it’s taking over another year
before they can hand them out. This is for proteas I believe. So they actually came in
and when they said they don’t need the money, they came and said thanks but no
thanks. So they’re coming in and saying they need the money here for new things,
and especially with the potential land opening up, the 27,000 acres opening up for
new different types of diversified ag. I’m thinking that they’re going to be needed even
more. So that’s my suggestion is to restore the 25,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I would tend to agree with Mr. Couch, because I think these
folks are, this group is very active and I realize that at least a portion of your rationale
for the reduction is the fact that it’s, the State’s not doing its job. But I recall from last
year, that the comments were made that in the, on the mainland the counties put up
the majority of the money for this kind of activity. And so I don’t remember what the
exact percentage was, but we were a very small percentage compared to the mainland
counties. And so I’m comfortable…well actually I did have one question of Staff. Is
this, is the 100,000 the same amount they got last year or?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yes, they did receive 100,000 in 2016.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say, Members, part of my reduction is one, if the Stat is not going
to ante up now with that much acreage of agricultural land being up in the air, when
is the State ever going to do their responsibility by Constitution and take care
agriculture?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is their incentive if Maui County is always going to wipe their butts
on this subject?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: One second, Mr. Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Before -CHAIR HOKAMA: --I’m happy to recognize you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I want to go before Mr. Couch because I have something I
really need to say. Please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I don’t, you know, I understand the situation of HC&S, I understand
it’s 800 Maui families. There’s another 300-400 families with indirect impact from
HC&S closure. And I’m happy for support the County do its fair share on that, but
that’s my term, fair share. When is the State going to say we need to do our share for
State agencies, for State employees? You know this County continually bails them
out, and so what is their incentive to perform? I’m posing that question to you.
Because they know here comes Maui County Council funding seven State departments
that could have gone to seven County departments or other entities that we feel is a
direct component of County government. So, you know, you guys know how I feel.
I’m very consistent on this. I’m a Grinch on this. But if I had the kind of revenue
sources they have, I would try and be more helpful to this island at this point in time
instead of looking at the Council to continue to provide funding for State agencies.
And again, I don’t know what they gonna, how they gonna respond to all of us and the
rest of the State with that potential billion dollar carryover. Why aren’t they spending
some on Maui on this ag component? Why aren’t they…why not say we’ll give the
counties the TAT so they can then use those monies to try and address those things?
Hey, okay, fine, you gave us additional revenues, I’m open to that. But I’m, have a
hard time continually using County General Fund for State needs, ‘cause County has
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its own requirements for General Fund, County General Fund. I appreciate your ears.
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. And at a meeting Ms. Baisa and
Mr. White and I attended where we were in Oahu, I think it was Tuesday when we had
the big group and we met. And after the group had left we sat down with Senate
President Kouchi to go over a number of things that, initiatives that they were putting
forward to help with our ag as well as water and some other. They’re putting in a
sizeable amount of money. Now I really, I don’t know, I don’t want to say, right, what
exactly, but I think they’re wanting to help us in many areas. I think the State and
some of our people are out there trying to help us right now. They’re trying to help us.
So although I don’t have any figures, I don’t have any numbers, I don’t know exactly
how it’s all going to come down, I have to say, Mr. Chair, they are very sensitive to
what’s happening here in Maui County and the dilemma we face, and making sure
that this time, not like Hawaii and not like Kauai, when they shut down, it was done
wrong and they spent a lot of money and found out it didn’t work. So with that being
said, I will say in defense of the State at least they are moving to help us. Okay. And
all the specifics won’t come out till probably next week, and you know how all that
works. But I think it’s important for, to note that because I understand what you’re
saying, I agree we didn’t get our TAT, the fair share that we deserve and some other
things that yeah, I agree the State has not been really generous with us, in fact if
anything giving us unfunded mandates really is not the way we want to go. But I
think they, in this case, when it comes to ag, they are out there trying to help us. So
I’ll leave it at that, Mr. Chair. I just didn’t want just total negativity. You know you’re
right in many areas, I’m not going to argue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I appreciate your comments because you have been down there
representing us so you have a good sense, a good status, and we, I appreciate your
comments, Mr. Victorino. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just really quickly. I believe the CTAHR has brought in about
70,000 in Federal money that has been used here on Maui. And I believe also all of
their projects that they do has only been on Maui. So that’s just little a plug. That’s
all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thanks, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and thank you for that. I would just say that as of April 30 th, we have a
contract summary by PO number and this as 4/30/2016 County of Maui, Grant
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No. 4242, University of Hawaii, $100,000 appropriation, current balance available
$100,000. This is your CTAHR money, Members. Balance today is $100,000. Okay.
And we gave this, in July 1st was active and here we are at the end of April and they
still have their $100,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m guessing that they’re probably stuck in the same morass that the
coqui frog money is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But that being said, that means that the adjustment is probably okay,
because just from a timing perspective they’re not going to run out of money this year
or -CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t think so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --in FY ’17. So we can make a decision next year to put that back up.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I just want to say I -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure. Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --support your recommendation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Upcountry 4-H Program.

Seven ninety-three.

We have consensus.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah that was good, yeah. Four-H.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that, Mr. Couch?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We had consensus all the way --
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, yeah, and again -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --to 836.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I just mentioned it because I know Ms. Baisa…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ms. Baisa wasn’t here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: She would like to know, you know, what happened and we’re saying we
saying we supported the request. You see, when you need to channel the right things,
you’re not channeling.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I getting one headache. Let’s see. The next line I have to revisit,
Members, ‘cause you gave consensus to the other cultural grants and whatnot. My
next line is 835.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Eight thirty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight thirty…yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Looks like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: MEDB.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, there was three of us that put that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine. That’s fine. Who wants to go first?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. White, Ms. Crivello, and myself. So Ms. Crivello spoke up
first.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’d like for that MEDB to provide 15,000, last fiscal was
10, for our STEM and technology programs for all of the schools on Molokai.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You had…oh, so you’re requesting a proviso, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, I’m sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Has your staff written it out for us yet by chance?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Pardon?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Has your staff wrote out the proviso as you would like to have it
presented, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Let’s see what I have here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we can, you know, get a good sense of your request please.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Provided that 15,000 shall be for technology programs for
Molokai schools. That proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One five thousand, yeah, 15.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Fifteen, fifteen.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, you heard her request.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Go ahead. No, Don.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I can support that if we take the
reduction out. Wanted to mention that the reduction was again working on a new
economic, you know, pilot program for economic development here in Maui County.
And their, those guys have always come through with some good economic
development, so I would like to restore the 100,000 and would support then the
proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, we have the proviso that’s already up front first so we’re going
to deal with the proviso. Members, you have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that proviso moves forward. You’ve heard Mr. Couch’s proposal. Is
that similar to yours, Mr. White, or you have a totally different consideration?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, it’s similar to mine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And same figure?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You had the same figure with Mr. Couch?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I’d like to restore because I think they’ve shown that they do
good work and the, and that their, the application of their programs is very broad into
the schools, into various, you know, business entities, and so forth. So I would like to
continue to encourage their expansion, especially in the face of us losing two major
employers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. My concern was about, you know, as I understand it, this was for
the studio, so-called the studio project. And while I have no problem with the County
doing its support, I’m just wondering what the hell the private should be putting up,
the private sector.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Private sector. What is the film industry component, what is the private
sector putting up besides the County? If this is going to work it has to be with
multiple sectors working together. It cannot be just the County pumping out the
money. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, the private sector, the old Maui film studio is back and
they have a different function, but in…they would be used in conjunction with this
studio. The studio is more for getting the editing down and getting the dailies rushed,
you know, digitally with a really super-high-speed Internet back to the mainland
where they can be seen by the producer. So it is working in conjunction with a
multi-million dollar studio that is privately funded.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I support your recommendation. And, you know, the film
industry is something that I really have wanted to see get off the ground and it’s just
lugging. Very disappointing in all of that. But, you know, as Mr. Couch said, that one
studio I think down here in Maui Lani is, got taken over again and hope to restart and
stuff. But I’ll tell you there’s some huge issues in this County competing with Oahu
for jobs and what have you. I think this island and this is County is way too small for
two. I think this one, if it’s going to have a shot to get up and off the ground and going
needs to be the one. And hopefully they can. So I’m okay to have that get its head
start, you know, and address the film industry portion. So I’m supportive of your
recommendation, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your Chair’s understanding is this is not the film studio, this is about
office space at MEDB in Kihei.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So this has nothing to do with the studio in Central.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right, I understand that but it’s also opportunities for
filmmakers to digitize and to put it all together and yet have the opportunity to move
their equipment in. Because I think it’s very accessible. I’ve gone, I’ve attended the
amazing film festival that we have. Our island has some up-and-coming filmmakers,
and I think lot of our young people are walking into that kind of path, and somehow or
other they don’t have the infrastructure or facility to move it forward. I think the
entity in itself brings lots of credibility to try and encourage, and I think lately too if
you see how the STEM operation or STEM programs and it includes all these kinds of
modern technology that I think, I believe we can compete with Oahu and throughout
the State with the kind of talent and the kind of beauty that we carry on our islands
that our young people can capture. So I support where Mr. Couch and Mr. White is
saying to try and restore. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So this is in my Committee as well. This is actually an
incentive to allow discounted rates for studio space as an incentive to encourage
companies to come here. So just to clarify it’s just allowing a reduction in rental
space, not building a new studio. So thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
right?

I thought I heard that in this particular, R&T Park then

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That there’s a whole bunch of vacancies up there in all those
buildings right now. So I mean is there, you know, seems like there’s space there now
to utilize for such needs. I don’t know, I don’t run the show up there, but I’ve just
heard -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that many, many entities left.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let Ms. Cochran finish please.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that’s all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see Ms. Skog. Could we ask her what the situation on the
space is at her facility up there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: With no objections from you the Members, we can request her presence to
come to the podium.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, that was what I was going to request, so that’s all, I
don’t need be…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Please introduce yourself.
MS. SKOG: Jeanne Skog with the Maui Economic Development Board.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. And thank you very much, Chair, and,
Jeanne, for being here. Can you help us? You heard the question or the situation.
MS. SKOG: Yes. There is space in the park and actually we had one experience back in
October/November where a Chinese film project came in and we were trying to help
them with space, I mean wherever they wanted to be. And as it turned out, as they
evaluated space in the park, they came back to our building because of the
accessibility. That was really important. Our building is designed where it has
something like 11 or 12 exits, so basically every office has an exit, and they really like
that ‘cause they come and go literally 24 hours a day. So the other buildings like the
State building only has 2 exits, same with Premiere Place only actually 1 exit, and
then Park Plaza as well. So the accessibility was really a problem, and also the
proximity to parking and so forth. The other thing is the particular space that they
wanted, we happen to match up perfectly, so it was about 2,000 square feet and it was
rimmed with offices that could be locked. And in addition, it spilled on to a communal
space which was really, really important. So they wanted to be able to bring the crew
in, in, you know, regular meetings and have, you know, conference tables and so forth
that…so it just worked out where we had exactly the kind of space they wanted. But
the accessibility was really, really critical.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Ms. Skog, hearing that, those advantages of your site, why wouldn’t
they pay for such a good strategic site instead of the County have to pay for it?
MS. SKOG: Our hope is that we only have to pay for …they do come in with funding, they
come in with funds for office space, but the rationale from what we’ve heard from, in
fact the film critic came but also from Tracy Bennett the Film Commissioner is that
he’s trying to give Maui an edge. So this is not the silver bullet, this is one piece that
could help them be the tipping point for bringing a project in. We are competing with
Oahu, we absolutely are, and so he’s trying to find a way to give us an edge. And he’s
thinking that having this space available, this kind of space available would give him
an edge to try to win over some of these projects. So we are deferring to his experience
and kind of ours as well, having, you know, gone through that one Chinese film
project. But we are definitely deferring to his experience on, you know, whether this
would really be an attractive point for films projects that he’s trying to bring into Maui.
That he could say okay, we have space available and, you know, have these amenities
and we can, you know, help you with the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I would say the State’s the big winner then, because they’re going to
get the additional revenues from excise taxes, income taxes, and everything else.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: TAT.
CHAIR HOKAMA: TAT. But what does the County get through RPT and whatnot? Not much
more, Members. Not much more from our General Fund investment. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And to respond to that, you’re right, as
far as direct into the General Fund, but there, you know, they provide jobs, even if it’s
a part-time job. I have a question for Ms. Skog. You’re saying that they pay for the
space, and so what would you need this money for?
MS. SKOG: This would be…‘cause we have costs associated with the space as well, so the
request from the County was can we lock down the space to use this as a pilot effort to
bring more film in. We cannot afford to leave, just hold the space in hopes that
something comes in. We needed to have a way to shore us up in fact if there’s a
shortfall. So that was the rationale for why there’s some match coming in from the
County.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So…
MS. SKOG: It’s possible that we won’t need it, you know.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So if you use it say 50 percent of the time then that, you
probably wouldn’t use our…‘cause I’m assuming that your charges for them are going
to be a little more than your rates.
MS. SKOG: It, what we are proposing are based on the rate we would need.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
MS. SKOG: So yeah, so whatever they come in with, we don’t have to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Draw down on.
MS. SKOG: --draw down. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So if the space is not used at all, it’s going to cost the County
$100,000, and if it’s used 50 percent of the time, we get half of the money back?
MS. SKOG: Well, part of the funding was going to go to the broadband setup, because that
was one of the things that was really, really important, very-high-speed broadband.
So in the budget that I gave the Chair, it included about 25,000 I think for broadband.
It’s really, really critical for film projects to have that speed and reliability. So part of it
was going to go to that. But the rest of it, most of the rest of it was to shore up the
cost of the space.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If the space remains empty for the year, what is your loss in rental
revenue?
MS. SKOG: Our loss in rental revenue, I believe it came to about 67,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So essentially the, after the broadband…
MS. SKOG: Rental and CAM. Sorry?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: After the broadband expense, we’re renting the entire space?
MS. SKOG: Right, that’s the lockdown aspect of it. But again, you know, if this is, this pilot
is successful, we don’t need to tap it or we don’t have to tap all of it or, you know, just
a portion of it in order to attract someone in.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
MS. SKOG: Mr. Chair? It’s me. Sorry.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Skog?
MS. SKOG: If I may just add one comment? Is that all right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
MS. SKOG: Okay. I know this is an unusual situation, but our going after this kind of stuff
is unusual for us anyway. It’s a challenge. And it’s all about creating a climate for
this kind of activity to happen, and it’s a step-by-step thing. There’s no one silver
bullet that works in economic development or business development, you just gotta
keep trying these different tools and hope that they, you know, something ignites and
happens. So it’s really part of an overall effort to bring and, you know, have film
nurtured here. And I’m really glad someone brought up the fact that there’s so much
digital media happening in the schools, ‘cause there is, and we’ve had some great stars
come out of Maui, you know, who’ve gone into film as well. So the potential is
definitely there and we just want to keep trying to move this forward. Thank you,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Other comments from the Members? Okay, thank you. One
thing that caught my ear, Ms. Skog, so you used the word pilot, so for the Chair that
means something that is only maybe one to three years you’re going to ask for money.
Is that your understanding? ‘Cause that’s my understanding when you ask for pilot
money it’s a temporary consideration, not going to be one annual request.
MS. SKOG: I think it’ll depend on how successful we are. I mean that’s how I see pilot. We
try it and if it’s satisfactory results to everyone then if the County wants to, you know,
continue to go this way, we’re happy to look at it. If it’s not then or, you know, if it
needs tweaking or whatever, but that’s how I see a pilot. Is it’s something you try, you
check the results, check the lessons learned, and then you decide whether you’re
going to go forward or tweak it or not do anything.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree with you, yeah. We will…it’ll either stand on its own two feet or it’ll
be dead and buried. So yeah, I understand. Okay, thank you very much. Any other
questions for Ms. Skog? Ms. Skog, we thank you for coming down and responding to
the Committee’s -MS. SKOG: You’re welcome. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --questions. Thank you so much.
MS. SKOG: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else, Members? We have a request to restore.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have a request to restore, is there consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Eight thirty-nine, Members. We have a proviso, 840.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think we have consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We had consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh no, you’re talking about the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I think -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino? Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --it was brought to our attention by Ms. Skog that Shannon
Rowe already is assisting other possible teachers out in Lahainaluna as well as
another school, and I forgot which other school that he’s trying to start up this
program. And so I have no problem with the proviso. I think Mr. Rowe has proven
himself and has proven an automotive program that has made this County and the
State very proud through the years. So unless there’s a real objection, I have no
problem with that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Moving forward. Eight forty-three.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --did the request for revisit on behalf of Ms. Baisa.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Would you like to share your comments how you channeled for
Ms. Baisa so she can get a hint? Then we’ll recognize Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I think, I’m assuming that she wanted to discuss this so I
wanted to bring it back.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Couch. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Couch,
for putting my initials on this one. You know I’ve been very understanding of where
this Committee has gone in terms of many cuts, and I understand what we’re trying to
do. I do want to kind of talk about this one. One of the reasons why I would really
like to see this money put back is timing. You know I think all of us have had the
opportunity at one point or another, to run into the bankers evening at MEO and to
see what goes on there. And, you know, I’m constantly amazed by the fact that those
classes just continue to be packed. It’s amazing that, you know, month after month
and year after year, the classes are packed, and what that tells me is there seems to
be a real need in this community for Core Four and what it teaches. You know being
that we are in this situation here we are, where we’re worrying about diversifying
economy and how we’re going to create jobs for everybody, in some case, the best job
for these people would be their own business. But before they make that investment,
it’s great that they have an opportunity to attend a good class and learn about the
pitfalls of opening your own business. And many of them might go and decide not to
open a business, but that’s better than them trying and failing, ‘cause then they invest
money and lose even what they have which is not a good idea. So normally I would
say, you know, well, cut them like everybody else, but I’m thinking about timing and
I’m wondering if it’s a smart thing to do at this point, or we should just keep them
where they are and give people the opportunity, the full opportunity to get the help
people need at this point. But, you know, I can…that’s where I’m at and I don’t know
if anybody sees it the way I do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Baisa. I agree with you and I’ve
attended quite a number of those graduations, that they call, and it’s not a program
that they’re there just for a week, it’s weeks that they have to. And some end up
saying you know what, I can’t make it because this is not the right move for me. But
I, with that I support the opportunity for us to put back the amount. And also I’d like
to continue the proviso that I’ve always added in there throughout my term here, is
provided that funds shall be made available to provide a full-time position for the
Molokai Loan Fund Manager who also does the Four Core Business Program on
Molokai. So it…and she always has a full class too. And there are some of the
entrepreneurs that have come out of that program that are still sustaining their
business.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. Crivello’s request.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms.…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can support this. I can support the reinstatement as well
as the proviso by Ms. Crivello. So I’m all good with this right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Anyone else? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Mr. Chair, I can support this as well, but I think
Ms. Rasmussen is, has, can provide more information on what the extra amount was
for. If…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: She’s struggling to come down.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Too late, tired already.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: She came running before we even called her.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Regarding the Microenterprise money?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You don’t want MEO to explain their own money?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It’s MEO that does this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Why not MEO?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I think they work closely with…
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, actually I’m just going to be real brief. This was something that we
actually worked on MEO for. This is for a new program call Be Strategic, and it’s a
secondary class that’s for these people after they do Core Four, they’re in business for
about two to three years, they hit the wall, their businesses are, you know, they
don’t…they’re not where they need to be and they don’t know where to go, and this is
to get them through that. And that was the gap area that we felt we had, and that’s
why we asked them to try to come up with something. So it’s for that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions since we have Ms. Rasmussen here? Anything
else for her? Thank you very much, Ms. Rasmussen, for your responses to the
Committee. Okay, Members, anything else?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’d like to just add, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Also involved in this is a partnership with bankers and
business people who really scrutinize the business plan that come from these
participants. And they work along, I mean they’re volunteers who participate in this.
So that’s also a plus, and I can appreciate the, after the three years relook at it. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Who made the request? What is it…oh, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On behalf of Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On my behalf.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else, Members?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’d be more comfortable with a smaller number, like maybe $25,000
increase on the 245.
CHAIR HOKAMA: On the…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Make it 270.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It was 250.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it would be 275.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s his new number, 275.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You guys…consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 275,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you, everybody.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight fifty-one, somebody asked to revisit this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I don’t think so.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Ms. Crivello.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is it…actually I really wanted to add in a proviso but not
under that. It would, I would have to move it to Line 935, so I’ll deal with that later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Eight fifty-three, 100,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Which one was that for?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight five three.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Eight five three, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight five five.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This was the one where they are wanting to buy the software
that interfaces with our software so everything can be done. I know I was on the
Tri-Isle Council Resource, RC&D Board a few years ago, and they do administer these
grants. And what happens is they pay the payroll for the organizations. They do a lot
of legwork and bookkeeping work for the organization, so that’s why they charge the
fee. So in order to help manage the grants, I guess this software works with our
software so that can cut down on some of the labor intensive stuff. That’s what the
intent was. And I think our Grants Management people asked them to get this
software too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: This is one where I agree with your cut. I think they generate a
significant amount of fee revenue from the various grants, and they can pay for this
themselves.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding is 12 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that kind of surprised me. When I was there, it was
8 percent, so when I heard 12 percent, I can concur with Mr. White. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Done. Eight six zero.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This one I want to ask that we increase 120K to Hui O Wa`a
Kaulua for the educational programs. You heard several folks come up and testify
about it. I know my e-mail has been inundated with some of the requests for this.
This is, yeah, I mean this is the culture…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aren’t you the sponsor of the request?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aren’t you the sponsor?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are you the sponsor?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s why you’re getting all the e-mails.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I’m guessing everybody else is too, I hope.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You’re the one that recommended this, Mr. Couch, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh wow. I’m getting a ton of e-mails. Anyway, this is a, the
culture of the place where we live. You know it’s teaching the high school, junior high,
and even elementary school kids. They want to do it around the whole County and
not just right now they’re doing West Maui for the most part and Maui High. They
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want to teach the kids how to do celestial navigation, wayfinding, and voyaging, the
voyaging arts. We have two canoes now, double hull, the big voyaging canoes and it’s
a program that has been received very well at Maui High, Lahainaluna High, and
Sacred Hearts and they want to be able to expand it Countywide. So that’s the…the
request is to increase it 120. They want 160 for the other program…they want 40 for
the other program and 120 here. The other program is funded in oddly enough
environmental protection, so that portion is out of that grant. So the 120 they’re
asking for would be out of this, the Grants and Disbursements for Culture, Arts, and
Tourism.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. I am open. The Chair himself is happy to support I
think what was my number, 60,000. I’m not into paying salaries. I don’t have a
problem supporting programs, initiatives, but I am really not into . . .(inaudible). . . -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have a proviso on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Provided that--let’s see--120 shall be used for Hui O Wa`a
Kaulua education programs, and the funds shall not be utilized to pay salaries. So
put it right in there that it doesn’t pay salaries.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m open to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I can agree with Mr. Couch, I like that idea, but I’d also like
to also put another proviso that they go out and at least match 50 percent of our
grant. Because there are a lot of entities out there that they should be going to. So I’d
like to say 50 percent of whatever grant we give them, they go out and help and get
matching funds. Whether it’s from the State, from Kamehameha Schools, OHA, I don’t
care where it comes from, but they at least…‘cause we do that to other groups, we ask
them to match. So I only think it’s fair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I want to help them but I want to see a match so I know
they are out there trying to find additional funding. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So why don’t we just first deal with the dollar amount? If that
moves forward then we can consider the provisos.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause no sense you talk about provisos if we’re not going to agree to
money. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I support the Hui O Wa`a Kaulua educational process,
because I’ve seen what the Hokulea has done and I think this is just a branch that
comes off. And this is a reminder of who we are and who the host culture is of the
island of Maui. And it just, to me it just enhances our children to be mindful of who
we are and where we come from. And, you know, it’s how amazing that our ancestors
could just travel with the waves and our celestial. And our children have so much to
learn. You know you talk about things of…we sit down and talk about things of
yesterday, where do you find the practitioners today, aole. So I think what this does
in my opinion is allow us to continue to build and the infrastructure for practitioners.
So thank you, I support Mr. Couch with this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other comments, anyone? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I’d like to speak in support and with the provisos. You
know mister...Bully, as we know, is really a big part of our community, volunteers for
every whatever we do, he’s there, and does a tremendous job with kids. And, you
know, Bully could tell us a lot of stories about what he’s done with canoes and, you
know, going in the mountains and getting trees and trying to haul them around. And
he’s tireless in getting volunteers and donations. He does a lot for our community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, he does.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I think those are values that, you know, he can teach our
kids. Kids have to learn about how to do that kind of thing. And he’s so modest and
he’s very humble about everything he does. I would like to support him.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know this is Maui’s canoe and it’s been a long
time in the making but it’s here, it’s touched many, many lives already and it will
continue to touch many lives. So I think this is very much worthy of our support. I’m
a little concerned with the proviso just simply because they were requesting a position
or at least part of the funding was for a position. But I, but they can cover that with
the match. So I’m comfortable with both the amount, and I’m comfortable with the
match, and so I’m very supportive. And I think this will be a great shot in the arm for
the organization. And I think part of the reason it’s taken this amount of time is that
it’s had, you know, kind of bootstrap funding for a long time, and I think this is a, in a
way a mahalo to them for sticking it out and making it happen and providing Maui
with not only a centerpiece of, you know, cultural integrity really. So I think it’s a
great thing. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Can I get a clarification from Mr. White? Are you
supporting the proviso not funding a position or you’d like to have the position
funded…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: With the match.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: With the match. Okay, that was a little different, that’s
why I wanted to clarify that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because Mr. Couch had said no position, and now
Mr. White is saying with the position with the match which I can support. Thank you,
Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Hold on. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. As this canoe has been built down the
street from where I grew up, and having seen it go through its trials and tribulations
and let me tell you there was trials and tribulations as to why this canoe has taken
this long to be built and completed. And so…and not taking away from all the hands
that made it, you know, accomplished the end result that we see here today. But I’ll
tell you, there has, it wasn’t all that, it wasn’t a bowl of cherries along the way, it still
isn’t. You know that area, Kamehameha Iki Park and all that, I mean there’s a lot of
not-so-good things that occur there. You know and if this entity is to oversee it and
malama and take care, need to step up. And, you know, I’ve watched this come and
go and come and go. It reminds me of what’s happening across the street from it, the
whole Friends of Moku`ula and Mokuhinia project, same predicament. But anyhow,
you know, I am happy that it’s completed. And I do still have a question in regards to
there was a slip that’s been paid from Lahaina Restoration Foundation. The front
corner of the Lahaina Harbor, waiting for this to be placed there, and then as they get
completed recently, they said no, they don’t want it. So I had never really got, I never
got a straight answer to this question myself. And Theo Morrison too. So I just, I
don’t know what, where that’s at, but she had been reserving something for them.
And now they’re in Maalaea, I’m glad they have a hale for the Wa`a, but, you know, it’s
just I have -CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you know -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --my issues about this.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
--if they’re using County grant money we give the Restoration
Foundation --
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I don’t know the…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --as paying for the slip?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, no, I don’t know know where the money is coming
from that, but I know that Theo mentioned that LRF has been reserving or paying for
this. So whether that’s coming…‘cause they do have their parking lot money, they do
have other sources of funding, not just County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, you know, I don’t want to answer that right now. But,
you know, if this is the will of the body to support this, yes, it is about the culture,
yes, it is about education and I’m completely for that. But this, yeah, has a little, I
don’t know, stuff. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, if you want a, if you want me to consider sending a letter to LRF to
respond to that pier question, we can do so. But the Chair won’t do it unless he’s
requested to do so. Okay. On this I think it’s a great idea. The amount is I think very
reasonable. I think the provisos are very reasonable and I would say deserving from
your Chair’s perspective from this point. It’s been interesting to see this last few
requests that has come before this Committee, regarding Native Hawaiian proposals
that have merits, that has merits, and what the Chair finds interesting is those within
the Native Hawaiian agencies and community, whether it be Kamehameha School,
Bishop Estate, whether it be OHA, whether it be Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands, it’s been interesting to notice none of them has put up support. And I can tell
you ‘cause I made calls to various organizations, and it was interesting their responses
to your Chair. So I share that because it doesn’t stop me from making sure that we do
our fair, responsible part. But I just find it interesting the other components.
Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I agree with you on that part, but if you recall that one of the
testifiers said they have not put in an application and there’s a process, at least with
OHA, you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, they have a cycle.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You and I know about the cycle.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So I don’t think…and I think the proviso that we put in will
sort of push them to go ahead and use this funding to leverage other funds, whether
it’s from the Kamehameha Schools or I think the Office of Hawaiian Affairs, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. But again, I don’t have a problem, so do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we have consensus on the money. Do we have consensus on the
provisos? There’s two, one from Mr. Victorino and one from…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mister…well, just combine ‘em, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: …add 120. Yeah, can we -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So the provisos…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --clarify exactly what this is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Staff, why don’t you read it, because we’re going to go with what your
notes are.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the first proviso reads provided that 100…oh, sorry, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One hundred…it’s not quite what I wrote for you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Yeah. The language that Mr. Couch had distributed to us is not exactly
the…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, read your proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Provided that 120,000 shall be used for Hui O Wa`a Kaulua
education programs, and the funds shall not be utilized to pay salaries.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And then, Mr. Victorino, your proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My proviso was that they go and get at least 50 percent of
this fund, of the 120, at least 50 percent matching fund from other organizations.
And then Mr. White added that this would be funding the positions if we add back the
120. With the proviso that I put in, he asked that the position be funded.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we can’t -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --proviso matching funds. So he’s, basically what Mr. White is
saying the salaries can come out of the matching funds --
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that they get from private entity.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, that’s your Chair’s understanding. So if they match 60 of the 120,
that 60 can be used for salaries.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But not our 120.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine with me.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, Mr. Ueoka has something.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Sorry, Chair. Apologize, just a quick one. Do you guys want proof of those
matching funds before the 120 is released?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, must be verified.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
MR. UEOKA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We’ll move on.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Just for clarification, so there’s an add of $120,000 to the Culture and
Arts Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MS. YOSHIMURA: The minus $15,000 does that stand?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh yeah, so yeah, I apologize. So, Members, the new number that the
Chair is looking at is 109…190,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, moving $190,000 forward. Thank you, Staff. Okay, 864, Festivals
of Aloha. We have a proviso that says provided that equal amounts are allocated to
Maui, Molokai, Hana, and Lanai. I made a reduction, Members. Upon reviewing for a
movement toward a more biennium type of consideration, I’m planning to support the
proviso, allow this additional year to go by with the one-year appropriation and then in
the Committee report recommend from next year that the Council consider biennium
appropriations for grant programs such as these. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I agree with your adjustment, because it provides a
18 percent increase over the 42,400 that they received in Fiscal Year ’16.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s to help tie them over that period that we received testimony
that was a concern between the time we appropriate and approve and by the time they
access and do their agreements and HTA, I mean they have a challenge. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We had consensus on 865. I think the
issue was Ms. Crivello wanted to remove the proviso, because there were issues, I
think there were issues with equal amounts at each location. Is that…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, thank you. But I…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I apologize because I thought this is what -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I did too.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Toyama presented to me. So if it’s not I apologize.
assumption that this was his language. So, Crivello, your, you know…

I made an

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, it came from Staff to put into equal amounts and then,
but Teena would prefer it to just be allocated to Maui, Molokai, Hana, and Lanai. But
she said she’ll take whatever we decide.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Historically, Members, from the day we started this about late 1990s, I
believe, how it was, how Council bought in and support it was by equal allocations.
So historically we’ve always done it by equal allocations. I understand the issues that
those that are helping to administer this grant as it get impacted from their vendor for
services so currently is Tri-Isle, impact from additional funds from State through HTA,
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working with the Office of Economic Development. I understand their challenges, and
that’s why with the reduction actually they have enough funds to carry over and take
care of their needs until we get to the next budget cycle for a biennium consideration.
So that’s my, how I developed this proposal for you, and I would just ask that we give
them one year to get it squared away to what they really want. You’ve heard
Ms. Crivello’s comments also.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So whether we equal or whatever, I’m good with that, I’ll
leave it up to those…but so are you saying we’re looking at the 50, not the 88?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no. The 88 was for a 2-year consideration -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so this just for 1 year, 50?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and this would have gone into the next Council’s -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --cycle, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s why I was trying to get clarification when you were…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So I’m just saying allow the next Council if it wants within their
term, their two-year term to do the biennium -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --appropriations. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And sorry -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and the proviso stays?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Equal amounts?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I would request that consideration. But then, you know, you heard
Ms. Crivello so it’s, you know, you folks can choose.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It’s because of the disbursement of funds and the grant
process that they’re requesting to allow the entity or the Festivals of Aloha
Committee -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To decide.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --to decide. Because some…like Hana, they have theirs all
week, yeah, they run theirs all week. And for them it’s easier if they can, they make
the determination according to as they’re expending their funds. Because this is all
cost reimbursement.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So for Lanai then we choose to do one big day of celebration so I’m going
to get less money?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I cannot, I can’t speak for the committee but that’s…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
know.

I don’t believe it works that way that you’ll get less, you

CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause we…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That’s my understanding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. ‘Cause we focus our money to get, most of our money to get the
type of entertainment Lanai never gets.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So most of the money goes to secure top name people such as Willie K -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --or Amy Gilliom.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so we choose not to do multiple days ‘cause we want a certain
caliber of entertainment for the community.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I understand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We still use our full allotment.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
messenger.

I cannot speak on behalf of the committee so I’m just a

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And again I have no problem with equal shares. But I have
a question, when it comes to Maui, I see Maui, I see Molokai, Hana, and Lanai. Now I
believe, Ms. Cochran, West Maui has something.
I believe Central Maui has
something, and I believe South Maui has something. Am I wrong? And that’s what I
believe to have…that happens on the Aloha, the Festivals of Aloha. All these three
communities have their own events, right? I don’t know about Upcountry. Do you
guys have something Upcountry?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, okay. But I know West, South and Central has
something. So if we’re going to do equal then I’d like to put all the communities
equally, because to me that’s being fair. But I leave it in your hands. Because I don’t
care how we equal it, but if you just say Maui, they get the same as Lanai or Hana
or…and I know Hana has a week, okay, I got that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s how they…yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s their, how they choose to celebrate.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: They choose to use it, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s how they choose to celebrate, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And our areas I think only have one day, one night or one
festival, one particular day. I’m just saying that with that coming up, putting Maui
with the same equal amount as Lanai, Molokai, and Hana, it’s kind of unfair when we
have three different areas that have their events. Now grant you maybe it’s a little less
because I don’t have to ship things to Molokai, I don’t have to ship things to Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that’s all I’m saying.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. I’m just wondering does the Festival, the Committee
for the Festivals -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just asking.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --of Aloha, do they manage and plan all, for the other areas?
So perhaps that’s where it says Maui and it’s just the outlying district, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Historically it was for the outlying districts, so originally it was just
Molokai, Hana, and Lanai to take care the rural communities that didn’t have the
ability to have the fundraising to do the events. So originally with that time, Chair
Kawano and some of the older Members, it was to help the areas that didn’t have
activities and how to bring back a…‘cause it was Aloha Festivals, right, not Festivals of
Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And of course they screwed up so now we have Festivals of Aloha. So you
know what, I would say why don’t we go with this for now, and then let’s see where we
are with the numbers, and then we can come back and you folks want to add
additional funds, you know, the Chair will leave it up to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you as the Committee Members. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, no, I’m…I think have the organizers divvy up how the
monies are allocated. I know we want to be equal and fair, but I think as we’re saying,
Maui has a lot more going on, Lanai…you know, so I think they’ve been…I don’t know
if they’ve been running it that way already, I would think so. And then…and this is
above, this is $8,000 more than what they got last year, so I’m sure they’ll be able to
divvy up enough to make it a go for the festivals with 50 disbursed Countywide. So in
the proviso rather than…I prefer not to say equal in a sense and just trust the director
of the program to divvy up and use what they need when they need it for each, you
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know, respective district or community, wherever the festival is held. So that’s just my
take, Chair. But…
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can always tweak, and of course if they screw up, we can punish them
and change ‘em next year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Big time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I don’t have a problem punishing bad performance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’m comfortable with that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t think you’ll have that from the people involved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’m comfortable with that if we let the committee handle it
like it’s been handled in the past.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. So as long as we don’t get the calls why we don’t have this and that
this year when we had it last year and the year and the year and the year before.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t have a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whichever way.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll leave that 50 and you guys want to delete the proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just the word equal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just equal. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just take the word out, take the word equal out?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But is…
CHAIR HOKAMA: If you guys want to take it out then just strip the whole proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: True.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I like that idea.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let them deal with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, because I’ll be watching.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay so we’re pau with that one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: On the next three they’re all the Maui Arts and Cultural
Center which you’ve made small cuts. It look like about right about ten…nah, some
looks like ten but the others a little bit less. And, you know, I’d like to see these funds
reinstated as much as possible. First of all, we’ve talked about culture, this is the icon
of all entertainment culturally, modern, classical, I don’t care what we do, the Maui
Arts and Cultural Center is one of those main stays. Education, they bring in
students. Jake Shimabukuro puts on concerts. I mean you can name one after
another after another. Also, the halaus are utilizing the facility to practice. We have
Movie under the Stars. I mean on and on and on, Chair. I can go on the rest of the
night and I don’t think my Members want that, they want to go home. But this is one
of those that really just like the other one we talked about is all-encompassing, not
just the host culture but many other cultures use it and our high schools and other
groups for band festivals, for concerts, for all these things at either no or very, very low
rates. And so these monies, you know, really were to put in for help with capital
improvement because they need to expand the parking and they, you know, we’ve
been giving them a little every year and they’re close to getting that completed. The
design has been, they’re ready to go. And the other areas where it’s very important is
that the arts in the education, Pomaikai and other schools that take part in this. So
my request to my Members is to put the 18, the 20, and the 24 so would be a total of
something like 60,000 put back for all three programs. So that’s my request to my
Members. And even though it falls in Mr. Guzman’s district, kind of like I always,
kind of adopted it a long time ago, but I don’t want Mr. Guzman to get upset that I
didn’t…you can say something now. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: We’re neighbors.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Neighbors, okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I would tend to agree with Mr. Victorino on 878 and 886 which
is more of their operational funds. But they mentioned to me that the, they were okay
with the cut on the capital program, ‘cause they felt they could make that up from
donations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine. If that’s all you going give me, I’ll take it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On all three?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus I think -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, not all three.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --for the two.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just the two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventy-eight and 86, consensus, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seventy-eight and 82.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And then…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eighty-six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eighty-six.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight eighty-six, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well but it’s consensus on the cut for -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --882.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All three consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All three.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All three consensus. Restore two, cut one.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the Chair will support the Committee, but I will vote no later on on
principle. You know my problem is I cannot forget what people made commitments for
to get original approvals and funding, and that’s my problem, I don’t forget. So I
remember which organization said all I need is construction money, we’ll never come
back. I remember those things, okay. I remember who said I just need a one-time
appropriation and I’ve seen it for 18 years now. I don’t forget that either. I believe
that people should follow their integrity and principle of what they tell us, and for me
it’s an issue when they don’t. And I’ll leave it at that. But since you have consensus
we’ll move forward. Eight ninety-seven. Anyone had a…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eight ninety-seven, sister cities.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
10,000 of the 15,000 cut.

Mr. Chair, I had that.

CHAIR HOKAMA: What was that again please, Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I want to change the number to 25K.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Restore 10,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, any other comments? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I agree with your adjustment. Their interest was…you know we
provided this additional money so that they could go out and provide gifts and other
things, you know, for protocol purposes when people are visiting. But it’s become
known to us that they were going to use the money to go and hire an executive
director to…you know it’s just I just don’t think that’s what the funds were intended
for. And if they’re feeling flush with cash then I’m comfortable with your adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: They hired an executive director?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: They’re planning on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh really.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is that true? I mean we’re hearing something that’s alleged, is it
true? Were they going to hire an ED?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s what I’ve been told.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do we have anybody here who knows? Ms. Rasmussen is in the
back, if you don’t mind.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, OED.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh I thought you knew . . .(inaudible). . . No, I just saw you
flash by me, I thought ho, the guy know that too.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Not an executive director. All they wanted to do was spend about $4,000
to hire somebody to keep the books straight, do, you know, the payments and all of
that stuff, just to keep everything straight. That’s all they’re looking for. Very, very,
very part-time person.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So kind of like a professional service?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. I mean they had…I don’t even think they got that far, they just
want to hire…yeah, it’ll be a contract of some…
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. And, you know, manage a lot of the incoming, you know, mail, and
so, you know, just they just need somebody that has kind of the holding the,
everything together, because there’s so much communications that come from other
cities and so forth. So they’re just feeling that, that will help them really. But there’s
a lot of regeneration, I mean rejuvenation in that group, and there’s a lot of really new
people that are coming to the table. You know like for instance Deidre Tegarden and
so forth, they’re really getting a lot of new people. So I think that it’s going to be really
a dynamic program. I would hate to cut ‘em off at the knees.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, if I might follow up. Who takes care of that now, those
duties that we want to get somebody, have some help with?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I think they’re being, I think it’s being done by multiple people, volunteer,
and I think it’s not working.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I guess not. You know I really think that the Sister Cities
Program is really good and I would like to see it excel and I’d like to see it do well,
‘cause and the potential is so great, you know, of having relationships with these other
countries. But I do agree that it has to be maybe a little bit more productive. And if
this is what the foundation is feeling that they need in order to do it and it’s only
$4,000 and it’s not really a position that they’re going to acquire and pay for -MS. RASMUSSEN: It’s not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you know, every month. I kind of look at it a little differently.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I know so manini the amount, but don’t you have someone
assigned to sister cities within your office?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We…yeah, but just to go to their meeting every month, you know, we’re
not…I mean we manage the grant so our people can’t be managing their books, you
know, ‘cause we manage the grant. Does that…yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But I seem…never mind, I don’t…
MS. RASMUSSEN: I mean we have payments, you know.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I see one of your, yeah, one of your staffers goes to all of the
sister city events.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. No, no, we have somebody assigned to sister cities.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, so…
MS. RASMUSSEN: But they can’t do their paperwork for them, ‘cause we’re managing the
grant in-house. Does that make sense?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, you manage the grant -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --but why is there an assigned person that goes to all of the
events? That’s not part of managing the grant is it?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh I thought you meant like could our person take care of the books.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. But…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: They have the time to go to all of the events, don’t they have
the time? Instead of going to all the events, do the books.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, but it’s arm length, like we’re the grant manager so we can’t be
processing the payments and…does that make sense?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. We’re the grant manager so we’re supposed to be auditing their
books, or not auditing but, you know, we’re looking at…I’m sorry, I’m very…you can
tell I’m brain dead tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Why so much paperwork for such a…30…you know what I
mean?
MS. RASMUSSEN: There’s expenditures, there’s…and there’s, you know, they do have dues,
they have dues they have to manage. They have a lot of communications that come
in.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: There’s a lot of -MS. RASMUSSEN: And…
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --associations, Chair, and clubs out there that have less or
more money than this and make do with volunteers. Every Filipino association I know
is volunteered and they have volunteer treasurers. I was a volunteer attorney for a lot
of those associations. They can’t get a volunteer to do this stuff? I don’t know. At
this point I can’t agree. I’m going to stick with the 15,000 reduction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on. I think all of you have a question so we’re going to go right down
the line.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I was just sent a copy of the budget document or
their budget, and it shows program administrator 7,500 of County money and CPA
another 1,000. So, you know, the initial intent of this money was to be spent on the
visits and things of that sort, and so I’m with Mr. Guzman, I think this is something
that I would, you know, I can’t…I can support your cut, I can’t support them going
after hiring staff to assist with things.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question. This is a grant and this Sister City
Foundation is a nonprofit that applies for the grant?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And do they have a financial conduit or sponsor?
MS. RASMUSSEN: No, I think it…I think they are their own. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: They’re their own sponsor.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So as a nonprofit, they process and throughout all the years
as a nonprofit do they have an executive director or someone that -MS. RASMUSSEN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --does…
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MS. RASMUSSEN: That’s what they’re wanting to do. But just again, a very, very part-time.
I mean we’re not talking full time at all. But just somebody…I mean they have their
nonprofit status to manage, they’ve got all the communications…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Who’s their financial sponsor?
MS. RASMUSSEN: They’re, I think they’re their own.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: They have…
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. You know I’d have to check. I, my office is closed right now. I
don’t know if they are through…I think they’re their own. I just…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: ‘Cause usually your financial sponsor does the reporting,
right, unless your nonprofit have that all in place. So I think that’s kind of where we
need to clarify to…
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, I think they’re their own. I don’t think they have a fiscal sponsor.
I think they go through their own nonprofit, they are a nonprofit, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we can revisit this if we need, when they’re open.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, why don’t we revisit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I want the Members who have questions to ask their questions first.
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Actually I don’t have a question, I have a comment that I
support you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions at this time? We have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To do what?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What do we have consensus on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifteen thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Fifteen thousand is your --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Chair’s proposal.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. May I direct you to Line 911. Okay. This is where your Chair
made an adjustment and gave coqui frogs a line item. I shifted money from this spot
and made a specific coqui frog proposal. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree with your cut simply because we
still have a little over a million dollars in the remaining balance for this year. And I
have a feeling that a lot of it is caught up in the UH, RCUH mess, so my feeling is that
the funding has probably been delayed and this may work out to be just fine for next
year. But Ms. Rasmussen may have a different take on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Do you want me to…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Rasmussen?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. So the bulk that’s left that’s not executed, let’s say, is MISC’s
$895,000 grant. It’s almost executed. It’s almost through the process. And the coqui
frog grant is executed, so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But the coqui frog’s not in this line item.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right, right, it’s not, yeah. You’re right, it’s not. So out of what you’re
seeing as a balance, there’s 895,000 that’s ready to go to MISC, and we have had
extensive conversations with them. They believe that they will…that will not last, you
know, it will not last them for an entire 12 months basically, so. If you’re…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What is the…how much has MISC spent of the 895,000?
MS. RASMUSSEN: They haven’t even…the grant is just barely…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So…
MS. RASMUSSEN: It’s not even executed, right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right. So the reason I think we can be comfortable with this cut is
that if they haven’t started spending 2016 money -MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.

- 221 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and we’re within 2 months of 2017 -MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --then this adjustment isn’t going to…as long as we bring it back up to
this level the following year, we should be just fine.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I, you know, you do have Ms. Penniman here, she could probably shed a
little bit more light on, you know, their cash flow, if you wanted to ask her. But I
totally understand what you’re saying. I mean, you know, their almost entire year…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I mean this is math that is really easy -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. I…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --for me because we have two months left and she hasn’t started
spending the money yet which means she’s living off of prior year’s funding. So the…
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, the one thing that I want to say about all of our grants and we
have an open grant year basically, we have…we give all the grantees up till February
15th to apply. The reason for that is we can’t have one deadline, because we only have
one full-time Grants Manager in our office, and so that, by spreading it out over the
course of the year we can do, you know, we can basically handle it. But it also gives
these organizations ability to pick their performance period so that it can match other
funds that they get. So it allows them to see what can kind of Federal funding they
get, and they manage our funding then, you know, and spread it out so that they can
last all year long. So it does allow our grantees a lot of flexibility as far as other funds
that they’ve leveraged with. You know so it does help them to be flexible like that.
And these things don’t happen, again, overnight. Our grants don’t happen overnight.
We’re running the longest period of time that we’ve ever run in getting grants
executed, and it’s just every department, I mean it’s just every department, yeah. So I
don’t like that but it, you know, a lot of it is on us, some of it’s on the university, some
of it’s on MISC, you know, it’s just, it’s all over the place.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I don’t…well yeah, I think the university is providing us a major
challenge, but this isn’t, to me this is not a reflection of either you or MISC, it’s just
because of the way that it’s set up we don’t need…this is a cash flow issue.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We don’t need to put this money into this coming fiscal year, because
this year’s funding should cover them all the way until this time next year.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. And I think that’s what they’re saying is that it will not. That the
895 is not going to last them for 12 months.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well there’s…
MS. RASMUSSEN: But yeah, I mean we’ll…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: There’s more than enough in there.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So this fund if it goes back to a million, okay, so we would have to either
forgo all of the other organizations that we fund or we will have to cut MISC back. So,
you know, either way would cut MISC back to about half, or we’d have to cut almost
all the other organizations out. So that would be the choice. But the cash flow would
be…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I don’t know how you’re coming up with that. Because if the cash…if
they’re just going to start spending…if it’s not even executed yet and they’re going to
start spending the money next month, that means the 895,000 will last them through
next month next year, you know, May of next year.
MS. RASMUSSEN: But that’s…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And by that time, we’ll be in another Budget session, we can give them,
you know, we can move this back up to 1.4 and you’ll have the ability to, you know,
basically all you need in here is 2 months funding.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
And this is way more than two months funding for all the
organizations plus MISC.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah. I mean I totally understand what you’re saying. You can definitely
do that. I think that Ms. Penniman’s worried about their cash flow, that they are
going to run out before the end of the year. And she…and not knowing what we’re
going to have to cut back or not, so that’s the two choices we’ll have. We’ll have to cut
back MISC or we’ll have to delete the other organizations which I don’t think that we
have a willingness to do that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I guess I’m missing something, Chair, but I…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you’re not.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For me it’s, I came up with this number because I think we can defend
this number. Okay. I’m more concerned about what the County can bear, what the
County can pay. The entities that get the money, they better deal with their own
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financial issues. We gotta deal with ours. Okay. With this program they’re still under
the, this fund. There’s a $207,000 balance from our 2015 appropriation. Two
thousand fifteen, okay, current encumbrance they have available 207,000. You look
at 2016, okay, available balance we, I told you that there’s still 1,095,000 left in the
fund. Current year there’s 184,052. So for your Chair it is not a matter of how much
we’ve already…about how much we should appropriate, we’ve appropriated enough.
Okay. The challenge is not within us. The challenge is on the external with the
nonprofit and the other agencies that they have to work with. I’m not going to concern
myself with that. My concern is to get this Budget balanced and closed by tomorrow
night. Okay. And I think we have enough money in this pot, there’s enough
encumbrances and balances of various…now going be the third year. Don’t ask your
Chair for more money for this. Do we have consensus to the million dollars?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Before we do that, Ms. Penniman did at my request e-mail
all of you, your overall breakdown of her budget for the next 18 months. I would like
everyone if they could, either that or I’ll print it out and pass it out. Just so that
everyone sees the black and white. If you guys decide to go in that route then that’s
fine, but she did put a budget together that shows her expenditures and where she’d
run short in the upcoming year. I’d like to present that. But if you say that’s not
necessary, I’ll leave it to you, Chair, to make the call.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I leave it to each Member to review documents.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will not require any Member to review. I will just request that each
Member look at those documents -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to determine how they want to make their decisions. So I leave it to each
Member to make that decision.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But I cannot give you consensus then until everyone has a
chance to read it. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, fine. We’ll move on.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 922.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Can I get a proviso on 910? And that would be 75,000 for the
Maui Nui Marine Resource Council. They had 70,000 last year, and they’ve got some
projects on its way. Just a proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You heard Mr. Guzman’s proposal, Members.
clarification or comments?

Any need for

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I agree with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa? Okay, Ms. Cochran, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can you explain what the 75,000 is for?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, if you can help give some comment please.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well, last year and the year before, I believe they stayed at
70,000, and we had testimony and we’ve also had this item in Ms. Cochran’s
Committee and they did show us some projects and some plans that they were
working on. I can’t recall it in details but I do recall that they were…maybe
Ms. Cochran could elaborate more on it since it was in her Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, actually I don’t know, it’s late and my brain and
everything. As we’re going to come and revisit, perhaps then we can gather our
thoughts better when we’re fresher and put the words to the paper and give you
details as to what the dollars are for. But I support the initial thought of Mr. Guzman.
It probably has something to do with the recovery plan, the reef recovery plan -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, the reef. That what it was…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and implementation of it and the actions in it I’m thinking
at this point. But again, Chair, I, sorry, it’s late, and if we could get time -CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know what I mean? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anyone else --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Can wait for the…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on this? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If we’re coming back, I got a proviso but I can do it when we’re
coming back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. And if you need, this is what was, Mr. Victorino is
referring to, it’s a spreadsheet by year, months, running balances, additions. So this
is what Mr. Victorino is referring you regarding the MISC budget. So just look at the
end of June and which is the fiscal year, and they show a running balance of
$367,000, and not until the second month do they go into a negative 33,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But prior…okay. Let me just get the numbers straight and
in relation to the coqui frog amount.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You have…you minus 400 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
eradication --

--but you’re saying 300 you set aside it for coqui frog

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in another area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I made a line item for coqui frog, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, made a line item. So but yet this Environmental
Protection section is…and coquis never came from this area, is that right? This line,
this pot of money?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We made a special appropriation in this current year that…‘cause I think
Mr. White asked for that $1.something million or the $2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So this…
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then the new budget year Mayor did not put anything for coqui frogs.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I felt it was still important to continue this program so I put the 300. I
would have looked at more but I was trying to balance the Budget and come within
certain caps that I have set for myself on what I would present to you and ask the tax
base to consider paying.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. No, and completely appreciate it and I understand.
But what I’m trying to get at is that this pot, this 1.4 mil is being taxed out, that 300
for the coqui frog, so it’s leaving existing people out of this pot short the 300. I mean
right? Is what it’s doing here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I was making an assumption, Ms. Cochran, that the Administration
still felt that the coqui frog issue was important enough that it would have come from
this pot anyway. But if the accurate reading of this is that we don’t support funding
coqui frog and that’s why we didn’t put a specific line item for it then Ms. Rasmussen
can tell us this evening that that was the Administration’s position. We don’t support
it so we didn’t put any money towards it. I had assumed that they would have looked
at this pot to fund some coqui frog consideration. I think it’s more important at this
point in time to give it a specific line for specific attention as we gave it for this current
year’s Budget. And we hear the people in testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. No…
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that’s how I approached it, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, thank you for your efforts and I appreciate you,
you know, wanting to address these very dire needs. But again I guess we’ll revisit -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so we’ll have more discussion. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. Revisit. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anyone else? Okay, that’s the end of revisits for Ops. Okay, thank you,
Ms. Rasmussen.
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MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your presence. Okay, we’re going to take a short break and
then we’re going to go through revenues. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, we never finished though.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So and we’ll take a ten-minute recess.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait, wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh my God, we’re like almost…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We still get Page 31.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, you’re right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Get some more yet, boss.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thirty and thirty-one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no but, you know what, we need a break.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we’re gonna take a recess, five-minute recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:13 p.m.
10:31 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, let’s get back to work, Members. We’re on Page 31,
Line 935, 936.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine thirty-six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I had a, I think we had a revisit on 923 and then I had a
proviso I wanted to put in on 933.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re coming back to coqui frog.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that’s right. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right, well then 933 I have.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys, unless you guys want to…you guys want to look at 923, that’s
fine with me.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, no. We were going to revisit it with all the other ones so I’m
fine with that. But on 933 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine three three. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I would like to add a proviso.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And it’s number one on my list that I handed out. It says
provided that 200,000 shall be used for international customs preclearance efforts to
allow foreign travelers to land directly on Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I believe…
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s a proviso for 200,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Who do you anticipate doing this work?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We discussed it with Ms. Vencl, and they’re working with the
Management or actually the Office of the Mayor I believe. They’re doing the
coordination on trying to get this program, preclearance program working.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why wouldn’t you put the money in MD then?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They’re going to do the promotion in conjunction with ME…I’m
sorry, MVB. And I spoke with Terryl on this, Ms. Vencl and she was fine with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I just want to know whose feet I’m going to burn if I have to. Is do we
burn Ms. Vencl’s feet or do we burn people upstairs? Who’s going to take the
responsibility of the money?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The responsibility of the money would be Ms. Vencl’s.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Although she has, she’s not going to use it, somebody else is going to use
it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: A group, well her group is going to use it to market, to help
market once we get the pre, the customs preclearance efforts.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is not coming out of Mayor’s Office or Department of Management
personnel that’s going to do this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They’re going to work in conjunction with the Mayor’s Office. I
think Mr. Ching and Mr. Mossman are the ones that are spearheading that effort.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting reflection of monies and…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know I like the idea but yet if it doesn’t come to
fruition then that 200,000 sits there. If in the next year, the next fiscal year it doesn’t
come to pass…and something like this and I think Mr. White can attest may not be as
easy as said than done. But I’m saying if you lock some money up that way, what is
this money specifically going to? You just said to promote, to promote what if they
don’t get it? That’s what my question to you is, Mr. Couch and Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If Mr. Couch can respond that’s fine. I mean, you know, he’s making a
proposal. So -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I mean…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we’re just going to ask how much he knows about it. That’s all.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. It’s just to try and get the…it’s both promotion and
trying to get the preclearance and she’s going to have to go over there and work with,
in conjunction with the Mayor’s Office, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And she also had said over here that she was going to put the
200,000 towards international, Asian international travel. So I wanted to make sure
that we get the preclearance done first before anything else.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I see what you’re saying, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I have a little bit of a problem with this proviso,
because preclearance is a fairly long ways away. Preclearance requires an investment
of millions of dollars to upgrade or to create a customs area in either Narita or one of
the other airports in Japan. So my, from talking to our Congressional folks,
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preclearance is at least three years away. So there’s no reason to be promoting
preclearance. So my concern is, I would…if we want to try to do something with this
200,000, I’d like it to be clear that this is not to be used for staffing positions. I have
a, you know, I have a great admiration for the work that Mr. Ching and Mr. Mossman
have done. I’m not at this point real clear on what the $200,000 is going to be used
for. To me if we’re going to put $200,000 to good use right now, it should be in…if you
want to encourage preclearance then you should…we should do so by focusing
$200,000 in marketing the areas where the preclearance is likely to come from so that
we build up the demand for Maui from there and we build up the demand for the, you
know, the interisland flights and so forth. But to, you know, I wouldn’t support this if
it was to be used or could be used for hiring staff to do this, because I think Mr. Ching
and Mr. Mossman are doing a good job of it. But I would be supportive if this were
focused on marketing to those areas from which the preclearance would eventually be
likely to happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s fine. That’s fine. I withdraw.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I would like us to do a little bit more due diligence. I think I
agree with Mr. White, Mr. Mossman and Mr. Ching seems to be very energetic in this
international component of air travel for our County. But right now I would say we
are, we have some time, and I would just say that because in my discussions with
Mr. Fuchigami who said he is in agreement with the Governor, the Governor is not
pushing us for international status yet. So from the State’s perspective, they’re not
going to be supportive of what we are trying to do ‘cause their focus is someplace else
right now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: As your Chair understands it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s regular clearance side, having customs -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, and yeah -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that’s why I said I’m intrigued on this side -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --but I know it’s still far away, because for the international status the
State is not very supportive of our position currently.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We need to help convince them that our position is the correct position.
But my thing is I don’t have a problem with supporting, going and developing the
demand -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for the preclearance, I think that’s smart strategy. But I don’t want to
hamper us and make an assumption, because I know where State is, State DOT is on
our pushing for international currently here and they’re not very supportive. And you
guys are all aware of that. So again, I would say why don’t we just leave this in. I’m
happy to insert in the Committee Report the sense of this Committee about
preclearance and the support to develop a demand -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --from wherever it be. If it’s Narita, it’s Narita. It’s Fukuoka. If it’s Seoul.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If it’s Manila. You know I think that’s a smart move on our part -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so I can, I’ll be supportive of that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll move on.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it almost sounds like this proviso Mr. Couch was trying
to push was sort of kind of in the works and had some thought put towards it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so this, its total right now is 4.2 hundred so no need
the 200?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No need.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Was that the proviso…was that 200 added in there for this?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, he just wanted to proviso.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, we already had consensus on the two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know what I mean though, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. No, I know what you’re saying.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So is this why this was asked for is my question. And then
this proviso was trying to be implemented so now since it’s not sort of going through
maybe the 200…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I believe the Mayor supported and submitted a 4.2 as what he
wanted as direct promotion and advertising for MVB. This proviso Mr. Couch brings
forward is an idea I guess that he wants to support regarding the development of
preclearance. But it’s not to adjust the 4.2 at all. Or the 4.2 as I understand it is just
the Mayor’s recommended amount for MVB funding. So even without this, his
position would still be 4.2 for MVB. That’s how I read the Mayor’s intent at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. No, I just wanted clarification on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, yeah, no. I think everyone should ask those questions. Okay, shall
we move on, Members? Nine thirty-five, please.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I wanted to insert a proviso for 40,000 to put an RFP or
contract a community-based study and facilitation, community-based study and
community-based facilitation to develop economic alternatives for Molokai. And
referencing to your question or inquiry about what are we…or with OED when you ask
about how much further are we contributing to look at what, I guess what we have
that can expand on some niche of whether it be the visitor or what have you. But I
believe it needs to come from the community process and to have a conceptual plan in
place so that again, it’s a road map. And I am the first to say that we have many
plans on our island that we’ve tried to put together, and if it means taking pieces, but
I think if you have a contractor that will come out with a full-on report and facilitate
the community that we can come up with something to develop this economic
alternative. So I just want to proviso that, 40 grand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. Crivello’s request, Members.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What was the amount of the proviso?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Forty thousand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Forty thousand -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Forty thousand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --is what she’s asking for.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’d be…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you know if Planning was able to give your community update
status on your ED components for your island as part of the review for your
community plan update with your CPAC and Planning Commission?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m not sure if there’s the specifics with that, and I haven’t
had a chance to read the -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --final draft. I would…
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause I can see -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But…
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that this kind of documents would really help them out in their plan -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --updated planning. Ms. Rasmussen, you have some comment you could
share your light on?
MS. RASMUSSEN: I’m sorry, I…
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no. I mean if you’re here and you can share some information,
we are happy to hear from you.
MS. RASMUSSEN: So I have seen the planning document for…which has a complete
economic development section which actually did come right from your community,
and it’s filled with ideas, very entrepreneurial ideas as a way forward for Molokai. And
I think that the Planning Department spent a ton of time over there.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But it’s pieces, it’s not truly where you come up with this is
a business plan that we have from a community and this is how we’re going to address
it. Because most of it is taking out of part of some of the plans, strategic plans that
we worked on over ten years ago, and then you have others that come in with the cut
and paste. So I believe it needs to be reviewed, and I think I’ve talked with you about
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this. I’ve talked with Mr. Andaya about the different kind of niches that we can create
if we can come up with a conceptual business plan that has to be part of the
community base as the driver as to what they want. You’ve had from not necessary
your Planning Commission but from your CPAC and really coming out from our
strategic plan that was put together more than ten years ago.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other comments? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I just have a question -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --for Ms. Rasmussen since her office is in my Committee.
What is the breakdown for the 185 or I guess it would be 150,000 after the reduction.
What is the breakdown between the different islands or districts in how you
appropriate these funds?
MS. RASMUSSEN: We use…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just curious.
MS. RASMUSSEN: I didn’t bring my files tonight, I’m so sorry. But there’s…it was one of
your documents, it was…I can’t remember. We gave you the, all the different funds
and everything that was spent in the funds. And so I’m really sorry, I didn’t bring it
with me tonight. But we use that fund for really basically everything else for the rest
of kind of Maui, because the regional areas have their funds. You know we have
Molokai, we have Hana, we have Lanai, and so these are a lot of the programs that we
use for the rest of, you know, kind of broad initiatives that would actually help the
whole County but we’ve used them for, you know, those kinds of things. So we’ve
used them for marketing the Friday Town Parties, the overall marketing funds, we’ve
used -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Made on Maui.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --you know…I’m so sorry. You know I think I have it in my file if you
want me to run back and get it, that dealt with that. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: May I add something that, you know, I appreciate the
support from your Department. We have the cultural aspect of the economic
development to help our entrepreneurs during the events that…and it’s quite
impressive the outcomes that come out of that. But I don’t believe I’ve seen any
initiative that have…direct initiative that has come out for us to build on some
economic initiative. And if 40 is too much I’ll go for 20 or half of that just so we can
get somebody professional to come and do the facilitation and write out the report.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Oh yeah. Okay. I have the list in front of me now. So we have funded a
whole myriad of things. I mean this kind of goes back to 2015 and ’16, but we’ve
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funded the…Kihei Friday Town Party comes out of this, the Aloha Classic Windsurfing
Tournament, Halloween, 4th of July in Lahaina, the Maui Nui Canoe Race, and Na
Kamehameha Commemoration Parade, Emma Sharpe Hula, Small Business
Revitalization Grant, the Accelerator…the Maui Food Accelerator Program at the
college, the Tokyo International Gift Show, Hawaii on the Hill. We’ve, we’re in the
process of funding a Federal grant project, grant writing project for broadband projects
on Maui. I mean this fund has given us the ability to do a bunch of different kinds of
things that come our way and it’s, you know, it’s an important piece of what we do at
OED. We’ve also paid for part of the Friday Town Party umbrella campaign, Small
Business Week, a lot of different things out of that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. I am just looking for a professional facilitator
and to come up with a business initiative. The cultural and tourism monies that we
set aside for the events creates us to have entrepreneurs and, you know, comes out of
it. We bring new monies into the community with the different events, it’s not just
recycled funds in there, it’s new monies that come into our community with the
different culture events that we hold through the proviso that we put aside. I am
trying to see if we can come up with a professional facilitation, because the end result
I would like to see come out of that is a business plan. For instance, whether there’s
any way that the Kalaupapa visits can be put topside for two days, and I’m meaning
not only directly into Kalaupapa, because we have visitors that go there that do not
stop topside. And so does, do, does the plan include maybe we need to open the lodge
at least to start off. Does, will the community support that, that we can have
pilgrimage of people to come to the island and how we can offer this kind of…to
stimulate ongoing kind of economic inoculation. And I’m saying on a regular basis
hopefully. And how do we do that if we don’t have the conceptual plan put in place?
And for that, that’s why I’m saying I think that’s an economic initiative that can come
through.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Could we work with in, within your Molokai, I mean I’d be totally happy
to, you know, facilitate that out of your Molokai fund. Would that work?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t think we have that, those monies available. We can
relook it, but I’m actually looking for not the grants, I’m looking for a contract.
MS. RASMUSSEN: But we could do, we can do a contract out of that fund.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Out of that grant funding?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m not sure.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We can. We can do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’ll be willing to have the conversation with you again.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, I’m totally willing to -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Because…
MS. RASMUSSEN: --look at that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. I think that…
MS. RASMUSSEN: It’s just that this one, this fund here is just used for so many different
things -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I understand.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --that I’m just concerned about the big chunk of money coming out of it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I understand.
MS. RASMUSSEN: That’s my concern. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I can understand that. But if…
MS. RASMUSSEN: But I would totally be willing to work with you on a contract. If we could
put it in your Molokai…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, not necessarily that -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --but we can look at where we can go -MS. RASMUSSEN: Or some…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --for that.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’d be willing to have a conversation with you again -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and see how we can go from there.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, ladies. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Chair, I would suggest that we, instead of taking away from the
other initiatives, I would suggest that we just add $20,000 to this and then proviso it
to Molokai. But I can’t get comfortable spending a lot more than that, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is your add back or…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My add would be…well, it looks to me like most of this money has been
utilized in this past year, right?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, yeah. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, you know, with what we’re facing with HC&S and Makena, I would
be more comfortable going back to the 185 and adding the…and then proviso’ing the
20 out of that total.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One eighty-five, 20,000 for Molokai…I don’t know the phrase Ms. Crivello
used, but okay, Members, are you clear on what Mr. White is proposing?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait, wait. I have a Member…Ms. Cochran, you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No…yes. Okay, wait. Add back in what?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 35,000 that I reduced.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So go back to the 185?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And proviso the 40…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, it was 20.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Twenty.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Twenty.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So and okay, I have that straight. But I wanted to jump
back into the initial conversation where there’s the Molokai initiative and cultural pot
so to speak, right. And so if that could be…is that what you were trying to say,
Ms. Rasmussen, to look at that pot -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in order to provide the monies and you would -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --kind of work it out or whatever -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --with that pot?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ‘Cause it was sounding like this ask fit more in line with
that -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --area because it’s what it’s there for.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Because it’s for that region. Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so that was just my…so I was following along with what
you were saying -MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in that respect. And…
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MS. RASMUSSEN: I’m totally willing to work on this with Councilwoman Crivello. I…yeah,
it’s just where the funds were coming from that, yeah, we were concerned.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well the only reason why I looked at this under the
advisement of some of the Staff members from Budget is because of the economic
development whereby the 120 that is set aside are for the cultural events as well as
the economic. So it comes out to where we utilize most of all that 120 including what
we might call business revitalization -MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --funding too.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments, Members? Questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh sorry, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so following up on this though, would it, I don’t know,
cleaner, maybe more simplified to add to that Molokai economic development? Just to
keep all Molokai under one heading, one…I mean everyone’s okay with the dollar
amount, put it into this pot and then decide on this contract, whatever this planning
body is going to be or called. I don’t know, Chair, just as a cleaner move versus to
take out of this sort of general open overarching pot for many different places and
things versus Molokai has one to begin with. And just add, you know, so I…
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, Ms. Cochran, if I understand you, what you’re asking is
the 20,000 that we may consider is to add the 20,000 to the 120.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: One twenty.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is that what I’m understanding you saying?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m okay as long as it can be a contract and not necessarily
a grant.
MS. RASMUSSEN: No, it can. Yes, it can.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MS. RASMUSSEN: It can.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We…I think Ms. Rasmussen is very clear what your expectations are,
Ms. Crivello. And so I would say Ms. Cochran’s suggestion is quite valid.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’ll take that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can place it under Molokai so that you know where it is, and then you
and Ms. Rasmussen can work out the details.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the Chair is open to that -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --suggestion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And…sorry, and, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So under Molokai cultural and -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you have a line?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --economic development programs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What line?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, we just gotta find where it is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be under OED.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, it’s on Page 27, Line No. 847.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight four seven. Okay. We’re going to pump that up 20,000, and then
add the proviso the 20,000 is for…state it how you want it, Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Facilitate…or well…
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Contract…provided -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Contract to facilitate -CHAIR HOKAMA: --for a contract, 20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --and come out with a community-based economic initiative
for Molokai.
MS. RASMUSSEN: Economic development strategic plan, how’s that?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, that’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I was trying to see if we could restore the 35,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We did.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Did we restore it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we didn’t.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We didn’t.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Yeah, considering the fact that…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It was contingent -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m sorry.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --on the add back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I still would like to restore the 35,000 considering the
fact that last year we gave them 185,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re not there. Okay. Let’s stay on track. Concentrate. This is
the Molokai fund, 20,000 with a proviso, okay. Is there consensus?
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COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank you, people.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we are back to Line -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Nine thirty-six yeah?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --936. Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
be restored considering
that they’ve utilized all
this document that was

Oh yes, thank you, Chair. I would like to request that 35,000
the fact that last year they were given the 185 and it appears
of them and have committed most of the funds according to
presented on the percentages of what they use the fund for.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you heard Mr. Guzman’s request, his proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How much was…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’ll recognize you next, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. White had made some great comments about this as well
so I can support both Mr. Guzman’s request and for the reasons that both he and
Mr. White discussed. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I was going to ask, you know, of that total fund of 185
last year because we’ve just put 20,000 for Molokai. How much was used for Molokai?
I didn’t get this report. I know it came from…
MS. RASMUSSEN: These are more broader Maui, you know, broader Maui.
necessarily, you know…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Chair, I’m with you on this one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other comments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Looks like a lot of monies in this area is still in route. Is
that true? Many…do we have a total of what’s been expended actually? I mean
there’s a list, it’s been all divvied up but has it truly been used?
MS. RASMUSSEN: Yeah, well they’re all…all of these awards have been made, they’re just all
in various stages of spending. Fourth of July hasn’t even happened yet so, you know,
the spending hasn’t occurred yet, so, you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So last year’s appropriation is for this coming year’s July in
the next fiscal?
MS. RASMUSSEN: This…we have to because the fiscal year starts…July 4th starts four days
after the fiscal year and we don’t have time to get them a grant, so they work, you
know, they work backward, yeah. But yeah, all of these are in various stages
of…Hawaii on the Hill happens in June, Friday Town Party marketing goes on every
month, you know, there’s, they’re all in various stages of…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did Maui Nui Canoe Race actually occur? ‘Cause I guess
there was bad weather and they had to cancel. Was that this past year?
MS. RASMUSSEN: That I would have to go back and look. Yeah, there was one that was bad
weather, but they had incurred almost all the expenses unfortunately.
They
couldn’t…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Even without having the…
MS. RASMUSSEN: Well because they had to set, you know, I think it got cancelled like the
last day so they still had expenses unfortunately.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I’m kind of with you on this one. As I’m seeing there’s
many, a lot of districts have, it’s economic development initiative pots too. And as
Ms. Rasmussen says, this is from all around so it seems like if they didn’t get into
their appropriated pot for their district, they could go to this pot for monies too. So it’s
however this body wants to go, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Ms. Cochran. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know Ms. Cochran brings up, I think a point
that I’ve been feeling over the last couple days is that Molokai, Lanai, Hana and my
district have economic development pots. So the way I look at this is that this is one
of the pots that’s shared by the remaining districts. So I would rather not, you know,
I’d rather not take it down too much, because that’s the pot that everyone else is able
to make use of. So I still would support the restoration.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comments. Anyone else? You know hearing
the, your comments, Members, and Ms. Rasmussen’s comments, the only thing I am
going to ask is that projects in districts with special pots and we know which districts
they are, mine is one of them, that projects that come out of our districts access the
district pots. Okay. And, you know, in the past for various reasons they went to the
generic pot for…and but in the future I think we’re funding the specific district
program areas for cultural and economic sufficiently that you should be able to access
the district money and not your what I would call the more general allocation.
MS. RASMUSSEN: We can absolutely abide by that. Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, ‘cause I’m only going by what I see in contracts and encumbrances.
So I see you still have…she’s, you know, the Department as she said, you know,
because of timing and everything it has an encumbrance of 50,000-plus, available
balance of 66,000-plus or 42 percent. So I understand the timing since she just gave
us about the June events, July events. I mean we understand the -MS. RASMUSSEN: Okay. Yeah, it will be -CHAIR HOKAMA: --timing of agreements.
MS. RASMUSSEN: --spent. It will be spent, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you know, Members, you have a unique situation. I hope we never
deal with another HC&S predicament, but it is reality for our people so again, you
know, I’m a tight wad but I understand the need for certain investments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. And, you know, Mr. Guzman and my
districts are probably the ones that where these funds and maybe couple other
districts. But I agree with you, Chair, and I’ll stay with your proposal just because at
this point in time there’s a lot of unknowns out there. And I understand Mr. White’s
wanting to put more money back in, but we’ve been putting more money back in.
We’re up at around 203,000 or something like that. I’ve been keeping quick tabs. Not
saying I’m right but somewhere around there. And so this is one area that for me
personally and I don’t know, Mr. Guzman may have a different thought, but for right
now I can live with the 150 because, you know, there’s other pots that you’ve made
available to us and helped us in other areas. There’s more to come, you know, there’s
more in this. So for the sake of moving on and I’m willing to give in on this one,
because I know there’s more down the road that we can look at to help us out. So
that’s my take on it and so I would rather just leave it at 150 and let’s move on for
right now. That’s my take on it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I wholeheartedly disagree with that 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don’t care.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Because as Mr. White said, you know, not only HC&S, we also
have Makena going down too. So we’ve got a lot of need for economic development
initiatives. They use the pot every year at 185. We’re cutting 35 from last year’s. So I
can’t support…I’m supporting Mr. White’s request for the 35 restoration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Let me just say one of the things I
considered in proposing this to you, Members. As I said, you are in a unique time, a
unique situation. Major decisions have been made out of our control that impact this
body’s considerations of the next incoming year’s Budget. I have created a Budget in
your Chair’s opinion whereby I have left flexibility under the revenue-generation
components and under expenses whereby the Administration because that’s what I
expect, once they are aware of something more specific regarding our displaced
workers, displaced families, opportunities for job transfers and training, I expect to get
a Budget amendment certify more, big money and asking us to adopt proposed
amendments that is way beyond $185,000. I am anticipating high six figure to even
seven-figure proposals coming down the road.
Because that’s when I feel
Administration or other entities will be giving us considerations that will take that
sizeable amount of financial resources. So for me I wasn’t going to squirrel around
what I call the manini stuff at this time. I’m trying to prepare us to be able to receive
and consider the bigger considerations that I anticipate. ‘Cause this year when we got
Budget amendments, you know how many we had in the multimillion dollar arena of
requests. Okay, we weren’t dealing with 35,000, we weren’t dealing with 185, we were
dealing with $4-5 million requests. And so I am, just placed us in a position where
that can be done by the Administration. But if you guys want to go this route, pad the
small pots, that’s fine. We are just going to now reduce the parameters for those other
type of amendments that may be required before this body and would need the cash,
not borrowing, cash. We don’t borrow for grants and whatnot. So I just sharing you
some of the things how I thought about in presenting a proposal to you regarding this
type of funds. So you have a proposal from Mr. White to go back to 185. You have
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I’m comfortable withdrawing as long as the Department
understands that should they come across something that makes, you know, makes
good sense and, you know, they can…as long as they understand they can come back
to us. I don’t disagree with your rationale at all. I know we all know that there’s other
things that are going to come up and this, my recollection was that the origination of
this pot was exactly for them to be able to respond to things as they came up. But I
think the degree to which we’ve been able to respond to Budget amendments on a very
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timely basis, makes me comfortable that if that’s your focus, I can agree with that.
And we just encourage Ms. Rasmussen and her team to be, you know, eyes on the
horizon and letting us know as they see things coming up that we’ll be ready to
respond.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. White. Okay, yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. So hearing Mr. White as things come up,
this is what this fund was pretty much created. But I mean I see some things for
Lahaina, Lahaina Action Committee, the basketball stuff, those we know are ongoing.
This is not just maybe they’re going to ask, this is the 4th of the July like you said
coming up, this is Halloween. So…Kihei Friday Town Parties are in here. You know
so these aren’t things that just come as a whim unexpectedly in a sense. So
where…I’m just trying to figure out…and I know Mr. Couch and I don’t have pots per
se in this economic development initiative thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But we tend to have money but not designated pots for our
districts. So maybe perhaps that’s why I see Kihei and Lahaina here, but, you know,
just an observation. And so I mean if it’s meant to be for others to, you know, take
from then I see us as being ongoing regular customers in a sense and not just people
who just happen to pop in and go hey by the way we’re throwing this event, can we tap
into this? So I don’t know, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand your…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: To create, you know what I’m saying? So…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand your comments, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I won’t speak for Hana or Molokai. The reason why I ask you to support
the Lanai thing is I truly believe Lanaians have great pride and their willingness to
work for services and to assist in paying their, as much as, as best they can pay their
fair share to the County. Lanaians want job opportunities. They want to have job
entrepreneurship development. Our issue is we are stuck with one major landowner
that controls land so tight, it stifles the ability for the community to exercise its brain
power through new ideas, out-of-the-box thinking of doing businesses on an island
since they don’t have an opportunity. Part of this is for me to help them provide those
monies to be able to not only dream but to try and fulfill their dream by getting into at
least a governmental pot to develop a business on Lanai whereby eventually, hopefully
we can get the land so they can be independent businesses on Lanai and not
dependent upon the one landowner who actually controls who gets commercial space,
who doesn’t get commercial space, who gets rent subsidy, who doesn’t get rent
subsidy. I mean you want to talk about old feudal days, you know, that’s pretty much
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what we went back to. And I think that’s a very unhealthy situation for us on Lanai.
And so for me I’m trying to, my purpose of our pot is to help create some independence
also of the one major landowner’s influence upon our ability to grow our individual
opportunities there. So that’s the purpose of why I asked you to support the Lanai
pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause eventually I would love to eliminate the pot and just have a cultural
component because we are doing well in economic development. That would be a
great dream of mine, they get rid of that component. Okay, so we are back to 150.
Any other proposals, questions? Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Move to 950.
proposal regarding Workline?

Anyone wants to make a comment or a

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My only question is, is this due to the fact that they’re, with
their inability to provide enough manpower? Because I know they’ve had and still
have a shortage of ACOs and that’s been one of the biggest problems. So that was my
question to you, was that part of your thought process here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was a factor -‘’’’’’’
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A factor, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --of course the ability of them to provide the work lines themselves. But
secondly, again, I would hope the State would see the contributions of this County in
assisting them in this type of preparation of our residents to enter into a more
beneficial situation when they enter general community. I’m just hoping that they
would say you know what, we can do our fair share, we’ll pay for the truck, we’ll pay
for this ‘cause you guys paying for this, this, this, and this. You know but part, you
know, and so my reason is one, reduce a little because I would like the State to pay
attention to what’s happening, but second is also the ability of them to provide us with
the lines, whether the departments are dependent upon for performance of various
requirements. And then of course there’s other departments who have come told me
why only Parks, why only…how come we cannot access? And I’m going I don’t want to
go there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you have my proposal, I made a reduction, 43,000. So that’s
how I arrived at the new number of 117,000. Any…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And basically you’re keeping it flat is what happened, right,
with your reduction from last year? Did they ask for…I don’t…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think they asked for another not truck but…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, they’re asking for a 3½ percent increase and equipment for
clerical support position.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that clarification, Mr. White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s what your reduction -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --is for?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you’ve heard the Chair’s comments. You have any…if
not, is there consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, may I…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Did you want to go?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, back up. We kind of skipped over 949 and I know we had
a comment from Ms. Cochran and me about the harbor improvement from park
assessments there. Or is that going to be in another place?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Under grant?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I don’t know if we can get it from park…it’s going to be for
the improvement of the harbor front. Or should that be at a, in a different…
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not for the project, right, Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Cochran wanted to add a grant to the Lahaina
Restoration Foundation for the harbor front project using park assessments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MS. YOSHIMURA: And we posed the question to Corporation Counsel.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Corporation Counsel, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. And…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Sorry.
Chair, Department did respond or
Department…yeah, and, you know, land ownership and things are sort of kind of
sketchy -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wonky.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --around there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, pretty sketchy around there.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It is what it is but the point is the area that at least we’re,
Mr. Couch and myself went for the blessing that in, at least in my head and I believe
his too is that this where the improvement was going to occur. That’s not technically
County land, but Theo came and she brought maps and things and said -CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --in front of the library they’re also going to improve, that is
County. So I’m all good to put monies there. But it was like the whole thing that was
presented to us, you know, the dollar amount, had the whole picture of that area that
I was describing with the wall and that would help out, you know, people who want to
go on the Expeditions and what have you have a nice more comfortable place to wait
and things. So it got a little kind of mixed up I think, but there’s still improvements to
be made. And so Theo explained that that section has funding and that the monies
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that, if we are to give would go towards the County improvement, the lands, the
County lands.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which I’m in favor and support of. So I believe the, they can
work with 500 is it first phase?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So 500 first phase and but not...but wondering if park
assessments. I don’t know if, is it considered a park? In my mind maybe not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, as, you have a comment you could share with the Committee
in regards to Ms. Cochran’s request to have park assessment funds as a source to pay
for Phase II-A now?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two A.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two A.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe we responded in CC-20 today and essentially I, it’s
really up to you folks as the body, assign the money, but we could see how it could be
considered a passive park with a cultural-type aspect to it. The next phase of the
analysis would have to be whether or not you folks feel that it’s serving the occupants
and residents or something of lots of the subdivision that the fees came from and
stuff. That would be the next type analysis you would have to do. So it’s up to this
body. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and, you know, and I get that park assessments we’ve
been kind of going around and around, improvements to parks and playgrounds and
things of that nature. And so this is very different. And so if perhaps we’re not
comfortable in utilizing the West Maui restricted park assessment fees this way then I
would ask to see if we can find it or put it on Mr. Couch’s tab for $500,000. No, I
guess it’d have to come out of cash, General Fund is the only other option if I’m not
mistaken.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well so I would ask, did you have a chance to look at the response,
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I have to dig it out, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, it’s dated April 28th so it’s today, and it’s from Mr. Ueoka, also
Mr. Wong signed off. And Mr. Ueoka gave us the, a very general summary of his
opinion. The conclusion of whether it fulfills the intent of park assessment he has
determined that it should be made by the Council, and this Committee can give a
recommendation whether these parks will serve the purpose of the in lieu fees from
which it was derived from. And they choose to withhold comment regarding the exact
since they believe it is outside of their scope of expertise and professional area. So it’s
going to be up to this Committee whether you want to move forward with the park
assessment consideration as a recommendation to full Council. So I’m -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --open to your -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thoughts.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you. And I see the last paragraph, purchasers or
occupants of lots or units in the subdivision who contributed to this assessment. I
guess the question is are they benefitting from such use and maybe, maybe not. I
mean that’s why it’s kind of…and I think in this same correspondence it was asked
from Mr. Guzman in regards to the Mokuhinia/Moku`ula area also, if that could be
considered some cultural passive park kind of area. And I guess it’s the same
predicament and decision that we need to make to determine is it appropriate or not at
this point.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So I’d like to hear comments from other Members, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And again, Ms. Cochran, I can support using
park assessments for two reasons. Many of these were hotels that were built there,
and these hotels really don’t have a subdivision. They don’t have…I mean people work
there, maybe people live there, but they’re not a like maybe what you’d find here in
Kehalani or other places. So I don’t think that’s so applicable but I don’t know,
Mr. Ueoka can probably straighten me out in that sense. But there is really no
subdivisions for which that money would be applicable. It’s for the West Side of Maui
and these were all the various hotels, timeshares. This is where most of that money
came from, not subdivisions. No? You’re shaking your head no. Tell me why,
Mr. Ueoka. Don’t shake your head, just tell me why. ‘Cause I’m tired and I just want
to go home, I just want to know the answer. Why not?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Counselor?
MR. UEOKA: Sorry, Mr. Victorino, I don’t believe hotels, when you do a hotel, you pay the
park assessment fee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You don’t?
MR. UEOKA: I don’t think so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Really.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The one thing I can tell you, Mr. Victorino, is the biggest requirement I can
recall for the last 45 years on hotels was -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --employee housing requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. In lieu right? There was another…that’s how they
got around a lot of that, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: And some paid in lieu of -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --workforce development requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you’re telling me that all this money…
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it was for housing but yeah, I don’t recall a park assessment -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for the hotels.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if no hotels…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I may be wrong but, you know, in my -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --recollection…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so let’s say that’s done. All right. Any subdivision
that’s built out there, Kaanapali Hillside -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that’s way up there. Right? Or, you know, Kapalua
Mauka, that’s way up there. I mean hell, am I going to wait to build a park around
these subdivisions? They can come down and use that harbor and they probably do.
So again, I can fight that issue. So I’m just saying I believe she has the money in that
park assessment, we should use it so that Lahaina…and this would be a park area. I
mean they use it. People sit there, they have their ice cream, they relax, they…4 th of
July, all the people line and pile that whole area for the 4th of July fireworks show.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that’s my take on it and, you know, thank you,
Mr. Ueoka, for correcting me. I’ve not been wrong more than ten times today and I
appreciate that. Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I do believe that all the timeshares and condos that
have been built are subject to the park assessment -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and they don’t have places to, you know, they don’t have parks,
anywhere to build parks. So I’m comfortable using the fund, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Chair? So am I. And the rationale is, it’s basically
been met. If we can find the nexus it’s our…I mean it’s our, we have the authority to
say that’s what it is, and I think we’ve already stated it on the record, we find the
nexus. It benefits the residents there. So I’m ready to go forward and support
Ms. Cochran’s allocation of her park assessment fees. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Pretty much the same thing that my colleagues to my left said,
and, Ms. Cochran, I’m fine. I think it’s a very worthwhile nexus and will work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?

- 254 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And I want to thank my Members for, you
know, doing a nice vetting of sorts in this regard. And on Ms. Morrison’s project, the
landscape concept, a portion…there’s a lot of highlights here but lawn can be used for
events and cultural programs, shaded area for sitting with street trees and benches.
Sounds kind of parky [sic] to me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sounds parky [sic].
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I think everyone will be able to utilize it, it’s all for the
public, for the public good. And so I’m -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --happy to support my recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would hope you support your recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, late.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You finally agree with yourself.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Trying to keep my mom awake.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, I want to express my support. You know when we were
sitting there waiting for the ferry and or whatever’s going on there, you see people
sitting there and they’re doing what people do in parks, sitting there eating, talking
story, relaxing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Eating ice cream.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, eating ice cream or whatever they can get their hands on.
Yeah. I think it fits.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll…so, Miss…your preference is a proviso, right, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So then that would come out of the park assessment
section though, it wouldn’t be written in here -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --at this point, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We would place it in the appropriate area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So if we can get language, proper language in the
proper area. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it’s not this one, it’s…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I don’t think it would fit. It wouldn’t go here because
this is…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think it would be added as a number four, grant to the
Lahaina Restoration Foundation for the Lahaina, the harbor front project and we’d use
park assessment fees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s what we’ll do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah, that’s fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, is that how it works?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, very good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I’ll put Phase II-A because that is what Ms. Cochran is supporting,
Phase II-A.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, Phase II-A. And -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --I have…sorry, Chair. I have the breakdown actually from
Ms. Morrison and the total is 480,000 so…is how she broke it down to the dollar.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what number do you want us to and place in the Budget?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Round it to five then. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s your pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, five.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll move forward. Thank you for that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. I have a number five for the grants and we just
touched on it as well. It’s the, a grant for the restoration project for Moku`ula and
Mokuhinia. And then I’m asking for 400,000, but the actual cost, total cost for the
archeological data recovery fieldwork for Phase I is 744,000. And this is conducted by
several professionals. I also have a breakdown on, of the other costs. But I’m just
asking right now for 400,000. And hopefully we can access the park assessment fees
or the other, maybe the additional monies that we can save on the Self Insurance
Fund as well as I can tap into Mr. Couch’s RPT funds or rates.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You can do it with doing park assessment fees.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But anyway that being said, I’d also like to have a proviso in
there as well, provided that the funds are awarded through an RFP process following
approval of the scope and criteria by the appropriate Council committee. Chair, this is
an item that’s been in my Committee, in the EAR Committee for over more than a
year, and I’m looking for some type of solution on the funding process or the source.
And I think this would be the best route to take. This would allow accountability and
for every phase that goes through it, they would have to come to the Council to review
the phases and we would appropriate the monies as it goes by or and when it’s
needed. So that’s what I’m asking for at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what about the concession?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, the concession is still pending in my Committee. That’s
a vehicle that or an appropriations vehicle that has been granted through a lease to
the Friends of Moku`ula, and it’s still pending on whether we approve the continued
use as part of the project of the archeological fieldwork. It’s estimated at 130,000 to
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remove the parking lot, because underneath the parking lot is remnants of the site
itself. So eventually we’re going to have to get rid of the parking lot concession, and
there’ll be no more funding at that point. But this is in preparation. And this will, in
my opinion will allow more transparency in the whole funding process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And so what is the first thing you want and how are you going to
pay for that one now, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m requesting a grant for 400,000 although the actual cost I
hear, I see is 744,000. So but I’m not sure whether they’ll be able to utilize all that in
one year’s time for Phase I of the archeological dig.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the 400,000 you’re asking for is from General Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
assessment fees.

I was hoping that Ms. Cochran would lend over her park

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s a park.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And, Chair, I don’t even -CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --live on the West Side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m trying to get this resolved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We under, yeah, we understand that. Yeah. What I would ask
Ms. Cochran, I prefer you folks not to spend somebody else’s money. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? And yeah, I commend Mr. Guzman and I know this
has been a thorn stuck in his Committee for a long time and it’s been a thorn stuck in
this entire County for 23 years. And I, you know, applaud the, trying to find solutions
in how to move this forward because that is how we all feel and I do too. I’m just
trying to…and I completely agree, I’m just trying to see…because the way it’s been
presented, the way we all have been seeing the restoration of Moku`ula, Mokuhinia, a
park in a sense never came to mind, playgrounds and stuff. I see how we tied it to the
front of the library. So I can picture, you know, like a botanical type of thing,
wetlands have been considered via U.S. Army Corps, what have you, that’s not a park
still. So I…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Cultural.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it is cultural. So, Chair, I’m, yeah, trying to work this
through, and I know West Maui has a lot of park assessment fees and it seems like an
easy pot -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to tap into. I just don’t want it to be utilized in one way
and set precedence for on and on and on when -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know, so I’m -CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --not against the proposal, I think it’s wonderful. I think
this is the closest we’ve gotten to seeing this project move forward. I mean I really…
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is what I would have you consider, Ms. Cochran. This needs to be
well thought out and fleshed out, you know, it’s too -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --loose for the Chair to even consider it at this time. You will have till
tomorrow morning to come up with something with Mr. Guzman. And then tomorrow
you folks can present it and we are going to vote it up or down tomorrow because
there’s no more time to dick around. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Another potential source would, maybe the Open Space Fund
since it is going to be open space and cultural.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That we’d allow…I would give Mr. Ueoka time to see if that would -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --actually fit the Charter. Okay, we’ll move on. Nine five six, 957.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Guzman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh yes. I’m going to reference the Department of Parks and
Recreation’s letter dated April 26, 2016. In regards to 957, they’re requesting that an
additional 84,000 be included under the Details reference to 12-45. This is lease
equipment in a Parks division. Also, this would allow the needed slope and field
mowers to be supported by the other districts’ needs. To pay for that…and I guess it’s
all listed here in regards to 965, Item 965 and Item 966 also adding 250,000 for the
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qualified rehabilitation, maintenance, operations, and the restoration of 80,000 for a
West Maui 4000-D Mower. According to the letter from Parks, they’re going to reduce
I guess our district maintenance in each of our districts which is a total of 414,000 in
order, just basically shifting the monies to those 3 items that I previously mentioned
that, which totaled 414,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That basically covers…
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll take it one line at a time -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so everybody is clear. Nine five six, what is your request, Mr. Guzman,
for 956?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Let’s see…oh, I don’t have it listed here on, in the…so you can
skip 956. Nine five seven -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 957, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --is addition of 84,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you heard Mr. Guzman’s request to restore 84,000 which would
reduce the 116 reduction. You have consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
250,000.

Okay.

And then we have 965 and that would be adding

CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six five, 250,000.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And then 966, adding 80,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll take one line at a time.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine six five.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Two hundred and fifty thousand.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Your Chair’s problem with this is the Department has made
assumptions that we are going to accept all these parks. Okay. I can tell you I have
reservations with Maliko Gulch big time, and I am currently not in the position to
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support acquisition. And so I don’t know how they came up with this potential
numbers for parks that we even haven’t gotten under our jurisdiction yet. There are
some that will be presented to Council for acceptance, some even haven’t had the
discussion of consideration for a park when I look at the 2017. So we’re going to
return ‘cause the Chair is not going to agree to this at all.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So we’ll come back to 96, this 250,000. And then we’ll take a vote up or
down tomorrow. ‘Cause we won’t reach consensus tonight on this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, sorry. And but real briefly, so what you’re saying is
that the numbers that Mr. Guzman’s looking to put back in is in relation to the
Hamakualoa purchase -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --and nothing else?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, this is not even…Maliko Gulch is nothing to do with that North Shore
3 million that we currently have in the Budget -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --as I understand it from Parks Department. This is not the land we are
being asked to purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I’m kind of confused. You’re talking about purchasing
a property?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Maliko Gulch.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Where’s that? Is that…
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s in their, the Director’s response, in the restoration of 250, he’s
talking about anticipated parks that they’re thinking about putting in the
Department’s inventory which means it’s not under us yet. The following…‘cause you
look . . .(inaudible). . . it says the following are the anticipated parks coming into the
Department’s inventory. So it’s not there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Which means we haven’t accepted at this time Kehalani Mauka, Maui Lani
Park, Waipuilani Park, Maliko Gulch. Central Maui we’re still under a right of entry.
So none of these park is actually the Department’s responsibility yet, and that’s why I
have a problem with them asking us for money on things we don’t have jurisdiction
yet, currently. There’s plans to turn it over to us for responsibility and jurisdiction but
we currently don’t have it. And so that’s my problem with this request, Members.
Okay, we’re going to move on ‘cause I just told you I’m not going to agree to this
tonight. The next one, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That’s it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Without objection, I’d like to put in a proviso for a lockable gate at the
Pauwela Road, but I’ll provide the wording tomorrow. I’d like to proviso construction
and maintenance operation line, Sub-object Code 915667B.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be under what component?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What line number?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, it’s under Parks Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be under Parks Program. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So you’re going to present us with language tomorrow. That’s fine.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s fine. That’s fine. Okay, the next one…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe 958 both Mr. Guzman and I -CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine five eight, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --wanted to revisit. That’s the CIP Coordinator discussion so
I’m guessing we’re going to revisit that later.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’ll do that tomorrow. Because, Members, before I release you
tonight, we are going to go through revenues. Okay. Line 106.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Mr. Guzman --

Was 956…we didn’t do consensus or anything?

‘Cause

CHAIR HOKAMA: Nine five six.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --was going through…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We’ll revisit it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh is this all -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We’re going to revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --just revisits at this point?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ‘Cause he was trying to do changes but he said skip that
line so I was -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --taking it that he didn’t have additions to it. And so are we
going to call for consensus?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m going to ask Mr. Guzman so we understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Nine five six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, did you want something with 956?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I don’t.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay…
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe for 966 I know Mr. Guzman was going to do something
with that potentially, but I would like to at least bump it up 50K for, and a proviso for
this, a South Maui F-150 truck. The one that they have is about ready to fall apart. I
wouldn’t ride in it myself. And they’ve asked for that for a number of years in a row.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you…wait, wait. Under nine…what line that was?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nine six six.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 966. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I want to change the minus 349,313 to make it minus 300
even. So basically add 49,313.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, you heard Mr. Couch’s request. Any other comments?
You have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we will just…
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Did we go over 966 when I…that was the 80,000 for the West
Maui 4000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I thought we were going to revisit that tomorrow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We were going to revisit that part.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. But he made a proposal, I’m just trying to dispose as much as
possible tonight. But you guys want to come back, we’ll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Just come back to 966.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll come back. That’s fine. The next line is 1006.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This one is provided by testimony and a letter dated April 26th
from the Department of Planning. They would like to say delete the expansion
positions for Zoning Trainee and Land Use Permit Clerk instead of Office Operations
Assistant and Land Use Permit Clerk. So they want to just…their order of preference
is they want the Operations Assistant, and they are fine with waiting on the Zoning
Trainee and Land Use Permit Clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So they just want the Ops Assistant I?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just change that to Zoning Trainee, Zoning Inspector Trainee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you heard Mr. Couch’s proposal. Any other comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What would that cost? I mean -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe it’s the same.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I had 39.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They said that it’s pretty much the same. Let’s see, yeah, the…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two E/Ps they wanted to add.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, we’re only giving them one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not even, no, I don’t even want to add, I just want to change
the description of the E/P. Don’t want to add any positions, don’t want to change any
money, I just want to delete, put expansion positions for Zoning Inspector Trainee and
Land Use Permit Clerk.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We’ll let Staff give us the actual number tomorrow. You folks have
consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, done. And then Staff will give us the revised number for this
Category A. Okay, let’s see, 1008.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Again, per that same letter, would like
to add 150,000 back for a Title 19 study.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And Ms. McLean sat up there and explained the importance of
that and the costing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your proposal, Mr. Couch.
comments?

Members, any other

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, just because I wasn’t here.
study? I’m sorry, I wasn’t here.

Was is the Title 19

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, the Zoning Code.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Title 19.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I did not, I wasn’t here okay, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no, no, that’s a good question. Do you have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Members.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll make those adjustments. Okay. Next line is 1020. Who was
that, 1020? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe I was doing it for Mr. Victorino but I also agree with
the testimony, and I believe Ms. Wade was up here talking about that the Clean and
Safe is starting to move on, move along and do well, and they need the 100,000 for, to
get the Clean going as well and continue on with the Clean and Safe.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, that’s what it was. Okay, I couldn’t remember.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no. And I agree wholeheartedly. It has been a major
improvement as far as cleaning the area and keeping it safe. We have and through the
efforts of the gentleman who’s been doing, it has really made a marketable
improvement to the area as far as cleaning out not only homelessness but even some
of the not-so-desirable people. I’m not saying it’s perfect but he’s done a very good job,
and he has a very professional background as you well know as a former police officer.
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So he does it in an aloha, in the manner of aloha but with the premise of this is the
law and you have to abide by it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I’d like to see that continue please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You heard the request, Members. You have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll restore that 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and thank you, everybody. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ten forty-seven. We are under Department of Police.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think we’re in consensus. No?
CHAIR HOKAMA:
consensus.

We had consensus on 43, 44, 45, and 46.

Just 47 we didn’t reach

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, what was the reduction in equipment? What type of
equipment? And I know it should be here somewhere but maybe Staff can give us a
quick overview.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, thank you for the request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I was the one that did the revisit and we discussed it
a little bit and I thought we had come to consensus. My concern was the lockers on
there, that was the only thing, and we had found out that they were going to do it
some other way with the lockers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, that was in CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Was that CIP?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was CIP, that was a different one. So what was it? If
Miss…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: To respond to Councilmember Couch, they were going to do the lockers
through the Countywide CIP this year I think. For the reduction in equipment, it was
vehicles, it was patrol sedans for Lahaina, Central, and Kihei. I think the request was
for six for each district and the funding that was provided was for three. The Chair’s
proposal also reduces SUVs for the Lahaina District and for Central, as well as for the
Traffic section, and deletes a request for an ATV for Central. It also deletes portable
radios and equipment that was related to the expansion position for the Sergeant out
in Hana.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. On the vehicles, I could probably handle. I don’t
know about the SUVs, especially when you’re talking the areas like West Maui where
you’ve gotta go up into some of the most remote areas you’ll find, and even here in
Central Maui. As far as the rest, I guess I could live with it. And I wasn’t here when
the Chief and they came back so that’s where I have a hard time. I don’t know…and
I’m trying to look right now with the responses that we had from the various
departments. So if somebody could enlighten me if the Chief had no problems with
this or had some concerns, I would appreciate that. You know I wasn’t here so
again…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Likewise.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In my discussions with Mr. Takahashi, I mentioned it’s always intriguing
to Budget Chairs, after going through Budget processes, what was it, last year or the
year before, we gave them no authorization for vehicles, but somehow the Department
was able to buy 17 or 20-something vehicles. So they find a way. Even when not
authorized, they find a way. And so my thing is, I’m telling you we’re happy to
authorize half your request. But I just find it interesting when we don’t put money,
they still can buy a bunch of vehicles. We have a five-man motorcycle crew, they buy
six motorcycles. So for me it’s I don’t think we’re being that tight on the money since
they find ways to buy things that we don’t approve. So I made my adjustments and
I’m open to your requests, Members. It’s again, just a proposal from me to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I concur with yours.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that the reasoning for this, the A, B, C and to tighten that
up, what you just explained? That --
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --type of practice?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that…yeah, you know, I just want them to be upfront with us, and it’s
our job to give them the appropriate resources. But I just find it always interesting
when they don’t ask and we don’t give, they still buy. And I’m not just talking about
this Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I concur with your recommendation. It appears that the, what
will remain is a little less than half, but, you know, they’ve had significant purchases
in the past so I think they can probably live with this. And if they couldn’t, they would
have been down here making sure that we understood that it was a problem.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And our Staff takes great notes, Members. So Chief Faaumu did
return, he was very, he’s very well, I gotta tell you he was awesome. The Chief’s
comments to the Committee yesterday was about expansion positions. He talked
about to this Committee, his comments were focused on the Police Major and the
Sergeant, and also made comments regarding body cameras. And that was the extent
of his comments to the Committee yesterday. So any other comments from you,
Members? Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We shall go to 1052, regarding the Police Major and
Facilities Manager expansion positions, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
I did the request for revisit.
You are deleting the
expansion…you are suggesting deleting the expansion positions for a Police Major and
Facilities Manager. I would like to request that we just delete the funding for Police
Major. If they can find the funding elsewhere then I’m fine with having that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just to be clear, are you suggesting -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --that you’re okay with the deletion of the Facilities Manager?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it would be actually one E/P. Delete the funding for Police
Major and the whole position for the Facilities Manager.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Got it. We have your request. Anyone else, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that would stay at 134, minus, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct, mister…yeah, you’re exactly right, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That number doesn’t change.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus? Okay, moving forward. Let’s see, the next line we have is
1078, Page 35.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that was me again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Public Works, we had discussion with Mr. Goode. He would
really like this position. I’m fine with deleting the funding and leaving the E/P.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Members, you’ve heard Mr. Couch’s consideration. Anyone has…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And reasoning is ‘cause you feel they can find the funding
elsewhere?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. If you…I can concur with Mr. Couch on this. I got a
message that with the whole MS4 Program, you know, being put upon this -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Department, we’ve talked about it in my Committee but
the funding and how it’s going to truly roll out has not been determined yet. But the
initial thought from Director is this particular body needs to be here in order for them
to start and really start honing in and figuring out how they’re going to roll it out. So
I’m going to support his ask in the body and I guess as Mr. Couch is stating, they can
figure out the clothes for the body.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. That was a unique visual but thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was from last year, that’s a throwback.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Is this where the Civil Engineer V, is it in the same
Department? ‘Cause my recollection is that both of them were for the MS4 Program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, yes, this is the area they requested two positions, a Civil
Engineer V and a III.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Chair…
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I think my proposal was to give them the V. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: My proposal, it was give them the Civil Engineer V.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I concur with your position, Chair, because I, you know, while
we look at these numbers like 48, this is not even half of what the actual cost is going
to be because -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --on an annual basis…I know, just let me finish, Mr. Couch. Although
he’s giving them the E/P only, we are, we’re going to end up spending that 48 the first
year and then more the second, and we have to add fringes to both years. So on an
annualized basis this is going to be about a $120,000 expense. And I would just say
that I would be willing to agree to that next year. But I agree with your position, and
I’m assuming that your thought was that the V would get them going on the MS4, it’s
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as Ms. Cochran said, we don’t really know what it’s going to entail at this point. So
I’m happy supporting it next time around but I think we should save the money this
year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your comments. Anyone else?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So there’s a CE V somewhere?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Five that was requested and…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And approved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And approved?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, the Committee agreed to consensus. So that…‘cause that was in my
proposal to give them the expansion CE V. They asked for the two, I gave them the
higher class engineer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And the understanding is they, that person could also be
used for the MS4?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That was the request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was the request.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ‘Cause that would do one of the other…oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was the request. The CE V was also for MS4. So I’m giving them one
this year -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and then we’ll see, and then we will consider CE III for next year was my
approach. But I’m, I was supporting them with the V, CE V.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I’m good with that, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anything else, Members? If not -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --we have consensus? Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, what are we consensus’ing?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, wait, what is…
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: With the removal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is it his consensus?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That we are going to keep the deletion of CE III.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause we’re going to support them with the CE V expansion position.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, can I have consensus on 79 and 80? That’s all tied into the…
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay, so 1087 and 1088 we’ll come back tomorrow,
because that’s where I did, I placed the money from Management and this is where I
put it in Public Works. Okay, so we’ll return and make the call and do the final
adjustments, as well as 1089.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so at least you know where I put it from.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: From where to where.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, very good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I’m not sure if this is where I wanted to get a slope mower.
But wait -CHAIR HOKAMA: For --

- 273 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 28, 2016

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --this isn’t the area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what purpose?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is this the area?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The dam mower.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Dam, the dam inspectors.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think is where, right, Ms. Yoshimura? Yes, Ms. Cochran, now’s a good
time for your…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But actually…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: D-A-M. Sorry, Mr. Chair, D-A-M mower, for the dam.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, we know -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --what we’re all talking about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah because this is not the DEM Department, D-E-M.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is gonna…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But actually -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Chair, there’s a couple equipment and it’s not only
100,000. I think the total amount, 310 actually is the figure and 2…so like 500,000
for 2 pieces of equipment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have the specifics?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
confusing myself.

And I think it’s under the CIP, that’s why I’m a little,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Yoshimura, if maybe you can assist us please.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, under the Special Maintenance Program, the Department had
requested a slope mower and it was included for $100,000. I believe Mr. Goode had
indicated that he needed $200,000 for the slope mower, so you would need to add
$100,000 there. On the equipment bond in the Department of Finance, there was a
request for 2 street vacuum -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sweepers.
MS. YOSHIMURA: --trucks or street sweepers for $310,000 each, and that, those 2 were
deleted from the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And those were out of the Bond Fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is General Fund here, we’re looking at?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes, yes. General Fund, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so…
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is Special Maintenance, General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So this is where I would have to try and find 200 for the
slope mower at this point?
MS. YOSHIMURA: You would have to find $100,000 for the slope mower in Highway
funds…sorry, General Fund, and to increase the appropriation for equipment here on,
in the Line 1083 area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: For 100? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll give you till tomorrow, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. We’re going to need to revisit and I’ll need to do some
shopping.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’re happy to return and give you some time to create your
proposal. Okay, thank you. One one one seven, Bikeway Fund. I believe the Chair
just shifted this amount to another area for one of the greenway design monies. I
don’t know if I put it to Waipuilani Greenway or it was the West Maui Greenway but
that, it’s not really a reduction, it’s more of a transfer.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That was mine, Mr. Chair. And Mr. Goode had talked about
that as well, he said he could use the 150 from the Bikeway Fund to help with
potential contingencies for the Lipoa Street Bikeway now in case there’s overruns or
anything. That was his comment I think on the floor.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And you know what, Members…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
ready…

And other, and he also said the North Shore one is about

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I didn’t hear that comment yesterday so thank you for sharing that,
Mr. Couch. Why don’t we pass on this? You’re going to, your eyeballs are going to
pop tomorrow when we bring up the Budget amendment, because this fund is in…it’s
on life support, well maybe even worse than life support. We might have to
re-defibrillate it. It is in not a good situation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One one three three.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think this was Ms. Cochran’s thought where she was going to
put the truck.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Or the mower.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay, this would be the area that if Ms. Cochran would want to add the
two street sweepers, it would be in this area. And you also see that Chair has moved a
truck tractor from the equipment bond to the Highway Fund and reduced it by
$100,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I reduced Ops by 65.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sixty-five.
MS. YOSHIMURA: The truck, on the equipment bond the truck request was 350,000 -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, gotcha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, was 350.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: --and we’re putting in 250.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just going off the last few trucks we bought. For whatever reason
Lanai was shipped a semi-tractor with full blings on it and I tell you, I flipped out
inspecting that vehicle. Stereo, I mean was amazing. And so my thing is this is a
County vehicle, not a luxury vehicle. It needs to do a job, not look pretty. Okay, so,
Ms. Cochran, we would -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --await your proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And return this to this area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, please. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The next component is 1155. And I don’t know if, Mr. Couch,
you did channeling.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe so. I believe I wanted to call that attention…1155,
yeah, the whole thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I brought it up just in case Ms. Baisa wanted to -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --take a look at it. Although I am a little concerned on 1158.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that’s fine. So we’ll go at one line at a time. One one five six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And if she doesn’t, if Ms. Baisa doesn’t want it, I’m fine with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It’s not that I don’t want it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that’s right. That’s right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We want many -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --things -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and we all know we need these things and we need buses and
whatever, but, you know, trying to be a Member of this team, I don’t know how we’re
going to get along without buses. You know I see the MEO buses and God, so many of
them are just really ugly. They’re falling apart, they’re rusty, they look terrible. I
know they need to be replaced. And the concern I have knowing, having run this, I
know how long it takes to get new equipment. And, you know, if you order them now,
it takes a long time before you actually see the equipment. Meanwhile we’re having all
kinds of problems in the field with buses not being available and people grumbling
because they, you know, they don’t have the equipment. So I definitely would like to
put all of this back, but I don’t know if we can, how much my colleagues are willing to
take on.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank
Considerations?

you,

Ms.

Baisa.

Okay,

Members,

other

comments?

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, maybe this is the kind of thing that we ought to put at the
end of the trail and after we tally all this up and see where we are if we can handle it,
then maybe we can put it, if we cannot, well we cannot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well I appreciate your approach and your attitude, Ms. Baisa, and
so I thank you. And we’ll do that, Members, we’ll come back.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So thank you. The next line I have is 1169. Highway Fund, Public Transit
Program. Again, as you will look at the funds tomorrow again, you will notice we have
some issues here. Also, my disappointment in Transportation Department because
when you also read their consultant’s comments, they should have been aware that
they needed to go out and get comment from community regarding potential rate fares
adjustments, whether it goes up, down. They needed to go out and get community
consultation if I believe that’s the right term. They did not and therefore we cannot
consider any adjustments to rates and fees as it impacts this program. Therefore your
Chair’s concern is now for Transit and General Transportation, I’m looking at over
80 percent subsidies for these program areas and it’s of great concern to your Chair,
that 80-plus percent subsidy. So I made adjustments to what I think the fund can
bear, knowing we cannot make adjustments to consider any increase of revenues, and
that’s why I came up with this proposal for you to consider. And that’s all it is, my
approach knowing we have limitations on trying to adjust the other side of the ledger.
So I’m open to your comments or your proposals, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, one of the things that I don’t want to fall through the
cracks and that was, you know, the Kula Community Association as well as Pukalani
have been really asking for ever since all this began, to have a route that would take
them all the way to Hawaiian Homes. And in reading the stuff that we have from
Transportation, they’re saying well, we have to have money to do it, it’s going to cost
more money to do it. And for me that’s a priority because the bus service is only as
good as it’s going to, you know, serve the people Upcountry. And this craziness we
have now of not being able to go to Hawaiian Homes or not having that reverse route
really eliminates a lot of people from being able to use the service. So I’m not sure
exactly how much money Transportation needs to do that, but that is a priority for the
Upcountry people.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, we heard their testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. So, you know, again, I think this is the kind of thing that
maybe we can postpone until we have a better fix on, you know, what we can afford,
but it is a priority for them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You’ve heard Ms. Baisa’s request, any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. We’ll return and tomorrow we’re going to need to make
decisions, Members. Line 1185.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s Ms. Cochran.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, was that you?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, Ms. Cochran.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Auwahi yeah, forest restoration. Just looking to restore
funding for them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And basically any reductions that you had done in the
watershed protection area I slated for revisits in hopes to put back funding. Or I guess
there’s actually raises from last year so they are increases with, you know, putting
back your reductions. And I truly believe that these are needed and are utilized very
well for the benefit of our natural resources and environment.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, these are Water funds so it’s -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --paid from the Water Department through their billings and rates and
fees that we approve for that Department. So…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, I guess it’s easy for me to say because I don’t get
billed by the Water Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, so…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that’s just my proposal, and -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --hopefully the rate payers are okay with it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Just like me, I don’t have Water Supply service on Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So yeah, I don’t pay to this fund.
Ms. Cochran’s proposal. Ms. Baisa?

So, Members, hey, you heard

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the problem with this forest restoration is, you know, of
course it’s going to use Water Fund and nobody wants to use the Water funds for this,
but when you think what it means, if we don’t take care of these forests and we don’t
have water source then nobody’s going to have water.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So there’s no discussion. So, you know, I don’t know how much
of an impact $7,000 will have on our ability to preserve Auwahi, and, you know, it
seems like a small amount of money, but when you look at it, 37,000, it’s a small,
that’s a small line item anyway. But I don’t know if $7,000 is going to be the
difference between having an Auwahi Forest and not having one, so I…
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m open…that’s why, Members, again…
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would, you know, it would be nice to have it, but, you know,
what’s happening here is we look at 7,000, we say it’s a little and we look over here
and we say 2,000, it’s a little, and we look over there, that 5,000 is a little and then
when you add it all up…
CHAIR HOKAMA: You’re over $2 million.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Which is the reality of what we’re going to see tomorrow -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --of what all these thousands of dollars have added up to, and
you may have a different perspective. So as much as I hate to, I think I can agree with
your cut.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other comments, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I support Ms. Cochran’s request.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well, we’ll return since there’s no…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I do too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We’ll put it on Couch’s bill.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, this is Water.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Water. Thank you, Chair. I do know this group or this
Auwahi Forest Restoration where it’s at, and this area I know at one time was out of
the Leeward Haleakala Forest Restoration group. So I’m not sure, maybe they
branched out to really hone in and focus on Auwahi itself, and then Leeward
Haleakala Forest now, you know, is focusing on other areas, what have you. Because
I know they did inherit a lot more land and what have you. So I don’t think they’re
double dipping here in a sense, ‘cause I, it kind of caught me off guard that there was
a whole separate other Auwahi portion, but I do know they do wonderful work and
they’ve progressed a lot. And so the monies are very well spent here. But I hear a lot
of Members in support at this time so I appreciate that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, Members…Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m fine restoring the seven, and I think we have a majority interested
in supporting Ms. Cochran, so I think we should -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine. Consensus.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --restore -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --and move on.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let’s do it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I get the feeling you want to go home.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I just think we need to make sure we keep progressing instead of
talking about…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, 37, Line 1193. One one nine three, East Maui Watershed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s Ms. Cochran’s as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. That again is, that was the reasoning to, just to add
back your reductions, Chair -CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there…
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for, you know, more work for that particular area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Consensus?
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One one [sic] two one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Yeah, and this is a huge chunk, you know, yeah,
self-serving, West Maui, but I think these guys too have progressed and are as we
heard ridge-to-reef initiatives and all other kind of things. And they all do work hand
in hand and support one another, so one wins, they all win and it is in support of our
watersheds which we all know…
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, you guys have --
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --agreement? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. One two five two.
Consensus on that. One two six zero.

Oh no, we have consensus on 1252, sorry.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The same discussion, that’s the moving of the Civil Engineer
from Department of Management.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we’re going to revisit that tomorrow, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to. Okay, I’m going to give you a five-minute break and then we’re
going to hit revenues, and then I am more than likely going to relieve you of duties.
But tomorrow, Members, we’re making decisions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so we’re going to take a recess so you can…the Staff needs a break
to take a break and then we’re going to hit revenues. Okay? . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

12:26 a.m.
12:33 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . . Okay, Members, may I direct you to Page 1 of Exhibit “1.”
This is under Estimated Revenues. Okay, what you see in the Mayor’s columns is
what he had proposed for us, the 277,290,641. That’s with his keeping the rates the
same, making use of 8.9 percent increase in valuations, adjustments to rates and fees,
and he came up with his net estimated revenue. What you will see in yellow is the
adjustments as it regards to certification from Finance, circuit breaker, minimum tax
adjustment, circuit breaker adjustments. Okay. Then you will see the various
adjustments to rates for the various tax categories, and then your Chair’s estimated
number of 271,440,162. Any questions on this area of net estimated revenue?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What you’ve been looking at for the last ten years. Different numbers but
basically the same thing. Okay. Then you have charges for current services, we made
an adjustment of, on the Solid Waste Fund from 80 to 81 net, that’s 400,000, brings
us to $135,942,152. Then you will see your Chair took the existing year’s numbers,
reduced TAT from the Mayor’s numbers. I would have loved for the Mayor to have
been successful for 36,940,000. We have budgeted at 23,280,000 and that is what we
are basically going to get after our report from Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Chair, I believe our percentage amounts to 23,484,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Twenty three four eighty-four. Okay, we’ll make those adjustments.
Thank you. Public Service Company Tax, 9.1 million. I’ve decided to use the Mayor’s
numbers although I’m not very confident we’re going to hit it. Again, with the
reduction of fuel sales and whatnot, this number will be impacted. The Chair has also
used the Mayor’s estimates for License, Permits, and Others at 34,590,434. This is
another area I am going to be optimistic regarding the Mayor’s proposed for Fuel and
Franchise Taxes at $23,655,000. Your Chair is hopeful to get this. But again, like the
Public Service, I have my concerns we will not hit this mark. So that’s two big
components of our revenue sources I’m not fully confident on. Special Assessments,
again I will…I think the Mayor has a good sense so I’m going to support his
5.175 million for this revenue component. On Other Intergovernmental, 42,275,000,
again, adjusting bonds and SRF loans, lapsed bond revenues, I’ve reduced this by
9.2 million. Therefore under Other Intergovernmental, your Chair is estimating
$33,075,000. Under Interfund Transfers, again, mostly from the General Fund to
other basic funds or from like Highway to Bikeway. The Mayor had proposed
47,849,665. Your Chair with his adjustments and reductions has reduced this net
estimated revenue to go down to $46,267,740. Under Bond/Lapsed Bond, the Mayor
had proposed 64,495,000. Your Chair is concerned about our structural cash-to-debt
ratios, overall Debt Service, and with the implementation of a new GASB requirements
I will not jeopardize the County’s positioning in having us show a negative asset
debt-base if we don’t control this component of financing. Therefore, I have made a
reduction of 27,488,000 where I’m going currently in my proposal and again, it’s
changing as you, we all know, at $37,007,000. You see the Carryover/Savings as
calculated by Mr. Baz under General Fund, $17,164,846. Sewer Fund 3,800,945.
Highway Fund 4,886,279. Solid Waste Management 22,086. Golf Fund 458,756.
Liquor Fund 797,883. Bikeway Fund 311,997. Water Fund 7,532,766. Whereby this
estimated revenues total $34,975,558. Bringing us up to under your Chair’s proposal
for total estimated revenues at $654,508,046 which is a reduction of $56,977,498
from the Mayor’s proposal of $711,485,544. Questions for your Chair? Comments
regarding estimated revenues? Okay. I believe we have proposals for revenues.
Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA:
Chair, I’m wondering if Mr. Couch would be given the
opportunity to explain what he’s given us, and let’s compare it to what you’ve given us.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Members, I added some columns on the
side to compare the Mayor’s versus Council Chair’s proposal and then mine.
Essentially the green on the left is the Council Chair’s…I mean not Council,
Committee Chair’s, Mr. Hokama’s proposal, and mine is the green on the right.
Essentially what I’ve done, I’ve taken half of Chair Hokama’s decrease. So for
instance, he…the Mayor’s was 14.55 for Time Shares, Mr. Hokama went down to
14.25, I took half of that which is 30, the difference was 30 and so I took half of that
which is 15 and added that to the 4.25. So that’s what I did all the way down except
for on the Commercial Residential, I just kept it at the initial rate that it is today. So
what that will show is the revenue. The next column is the revenue and the difference
from the Chair, it’s all positive numbers except for the Commercial Residential for
essentially 2.468 million that we have additional revenue. So that means that all of
the stuff that we added, if it comes up to that or a little bit less, we’re good, if it’s a
little bit over we have to figure out what to do with that. So that’s my proposal. I just
cut right in half all the ones that the, the distance that the Chair dropped the rates.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your proposal. Thank you for your explanation. You know
one thing the Chair really took to heart because I didn’t explain it well, so of course
the testimony we got is exactly what I deserved, not explaining well. You received and,
you know, again, I take my responsibility…
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, could you use your microphone? I can hardly hear
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I take my responsibility as your Chair for not explaining it well. Although
in previous meetings your Chair had expressed comment meeting after meeting about
trying to deal with the issue, besides homelessness we’ve always dealt about the issue
of affordability. Affordability of housing, Members, and that what is what we hear
from our local people. We don’t seem to build for ourselves, we always build for the
high-end market or those that are not even on the island. Well, I’ve taken that to
heart and therefore in previous meetings I did mention that I was looking at
recommendations and from the University of Hawaii Center of Labor Education. I also
gave you a copy of, from the University on their comments about how we may want to
approach affordability in housing. One of the recommendations was to increase those
that do short-term rentals, and that’s why I was happy to see some ordinance
proposals being drafted for consideration. And one of the things about the $6 rate for
the Commercial Residential is I am happy to continue to allow those that want to do
short-term rentals that opportunity; however, I feel to have them pay the higher tax
rate so the additional revenues that I had planned for to come from this short-term
rental components would then offset what I would hope to have been able to provide to
homeowners and residential property owners a further tax incentive to support
long-term rentals to bring back to the affordability for local people to have affordable
rentals. Have the chance to build up savings, build up some personal equity, and
hopefully we can get them into purchasing multi-family or single-family units. And
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that was part of my approach to affordability basing on what I felt was, well I guess I
will call the University of Hawaii’s proposal shock treatment. But I was willing to try
something different since everything we’ve been trying so far has good intentions, but
we’ve never been able to hit and bring the affordability to reality. So that was part of
my proposal. I was very poor in explaining in sharing my idea so I take responsibility
for that. But that was part of the reason why I approached short-term and like
Commercial Residential at the rates I have proposed. It was to give us additional
money to offset those that would provide the long-term rental and give them the
incentives to do so through either lowering their tax bill or giving them additional
exemptions whereby they will seriously consider offering our people six months or
longer rental agreements. And that’s how I came up with my rates, Members.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I thank you for that explanation.
The thing with under Commercialized Residential, the only thing that’s there is bed
and breakfast -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --which usually is the people live in the home and it’s -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --a couple of rooms, so those tend not to be long-term rentals,
‘cause it’s, that’s, that, I mean I can see you have strangers come in for a week and
then go away and then new people. But to have somebody there, the same person
over and over for a year or six months, that’s a little bit different, that’s kind of a
roommate situation. I can see if it was in an ohana, not a problem. So that’s what the
Commercialized Residential or potentially the short-term rental homes. There are
some that maybe we should incent some of those that should be, maybe could be long
term, but most of those are high-end or people coming…leaving town for three months
out of the year and -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --so I understand where you’re coming from and what the
incentive is. That’s a huge, long discussion I would imagine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, it’s a proposal. If you the Members feel this is too drastic at
this time, you guys want to have it further discussed in a standing committee, I’m fine
with that. Part of my job is to stir your brains and bring forth discussion, because I
would like to see changes and hopefully provide…I mean, you know, we toss the word
affordability so much but, you know what, almost everything is subsidized. Because I
don’t know whether we’re coming to terms and say we’ll never hit affordability so we’ll
just call it that but subsidize it. I don’t want to lose that war yet. I’m not willing to
give up that war. I want to continue to fight for our people to have and be able to
purchase affordable housing units. And so I’m not giving up on the war yet. Any
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comments on the revenues or you have different approaches you might want to
propose to the Chair regarding revenues and how to pay for things? I’m open to your
thoughts at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I know you don’t include me in many things but I did
put out a proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir. And that’s why I’m happy for you -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, you know, that’s okay. I figured maybe that’s -CHAIR HOKAMA: --to bring it up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --not something you guys want to do so I’ll just -CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --throw it out.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you have your proposal and so since Mr. Couch gave his one, I
explained mine, please explain yours.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that this one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is the…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: He has one that is multiple pages.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, one page.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I went condense ‘em -CHAIR HOKAMA: The one you gave me was…
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --to one page. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh okay, thank you. ‘Cause the one you gave me was three pages.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I know it was three pages and I know nobody going
read that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There’s no name on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No name.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No name on it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Did he get one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Victorino one has a nice little green box, baby blue box, North
Carolina blue box and a golden bear gold box.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was bringing Baldwin Bears, you know, going for the
Bears. Chair, my approach was a little different than Mr. Couch. I didn’t split things
in half and all that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As I had said from the beginning and it’s up to my
colleagues, since we did not receive any more TAT -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I went back to the original proposals or the original rates
as submitted or last year’s rates as submitted for both Time Share and Hotels. Now I
also looked at the various increases and the percentage of increases as far as the
various categories. And one of the bigger increases, well, two of the bigger increases
was under Commercial and Industrial. So I gave them a little bit more than what you
had given as far as reduction is concerned. I went across the board and every one of
them basically was increased, including Commercial Residential which I took from
4.35 to 5.25 feeling that again, even though, you know, it may be B&Bs, they have a
chance to bring in much more income than even a long-term rental of a house would
be, which has to a certain degree taken some homes out of the long-term rental
market. You know I won’t go into how much and all that because it’s been, you know,
you’ve shown us what the University of Hawaii said and there’s many people out there
will say, especially on the illegal area which is one of the things I’d like to see us, you
know, focus our attention on, has taken homes out of the…or dwellings out of the
long-term rental and pushed them to short-term rentals or even close to being
short-term rentals. Because they using rooms for long-term rental but multiple rooms
like in Lahaina and other places where you have four, five, six people living in, under
one roof not related. But, you know, again, that’s the way it is. So my proposal is as
you see. And I came out with 300…3,252,843 which with my quick calculations
tonight should be sufficient. I think you’ll find that, Mr. Couch, you’ll have to find
more money, because my quick calculations showed us somewhere around
$2.8 million. Now I mean I was just running totals and so I could have missed and I
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apologize. And we still haven’t got consensus on about 30 items. So how that will fare
is beyond, you know, I’ll just wait and see. So I tried to go across the board. I tried to
keep what I consider the validity of the increases or reductions. And again, I felt
because TAT was not increased that I would hope that the message I’m sending to the
hotels and other resorts is, guys, you gotta help us. You gotta help us. Because you
are paying the tax, I agree, but we’re not getting a fair share. You gotta help us be at
the table next year. We need everybody at the table saying the same story. Because I
think like everything else we build good relationships, but the Legislature pays
attention to a multiple, a multitude of people coming in and saying hey, we need this
to happen to help us. And I hope our people will see that this is another way of saying
the residents, you guys need to step up to the plate also. You guys, you know, people
sit back and expect us to answer or solve all the problems, we can’t. We need their
help. So that’s my proposal. You got two on the table and maybe other Members
want to make proposals tomorrow. I know Mr. White is very good at analytical and
putting things together and I’ll wait to see what he brings in tomorrow morning. But
that’s it, Mr. Chair, I think I’m prepared for most of the increases that we put back in
the Budget tonight.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your proposal, Mr. Victorino. It’s appreciated. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just to note to the Members, it’s not
3.2 million to play with, it’s 3.2 million short.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Short.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So which means there’s an extra 2.5 million to, that we, of
extra revenue. So it’s about, you know, a couple hundred thousand more than the
extra revenue that my proposal has. So just want to make sure we’re using the right
numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, anyone else, Members? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know I have never sat here and asked for
special consideration for hotels, but I’m very comfortable asking for equal treatment,
and so I take…I don’t take offense to Mr. Victorino’s proposal, but I think it’s kind of
odd that the penalty goes to those who are generating the tax because they didn’t step
up to speak out. I think the Legislature heard us loud and clear, and if we want
everyone to join our band next year, I think we should send a penalty signal to all the
categories, because we’re, you know, all the categories are impacted by the fact that
we’re not getting any more TAT. So I appreciate the proposals that you have put
together and the proposal made by Mr. Couch. Although I don’t quite, I can’t quite get
comfortable with the change in the Commercial Residential that you propose mostly
because their valuations have gone up dramatically. Their increases are 36 percent
while the others are significantly lower. And I also think there’s some justification for
the concerns that they’ve brought up in testimony. So I think it’s worth looking at
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some adjustments there. But, you know, I appreciate you bringing up the revenues
now, but we really need to wait and see where we land because I think your reductions
are still something that we can meet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. For me I would like to see when
we finish with our expenses and expenditures and things that we want to do and we
have a number, then I am more ready to decide if we have to increase some places or
maybe we still want to cut some places. I think that I would want to base my decision
on can we do with the money what we want to do. You know there’s things that we
obviously really feel strongly about that we want to fund, and if it means that we gotta
add a penny here or a penny there, then I can live with that. But I want to know what
that is first because otherwise all we’re doing is speculating. How much money do we
need to find and then we go find it. So that’s where I’m at. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I know my staff has been going through and totaling up
and we’ve come up with 1.977 million, not including the Water and park assessment
rates. I don’t know how close that is to what Ms. Yoshimura has, but I think we’ve
been tracking pretty close.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say in round numbers you’ve put back 1.8 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And…
CHAIR HOKAMA: But, you know, Mr. Victorino’s right, we have left big items -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for return.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Big items, okay. There is still adjustments, potential adjustments for CIP.
So, you know, I think Ms. Baisa’s comment is very valid. You know part, you know,
this year your Chair took a slight adjusted approach. I went to, I decided first what I
thought the community could bear, then I set my revs, then I went to my expenses.
Yes, you know, most of us look at expenses, then we’re going to set the revs. I didn’t
feel our community was in that position at this point so I tried to adjust spending to
what I felt was what the people can bear. And so I set my proposal from that
perspective, the community’s desires, wants, requests versus the community’s true
ability to pay. I don’t have no problem us, for us to set the numbers on what you will
like to have expenses and then see if that amount is reasonable to fund, and if so, how
to raise that money. I don’t have a problem with that either, ‘cause at the end of the
day we’ll still reach the same goal line. Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, the problem that we have and, you know, now that I’ve
been here ten years I feel like I have some authority to speak.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure you do.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know everywhere I go, I get the same thing, I want, I want, I
want, we want, we want, why don’t you do this? What we do not hear is I’m willing to
pay. Very seldom will you have a person come to you and say…and I get those people
who say I’ll pay whatever -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --as long as I can get what I want.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But they are rare. Ninety-nine percent of people tell you I don’t
want to pay any more. So to me, reality is if this is what you want and we support
you, we think that you should have it, then you need to understand that maybe you’re
going to have to pay a few more pennies on your property tax and then we can give
you what you want. So I’m really, you know, I know where you’re coming from and we
want to, you know, put limits on what we spend. But people need to see that if they
want these things and we want to give it to them, somebody gotta pay. There is no
mana coming from heaven. It’s gotta come from us, from the people that want the
stuff. And I think we have to be realistic about that and we have to give that message.
There is nothing free. And as we see, everybody pulling back, the Feds pulling back,
the State did it to us again, we don’t have the TAT that we thought we were going to
get. So if we’re going to do all these wonderful things that people want, who’s going to
pay? I think that’s reality and that’s the message we have to tell them. You want it,
I’m sorry, it’s going cost you a little bit more. But we need good numbers to back it up
and we need to be frugal, and I think you’re the prince of frugality.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought he would be the king, I don’t really think prince,
king.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know they get it straight that, you know, we’re not trying to
waste money here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you’re not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We’re cutting positions, we’re cutting things, we’re cutting what
departments want, and we’re cutting important things.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes we are.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You know our public safety departments want and need a lot of
things, and we tell them sorry, you gotta wait or you have, you know, you cannot have
two, you can have one or instead of a truck you can have a car, instead of Cadillac you
can have a Volkswagen or a Yaris or whatever it is they can have. Or you can have
used. And I think we are very frugal with our own selves. The only area that we seem
to have no control and I listen to Mr. White and I get kind of worried, when he quotes
these numbers of how our personnel costs are increasing and we have no control over
that. We have no control, and I really think that that’s something government needs
to work on. That we need a way of being in that loop because it’s not fair that we have
no in in that loop, and yet we have to sit here trying to figure out how to pay and we
gotta go to our people and tell them you gotta pay. So, you know, there’s big issues
here and none of this is simple, but the reality is we’re going to have to find a way to
pay the bills we have to pay, because people want and they need, and they deserve.
And some of this really we don’t have a choice, we gotta fix the roads, we gotta do the
sewers, we gotta take care of water, we gotta take care of police, fire, all these things.
We cannot say we’re not going to pay. So, you know, that’s my frustration, and I tell
people when they grumble to me about government is, cost too much and whatever. I
say come here and sit with us through one Budget session and look at how our money
is spent. Everything is on the, everything’s available, transparent now, nothing’s
hidden. This is how much we spend on this guy and that guy and his fringe benefits
and this department, it’s all there, so if you wanna know, come look. We’re not trying
to hide anything, it’s all there. So if you want to know, come find out, and then I
would really be interested in what you have to say after you sit in these seats. It’s not
easy. So anyway, Chair, I talk too much but I do want to thank you. I know it’s a
thankless job to lead this Committee. And I grumble just as much as everybody else,
oh there’s the Chair cutting this, cutting that, cutting everything, but I understand, I
have a financial background, I know what you’re trying to do. And it’s because we’ve
been careful that Maui County is in a good financial position and we want to stay
there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But then how much do we nickel and dime ourselves until we
don’t do some of the things we need to do, and then people going grumble anyway
‘cause they can’t get what they need and it’s not taken care of, the buildings falling
down, the roads falling apart, the sewers don’t work, the pipes bursting. I think we
just have to make some tough decisions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Agreed.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I think we’re up to it, we’re ready.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Tomorrow’s the day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know and I agree with Ms. Baisa wholeheartedly. And
I think the other challenge we face is we have a mentality, our society has this
mentality today of bargain, bargain, bargain.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Think about it, you go to Macy’s, how many of you women
go to Macy’s and buy one dress at full price? I mean everybody shops bargain. All the
stores now have bargain, 50 percent, 30 percent. One-day specials, one-day specials,
every week you get one-day special. So I think that mentality transfers over to what
we’re doing. Why can’t you give us a bargain? Why can’t you cut costs and still
provide the services that is mandated by EPA, by the State of Hawaii Department of
Health, and all the other agencies which you well aware of, right, that are mandated.
So again, the day of free lunches are gone. We don’t have free lunches anymore. And
every time you get a free lunch, there’s a bill to be paid someplace else. There’s
somebody else that’s going to charge you down the road. So I’m ready to make
decisions tomorrow. It’s our last rodeo so that’s why I’m not worried too much. I
mean I’m ready ‘cause I don’t care because it needs to be done. I just hope my
colleagues, we’re ready to go. And that’s all I got to say about that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Just to put it in perspective, the $64.9 million that
our employment costs have increased over the last…well, they will have increased
since 2013, if we still gave the employees half the increases that we gave them, they’d
be ahead of inflation and we’d have $32 million a year to cover either cash projects or
using that $32 million we could do well over $350 million of CIP projects. We could
blow through the entire Upcountry water meter waiting list in no time at all. So it is
really frustrating for me to sit here feeling like we have no control over our own destiny
from a cost standpoint, and we have no sense of partnership with the State with
respect to the revenue side sharing the taxes that we generate well over and above
many of the other counties. So with that, I’m ready to go and get some sleep and
come back ready for tomorrow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I guess you answered the question about whether or not we’re
going to do CIP tonight.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I, I’m okay with CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right on, let’s go.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’ll see you this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What the hell.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know what, Members, I know everybody’s tired, Staff is tired too. So,
you know, we can end here and I’ll be okay with it, but I’m going to tell you, tomorrow
you need to be ready because we’re not deferring, we are not revisiting. I know you
want more, you may want more time, but I need to calculate the time Staff needs to
make adjustments, final calculations and ensure that come Monday morning we are in
total balance. Okay. Which means we are working this weekend, whether you’re here
with us or not, we are working, and I want to make sure Staff has sufficient time to
make sure your documents is all in line for your final decision come Monday morning.
And if we are not balanced, we’re in trouble. And so I just letting you know the status.
We can end tonight but…and your Chair and your Staff has worked hard in reviewing
all CIP requests. As we went through round one, we explained how we went through
the systems for all the districts, how we looked at all projects. Not everybody got what
they wanted, but I can tell you as your Chair had talked about infrastructure, every
district got infrastructure money. Some areas was more into the bridge areas, road
repair, others was more into the police, sewer lines, pump station consideration, but
every district got what I felt was fair infrastructural monies. Nobody got everything
they wanted but nobody got nothing either. So saying that, that’s your status as your
Chair sees it, if you feel to leave, we’re going to come back tomorrow morning at
9 o’clock. But just know, the first half of the day is not dedicated to this Budget, it is
dealing with Budget amendments for the current year. And I believe you have half
dozen of ‘em to consider tomorrow morning, then we go tomorrow afternoon back into
the Budget. So actually you have half a day tomorrow on this Budget which starts at
1:00 p.m.? Okay. And so you know, we’re going to have to go from 1:00 p.m. to
whatever it takes to finish now tomorrow. And if you’re okay with that, your Chair is
going to be happy to serve you as you desire. So, Members -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can we recess?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --you folks want to adjourn for the night or you guys want to keep going?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You guys want to get back, come back tomorrow?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Today’s morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Come in the, this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: This morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're coming back this morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you coming back this afternoon. This morning...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we coming this morning is for the Budget amendments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This morning is for '16 Budget amendments.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One p.m. is '17 Budget deliberations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This afternoon.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Everybody clear?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Clear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're being clearer than mud.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we're going to adjourn then, Members. Get ready. .. .(gavel)...
ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion

ADJOURN: 1:12 a.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
Transcribed by: Daniel Schoenbeck
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